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REPORTING 
SUITE AND 
REPORT 
NAVIGATION
Ntinga O.R Tambo Development Agency 
SOC Ltd (Ntinga/the entity) is proud to 
table its Annual Report for the 2020/2021 
financial year to its stakeholders. Ntinga is 
committed to reporting transparently, 
honestly and in line with the legislative 
prescripts pertaining to its status as a 
State-Owned Company (SOC) and municipal 
entity of its parent municipality, the O.R 
Tambo District Municipality (ORTDM).

The reporting suite comprises of the:
Annual Report, which serves as the primary reporting tool to 
Ntinga’s stakeholders and it records the activities of the entity 
in the period under review.

Annual Financial Statements, to provide a comprehensive report 
of the entity’s financial performance for the year.

Annual Performance Report, to report on the performance of 
the entity against the service delivery and budget implementation 
plan for the financial year.

The reports are in compliance with the:
• Companies Act 71 of 2008 (Companies Act)
• Local Government: Municipal Finance Management Act 56 

of 2003 (MFMA)
• Local Government: Municipal Systems Act 32 of 2000 (MSA)
• King IV Report on Corporate Governance for South Africa 

2016 (King IV)
• Generally-Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP)

The following icons are used in the report to show the 
links and relationships between the different areas of 
the report. The icons will further illustrate the con-
nection between Ntinga’s strategic goals, resources 
and performance indicators.

Capitals

Human capital

Financial capital

Intellectual capital

Manufactured capital

Natural capital

Social and relationship capital

REPORT NAVIGATION 

The 2020/2021 Annual Report covers the reporting period 
from 1 July 2020 to 30 June 2021. The reporting boundary 
includes preparation in accordance with the prescripts of 
the relevant legislation and the introduction of chosen el-
ements of the Integrated Reporting Framework.

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 

Achieved

Overachieved

Not achieved

Feedback on this Report

Ntinga welcomes feedback on this Annual Report. 
Please provide written feedback to Nwabisa Mningiswa 
at nwabisam@ntinga.org.za. Please also visit the website 
and social media pages to learn more about Ntinga.

REPORTING BOUNDARY 

Goal 1: Sustainable water services 
(water supply and sanitation) systems. 

Goal 2: Enhanced and enabled full value 
chains (upstream and downstream) for 
agricultural produce, markets, abattoirs 
and aquaculture. 

Goal 3: Diversified partnerships that 
promote inclusive socio-economic 
development and growth. 

Goal 4: Dynamic, capable and sustainable 
state-owned company

STRATEGIC GOALS 
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STATEMENT OF 
RESPONSIBILITY AND 
CONFIRMATION OF 
ACCURACY OF THE 
ANNUAL REPORT 

To the best of our knowledge and belief, we confirm the following;

All information and amounts disclosed in the annual report is consistent with the annual 
financial statements audited by the Auditor General.

The annual report is complete, accurate and is free from any omissions.

The annual report has been prepared in accordance with the guidelines on the annual report 
issued by National Treasury.
The Annual Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the Generally Recognised 
Accounting Practice (GRAP) Standards applicable to the public entity.

The accounting authority is responsible for the preparation of the annual financial statements 
and the judgements made in this information.

The accounting authority is responsible for establishing and implementing a system of internal 
control to provide reasonable assurance as to the integrity and reliability of the performance 
information, human resources information and the annual financial statements.

The external auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion on the annual financial 
statements.

In our opinion, the annual report fairly reflects the operations, the performance information, 
the human resource information and the financial affairs of the public entity for the financial 
year ended 30 June 2021. 

Yours faithfully

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

Chairperson of the Board 
Lindile Linduxolo Ndabeni (PhD)

Chief Executive Officer
Loyiso Mbiko
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2020/21 
HIGHLIGHTS

KEI FRESH PRODUCE MARKET

ADAM KOK FARMS

UMZIKANTU ABATTOIR

2,129 tons of fresh produce sold

R413,102 earned as commission by Ntinga 

684 cattle supplied to Umzikantu Abattoir for slaughter

327 cattle valued at R3,8 million were from Adam Kok Farms 
357 were sourced from auctions 

R476 913 total crop sales 

568.92 livestock units slaughtered for butcheries and communities

887.50 units were slaughtered for meat sales

R10,7 million in meat sales and slaughter fees

175.50 pig units or 702 pigs were sourced from the piggery projects around 
the ORTDM, Alfred Nzo and Chris Hani district municipalities

24 units of sheep or 144 sheep were sourced from breeders

WATER SERVICES

PROJECT MANAGEMENT OFFICE

6 schemes were repaired
16 schemes maintained 
 

R3,5 million secured from MerSETA for co-operatives skills 
development

R21 million secured from ORTDM to plant 700ha in the region

R700 000 raised by project participants to plant the 700ha

600 rams given to wool farmers

35 ex-mine workers trained on leadership 

50 graduates received workplace skills training

684
Cattle 

Slaughtered

887
Livestock Units 

Slaughtered
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ORGANISATIONAL 
OVERVIEW

PART A 
ABOUT NTINGA O.R TAMBO DEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
 
Ntinga is a wholly-owned municipal entity of the O.R. Tambo 
District Municipality (ORTDM). The Ntinga O.R. Tambo Devel-
opment Agency was established in 2006 by the ORTDM as a 
service utility which serves as a special purpose vehicle that is 
responsible for driving local economic development in the O.R 
Tambo district. The agency was converted into a State-Owned 
Company (SOC) Limited in 2016.

STRATEGIC 
OVERVIEW
Vision

Vibrant and sustainable communities

Mandate

As established by the ORTDM, the agency is thus mandated:
To perform activities which fall within the functions and 
powers of district municipalities as contemplated in Section 
84(1) of the Municipal Structures Act, 1998 (Act 117 of 
1998), in particular Section 84.

(1). These activities are:
•  Integrated Development Planning;
•  Potable Water Supply Systems;
•  Domestic and Industrial Waste-water and sewage  

Disposal Systems;
•  Fresh Produce Markets and Abattoirs;
•  Local Tourism Promotion;
•  Municipal Public Works;
•  Taxes, Levies and Duties, and
•  Discretionary Activities.

The Ntinga O.R. Tambo Development Agency has re-
sponded to the unique challenges facing the district by 
adopting the following strategic approach toward local 
economic development:

•  Effective harnessing of tangible and intangible resources 
in the district

•  Mobilisation and leveraging of financial and other resources
•  Spearheading of a sustainable human capital resource 

development
•  Pursuance of innovation and best practise including 

indigenous system
•  Effective planning and consultation 

The agency drives local economic development through 
structured support packages in the following areas:

• Agriculture
• Sustainable water services and infrastructure development
• Tourism
• Trade
• Investment Promotion

Values

• Nurture and care
• Leadership
• Agility
• Innovation and creativity
• Growth and development
• Accountability and transparency
• Good governance

Goals

GOAL 1: 
Sustainable water services (water supply and 
sanitation) systems.
GOAL 2: 
Enhanced and enabled full value chains 
(upstream and downstream) for agricultural 
produce, markets, abattoirs and aquaculture.
GOAL 3: 
Diversified partnerships that promote inclusive 
socio-economic development and growth.
GOAL 4: 
Dynamic, capable and sustainable state owned 
company.
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Company 
Secretary

Corporate
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Water
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Trading 
Enterprise
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Internal AuditProject 
Management

Manager:

Finance

ORGANISATIONAL 
STRUCTURE

BUSINESS AND STRATEGY OVERVIEW

The Ntinga O.R Tambo Development Agency has a broad 
and empowering socio-economic development mandate 
bestowed upon it by its sole shareholder, the O.R Tambo 
District Municipality. The ORTDM is the executive authority, 
and it is charged with providing oversight over the munici-
pal entity. The ORTDM Council has delegated this oversight 
responsibility to the Rural Economic and Development Pro-
grammes (REDP) and the Municipal Public Accounts Com-
mittee (MPAC). As a State-Owned Company, Ntinga has its 
own governance structures, namely, the Board of Directors 
as the Accounting Authority and the Chief Executive Officer 
as the Accounting Officer. The mandate places the 1,5 mil-
lion citizens of the O.R Tambo District Municipality (ORTDM) 
at the epicentre of the development agenda which includes 
the extension of improved access to clean potable water in 
terms of the Constitution of the Republic. The agency’s stra-
tegic posture is thus informed by the need to accelerate in-
clusive economic growth and to harness human endeavours 
which are aimed at building an enterprising and connected 
O.R Tambo District Municipality. The Ntinga mandate is thus 
informed by the provincial Vision 2030 which is anchored on 
six strategic goals, namely:

1. An innovative and inclusive economy, 
2. Enabling infrastructure,
3. Rural development, and an innovative and high value   

agriculture sector, 
4. Environmental sustainability,
5. Capable democratic state, and
6. Human development.

The agency has thus adopted a four-pronged-goal strate-
gy that is aimed at balancing financial viability against the 
requisite non-income generating socio-economic dividend 
in response to the 2030 vision.

The first goal or pillar relies on the provision of water-related 
technical support in the rural and peri-urban water schemes. 
This includes repairs, refurbishment, maintenance and op-
eration of water-related infrastructure supporting rural and 
peri-urban water schemes in the district. In this mandate, the 
obligation to provide safe, clean and reliable potable water 
rests with the district municipality as a water services authority. 
Ntinga’s exclusive role is in the repair, refurbishment and main-
tenance of the infrastructure that ensures that water schemes 
are functional and that they are not in a state of disrepair.

Ntinga is expected to effectively discharge this maintenance 
obligation by conducting maintenance and repairs on 93 

schemes within the King Sabatha Dalindyebo Local Munic-
ipality (KSD). The effective implementation of this mainte-
nance obligation ensures consistency in the supply of potable 
water which in turn supports the growth and development of 
local industries. KSD has been the pilot site to test the effec-
tiveness of the mandate and it remains Ntinga’s endeavour to 
reach all the communities of the ORTDM.

The second goal rests on the exploitation of the economic 
potential and comparative advantages of the O.R Tambo re-
gion through the stimulation of key sectors of its economy 
such as agriculture and agro-processing, ocean economy, al-
ternative energy, tourism, infrastructure built and others in 
order to contribute to the Gross Domestic Product (GDP). 

In this regard, Ntinga SOC inherited enterprise development 
assets which are the 2,600 hectares (ha) Adam Kok Farms, a 
dairy farm in Ikhwezi, Umzikantu Abattoir and the Kei Fresh 
Produce Market. These assets form a central cog and anchor 
in effecting the desired mandate outcomes and they serve as 
enhanced and enabled full value chains. This pillar seeks to 
locate and align the district within the provincial Vision 2030 
of the Eastern Cape which is to become the “food basket of 
South Africa and the Southern Africa Development Commu-
nity (SADC) during the next 30 years.”

Thirdly, Ntinga SOC acknowledges that the two goals men-
tioned above will be given impetus through well-structured 
and well-functioning strategic partnerships and projects. 
Some of the strategic partnerships are envisaged to take the 
shape of strategic alliances while some may take the form of 
a joint venture. The purpose and objective of strategic alli-
ances and partnerships is value addition either in the form of 
new investments, new technology, skills improvement and or 
new processes.

The last and most important pillar is to build the capabili-
ty of a democratic state. This pillar directly aligns to and is 
anchored on the Provincial Development Plan (PDP Vision 
2030). In this regard, strategic capability refers to corporate 
strategy, human capital, financial and management systems, 
information systems, policies and standard operating proce-
dures as well as the building of an effective, efficient and de-
velopment-oriented public service. These key interrelation-
ships are shown in the diagrams that follow.

Ntinga aligns itself with the provincial Integrated Develop-
ment Plan (IDP) and the District Development Plan (DDP) 
and its strategy connects and provides synergy between 
these for the benefit of Ntinga’s stakeholders.
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Local Government KPA’s (Integrated 
Development Plan)

Ntinga (SOC) Ltd Strategic Goals ORTDM
District Development Plan

1. Basic Service Delivery and  
Infrastructure.

Goal 1: Sustainable Water Services  
(water supply and sanitation) Systems

Goal 1: A substantial improvement in 
the provision of public infrastructure 
and services, and a vast increase in 
support for livelihood.

Goal 3: Well protected environmental 
assets.

2. Local Economic Development. Goal 2: Enhanced and Enabled Full Value 
Chains (upstream and downstream) for 
Agricultural Produce, Markets, Abattoirs 
and Aquaculture.

Goal 3: Diversified Partnerships that 
Promote Inclusive Socio-economic 
Development and Growth.

Goal 4: A growing, innovative/
responsive and inclusive economy.

3. Municipal Financial Viability and Man-
agement.

Goal 4: Dynamic, Capable and 
Sustainable State-Owned Company.

Goal 5: An efficient and effective public 
sector, able to provide strong economic 
governance leadership.

4. Good Governance and Public  
Participation.

Goal 4: Dynamic, Capable and 
Sustainable State-Owned Company.

Goal 5: An efficient and effective public 
sector, able to provide strong economic 
governance leadership.

5. Municipal Transformation and  
Organisational Development.

Goal 4: Dynamic, Capable and 
Sustainable State-Owned Company.

Goal 5: An efficient and effective public 
sector, able to provide strong economic 
governance leadership.

These goals are interconnected and interdependent on the six capitals to execute the strategy

Human 
capital

Financial 
capital

Intellectual 
capital

Manufactured 
capital

Social and 
relationship 
capital

Natural 
capital

ALIGNMENT WITH IDP & DDP OF ORTDM TO NTINGA STRATEGIC GOALS

GOAL 4

GOAL 3

MANDATE

NTINGA STRATEGY DEVELOPMENT PROCESS

MISSION
Being a catalyst for innovation in promoting socio-economic 

development and sustainable services to communities, through 
strategic partnerships and new investments.

PROVINCIAL GROWTH & DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY DISTRICT DEVELOPMENT PLAN ORTDM IDP

VISION

Vibrant and Sustainable Communities.

STRATEGIC GOALS

GOAL 1: Sustainable Water Services (water supply and 
sanitation) Systems

GOAL 2: Enhanced and Enabled Full Value Chains (upstream 
and downstream) for Agricultural Produce, Markets, Abattoirs 

and Aquaculture.

GOAL 3:
Socio-economic Development and Growth.

GOAL 4: Dynamic, Capable and Sustainable State Owned Company.

GOAL 1

GOAL 2

NTINGA O.R TAMBO 
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
STRATEGY OVERVIEW
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CHAIRPERSON’S 
FOREWORD

PART B 
The Ntinga OR Tambo Development Agency (ORTDM) pres-
ents the 2020/21 financial year annual report which enunci-
ates the mandate delivery posture of the agency. This was a 
particularly challenging period for the agency as it takes its 
initial steps in its full integration into a State-Owned Company 
(SOE). In addition, a variety of factors such as the ongoing 
effects of the global coronavirus pandemic and capitalisation 
challenges continue to affect performance.

Inadequate capitalisation poses a significant sustainability 
challenge for Ntinga which erodes the agency’s revenue base 
and income streams. The COVID-19 pandemic compounded 
the situation severely constraining Ntinga’s activities and 
particularly the business operations of the trading enterpris-
es. This had the net effect of limiting the revenue base and 
their overall profitability. The effects of the pandemic have 
had a domino effect on the economic value chain with con-
sumers having less to spend. In addition, limits to gatherings 
due to the lockdown restrictions has meant fewer customers 
consumed the products of Ntinga’s trading enterprises.

Ntinga is also faced with a high cost structure in the form 
of compensation of employees as well high costs of doing 
business. The Board is continuously engaged with the share-
holder to ensure sufficient budget allocations for the Ntinga 
business in order to broaden the desired development im-
pact. While the R44,2 million budget allocation for 2020/21 is 
welcomed, Ntinga is still confronted with serious challenges 
in fulfilling its water services mandate obligations. 

Funding shortfalls impede the agency’s ability to maintain the 
valuable water services infrastructure put in place by the mu-
nicipality. While Ntinga submitted a revised budget of R11,6 
million for the water services function to the municipality in 
2020/21, it only received R4,5 million of the required amount. 
This meant targets could not be met resulting in only minor 
repair and maintenance work being realised. As a result, only 
six schemes could be repaired and 16 water schemes were 
maintained. The maintained water schemes were operational 
throughout the year indicating adequate capitalisation im-
proves service delivery.

Ntinga’s attitude to these challenges has been ongoing en-
gagements with the parent municipality on the best funding 
models for the agency as well as the development of a share-
holder compact and project charters which will govern proj-
ect identification and execution. In this regard, I am grateful 
for the warm relations the Board enjoys with the shareholder 
which provide fertile ground for honest and robust engage-
ments as incisive and thoughtful reflective appraisals of the 
relationship. These engagements are meant to place people 
at the centre of the development agenda.

In partnership with our parent municipality we were able to 
implement projects and discretionary initiatives which are 
meant to improve the socio-economic architecture of the 
district. These include the wool improvement project valued 
ay R2,1 million, the Zandukwana Agricultural Project worth 
R315,071 and the Rural Agro-Industries Finance Initiative 
(RAFI) amounting to R 1,3 million.

HUMAN CAPITAL

I am pleased that the Board continues to pursue the devel-
opment of a world-class and agile Ntinga which is primed to 
respond with speed to prevailing socio-economic challenges. 
The Board continues to impress on management on the need 
to embark on and maintain a state of continuous improve-
ment. At the centre of this pursuit, is the attraction and re-
tention of the best skills in the sector. The Board is intent on 
developing the technical acumen of Ntinga’s people in order 
to ensure that a real and solid socio-economic dividend is 
realised for the people of the OR Tambo district. 

R44,2 MILLION BUDGET 
ALLOCATION FOR 2020/21

PROJECTS AND 
DISCRETIONARY 
INITIATIVES 
IMPLEMENTED

R2,1 million wool improvement project

R315,071 Zandukwana Agricultural Project 

R 1,3 million Rural Agro-Industries Finance Initiative (RAFI)

R3,7m
On projects

Furthermore, on behalf of the Ntinga Board, I express my sin-
cere condolences to the Dekeda family which lost the life of 
Vuyolwethu Dekeda to the COVID-19 pandemic during the 
period under review. Their loss is the agency’s loss as well. 
Dekeda was a diligent staff member who carried his respon-
sibilities with humility and 
he will always be held dear 
in the collective memory 
of the Ntinga family. 
The Board also rec-
ognises seven oth-
er employees who 
contracted the virus 
during the review 
period. The organi-
sation is grateful for 
their recovery.
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MANDATE DELIVERY

In this regard, I am pleased that Ntinga continues to return a 
socio-economic dividend to the parent municipality and to 
the region. 

In 2020/21, the Kei Fresh Produce Market sold 2,129 tons of 
fresh produce. As a result, the 5% commissioned earned by 
Ntinga was R413,102.76.

The Adam Kok Farms supplied 684 cattle for slaughter to the 
Umzikantu Abattoir. Of this number, 327 cattle were from the 
farm herd and 357 were sourced from auctions and a smaller 
number from emerging farmers in the region. The total value 
of the 327 cattle supplied to Umzikantu Abattoir was R3,8 
million. Total crop sales from Adam Kok Farms were R476 913. 
The Umzikantu Abattoir slaughtered 568.92 livestock units 
for butcheries and communities. 

A total of 887.50 units were slaughtered for meat sales. Revenue 
generated from meat sales and slaughter fees was R10,7 million.

PARTNERSHIPS

Strategic stakeholder partnerships and alliances with our var-
ious publics will become increasingly important as we build 
a Ntinga of the future. The Board operates from a realisation 
that it has to marshal the collective energy of partnership in-
stitutions if it is to effect the requisite development impact. I 
am thus grateful to the various partnership arrangements put 
in place in order to broaden and widen the scope and impact 
of the organisation’s mandate. Ntinga’s efficacy will be given 
real impetus by a brew of financial and non-financial instru-
ments which grow the competitiveness of local industries in 
an increasingly competitive global business place.

FUTURE PLANS

Finally, Ntinga will continue to drive initiatives which are posi-
tioned to exploit the latent economic and industrial potential 
of the district. A critical element is building a world-class or-
ganisation which is capacitated to co-ordinate development 
initiatives in the district. Good and sound corporate gover-
nance will form a central pillar to Ntinga’s delivery posture 
which is premised on building public and funder confidence 
as well as that of its capital investment partners.

APPRECIATION

I am grateful to our shareholder, the OR Tambo District Mu-
nicipality for its support and commitment to the rejuvenation 
of the economic prospects of the region. The Board provides 
its assurance that it is working in tandem with Ntinga man-
agement to transform the agency into an effective and re-
sponsive tool of socio-economic redress.

I am grateful to the people of the OR Tambo region, its en-
trepreneurs and business organisations for their patience and 
understanding as we navigate an extremely challenging op-
erating environment. The Board is grateful to the manage-
ment team and the entire team for their commitment to the 
development agenda of the region. 

KEI FRESH PRODUCE MARKET

ADAM KOK FARMS

2,129 tons of fresh produce sold

R413,102 earned as commission by Ntinga 

684 cattle supplied to Umzikantu 

Abattoir for slaughter

327 cattle valued at R3,8 million were 

from Adam Kok Farms 
357 were sourced from auctions 

R476 913 total crop sales 
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Chairperson of the Board
Lindile Linduxolo Ndabeni (PhD)

In the year under review, Ntinga’s exter-
nal environment has been challenged and 
changed by the various factors which 
influence the business. Despite these 
complexities, management has remained 
focussed on the delivery of the strategy 
and ensuring an efficient operational envi-
ronment.

EXTERNAL ENVIRONMENT

Political Factors
While democracy is one of the best political systems, it has 
inherent risks, particularly in a developing country like South 
Africa. Of concern are developing trends of mass action, cou-
pled with the destruction of infrastructure by communities 
demanding service delivery. The changes in political leader-
ship on the horizon can also affect Ntinga. 

The national, provincial and local governments remain chal-
lenged to ensure that they provide the necessary infrastruc-
ture and support to communities through robust investment, 
the careful allocation of the fiscus and job-creation. The in-
troduction of the Special Economic Zones (SEZ’s) Bill, which 
aims at accelerating industrialisation, regional development 
and job creation in non-Industrial Development Zone (IDZ) 
areas, is an advantage for the region. 

Economic Factors and COVID-19 
The advent of the COVID-19 pandemic has affected what was 
an already receding economy due to factors such as the fluc-
tuation of the rand, increasing globalisation and the coun-
try’s status as an emerging economy. The pandemic caused 
uncertainty with the lockdowns restricting movement, gath-
erings and supplier demand for Ntinga’s goods and services. 
Ntinga has focussed on the health and well-being of its staff 
and the ability and agility of the head office support staff 
to adapt to new ways of work such as remote working, in-
creased ICT capacities and business continuity. 

Environmental Factors 
Climate change remains a significant threat for the agricul-
tural sector on which the rural economy depends. Further-
more, the continued drought and lack of consistent potable 
water supplies pose a threat to communities in the ORTDM. 
This requires increased resolve in Ntinga’s continued efforts 
of ensuring the efficient repair and maintenance of water 
schemes. 

Legal Situation 
The Conversion of Ntinga into a SOC has demanded more 
compliance and reporting requirements in terms of the Com-
panies Act 71 of 2008. The management of the fresh produce 
market and the abattoir has further introduced its own re-
gime of laws, regulations and compliance requirements. To 
be able to succeed at the highest level, Ntinga will have to 
comply with these requirements. All these factors are there-
fore relevant for Ntinga in attaining its goals and objectives. 

Operating optimally within this external environment is an 
imperative for Ntinga’s business and its position as a so-
cio-economic development agency. In addition, Ntinga has 
to ensure that it takes its stakeholders along on its journey of 
growth, and its mission to positively impact the 
O.R Tambo district.

NTINGA’S OPERATING 
ENVIRONMENT
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Stakeholder Their Expectations Ntinga’s response Modes of engagement

Shareholder and 
the Board

Support the initiatives of the 
Council to bring about sus-
tainable social and economic 
development in the district 
• Effective execution of the 

mandate 
• Strong operational perfor-

mance 
• Experienced management 

with strong track record

• Robust Board leadership fo-
cused on the execution of the 
mandate and strategy 

•  Continued improvements on 
certain areas of operations 

•  Experienced and skilled man-
agement team with all key 
management roles filled

•  Frequent engagements 
between the Board 
Chair and ORTDM Polit-
ical Leadership 

•  Attendance by Ac-
counting Officer of all 
MANCO, MAYCO and 
Council meetings

Local Municipalities 
and their Municipal 
Entities

•  Cooperation and coordi-
nated efforts to provide the 
best outcomes for the region 

•  Finding partnerships and 
synergies for the betterment 
of the communities of the 
region

•  Various partnership agree-
ments involving fellow local 
Municipal entities 

•  Collaboration on various agri-
cultural and enterprise projects

• Meetings 
• MOUs and Partnership 

agreements

Regulators and 
National & 
Provincial 
Government

•  Compliance with all legisla-
tive and compliance require-
ments of regulators 

•  Participation and execution 
of Ntinga’s role in national 
and government initiatives 
such as the District Develop-
ment Model

•  Adhering to regulatory and 
compliance requirements 

•  Participation in all meetings, 
engagements and workshops 
of the shareholder on the DDM

• Meetings, workshops 
and 

engagements

Business 
organisations

•  Supporting businesses, 
farmers, agricultural produc-
ers, cooperatives and SMMEs 
through our strategy 

•  Sharing skills and expertise 

•  Supporting business through 
Ntinga’s social economic devel-
opment programmes and pref-
erential procurement strategy 

•  Continuous support provided 
to farmers through tours, provi-
sion of inputs, technical advice, 
Heifer exchanges etc

• Meetings 
• Study tours 
• Ongoing technical 

advice

Employees •  Safe and healthy work envi-
ronment 

•  Fair, equitable remuneration 
•  Career development and 

enhancement opportunities 
•  Job security

•  Continuously aiming to provide 
a safe working environment 

•  Open organised labour 
•  Ongoing training and support 

of interns and workplace skills 
development

•  Regular meetings such 
as Workplace Forums 

•  Staff communication 
groups 

•  Emails and Notices

Traditional leaders 
and communities

•  Consultation and engage-
ment on activities of the en-
tity that affect communities 

•  Recognition of status as 
leaders that are a repository 
of land and value systems 
that may accelerate and/
or frustrate socio-economic 
development

•  Social facilitation programmes 
and engagements 

•  Prior consultation and engage-
ment on projects relating to 
agriculture, crop production 

•  Provision of agricultural inputs, 
technical advice and monitor-
ing for emerging farmers and 
agricultural producers

• Employ of social facil-
itators at grassroots 
level in water services 

• Constant engagement, 
meetings and consul-
tation prior to project 
engagement

Customers •  Safe and reliable provision of 
goods and services 

•  Excellent customer service 
and response times

•  Continuous striving for best 
customer service 

•  Provision of quality meat, 
agricultural produce and water 
services

• Customer surveys 
• Customer engagements 
• Market days

STAKEHOLDER ANALYSIS

Ntinga’s stakeholders are of critical to its survival. The agency’s relationships, rapport and continued engagements will de-
termine its success. Ntinga regularly engages these key stakeholder groups and it strives to maintain and build relationships 
that will be of benefit to the agency and its legacy over time.

INVESTMENT CASE

• Sector expertise 
• Enterprise infrastructure 
• ORTDM support and capitalisation 
• Project management and implementation expertise 
• Good governance 
• Shareholder mandate 
• Strategic partnerships and high stakeholder engagement 
• High throughput abattoir 
• High potential expansion of crop production 
• Water services technical expertise 
• Resilience under pressure 
• Business with a conscience

NTINGA’S BUSINESS CASE
Ntinga’s business case rests on the value proposition 
of the promotion of socio-economic development. 

Value proposition: “Promotion of 
socio-economic development”

Mandate, Strategy, Goals and 
Governance

NTINGA’S CAPITAL INPUTS AND THEIR VALUE CREATION

ACTIVITIES

Water 

Projects 

Abattoir 

Farms 

Fresh produce 

Market 

Head office support

Human capital • Responsible and accountable leadership
• 121 committed and motivated employees at end June 2021

Financial capital • R 44,267,179 grant funding from the parent municipality 
• R 23,190,124 revenue in the year under review 
• R 15,089,530 in biological assets owned by the entity

Intellectual capital • Standard Operating Procedures in all Ntinga’s operations 
• Policies, procedures and frameworks 
• Unique and specialised water systems engineering capabili-

ties gained through the water services funciton

Manufactured capital • Property, plant and equipment valued at R 54,969,817
• Own the only high throughput abattoir in the region 
• Running the only fresh produce market in the region

Natural capital • Water and Ntinga’s role played in the provision thereof 
through the maintenance and repairs of water schemes 

• Air, land, waste and the environment

Social and relationship capital • Ntinga’s relationships with the parent municipality and 
stakeholders 

• Ntinga’s socio-economic and development mandate and 
impact on the district

Human capital

Financial capital

Intellectual capital

Manufactured capital

Natural capital

Social and relationship capital

These capitals as main contributors to 
our business and four strategic goals
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NTINGA’S BUSINESS CASE FOR VALUE CREATION 

As an emerging development agency, Ntinga is a fertile and promising investment case. Ntinga’s main value proposition 
lies in its promotion of socio-economic development, coupled with a commercial business case for the high throughput 
areas of the business. 

Ntinga’s investment case 

As an SOC, Ntinga’s shareholder mandate requires that it ensures the delivery of the specific areas of the mandate be-
stowed upon it and to support the parent municipality in effective and efficient service delivery. Despite the challenges 
brought about by the COVID-19 pandemic, the agency believes its strategic business model provides for a viable and 
high potential business and investment case. In line with government imperatives, Ntinga’s focus on agriculture, projects 
and cooperatives support makes investing in Ntinga and the region a key reason to invest. Ntinga’s investment case is 
strengthened by the relationship between its use of the capitals to create value for its stakeholders.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
OFFICER’S REPORT

PART C 
I am pleased to present the Ntinga OR Tambo Development 
Agency annual performance report for the 2020/21 financial 
year. Leading Ntinga is a rewarding yet challenging assign-
ment which requires steadfast leadership with the concom-
itant stewardship of its financial and other resources. The 
prudent management and use of these public resources and 
assets lies at the epicentre of inspired, effective and efficient 
mandate delivery. If the socio-economic development aspira-
tions of the OR Tambo region are to be attained, Ntinga is 
required to build, encourage and maintain a posture of a trust-
ed custodian of public resources and to ensure that they are 
deployed for their intended purpose. As such, this leadership 
task necessitates the deployment of human capital resources 
which possess the technical acumen to utilise the available yet 
severely limited resources efficiently.
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CAPITAL INVESTMENT

However, the efficacy of these envisaged development pro-
grammes requires significant capital investment. In the ab-
sence of adequate budget allocations for the roll-out of cap-
ital projects, the desired socio-economic impact will not be 
realised. In this vein, Ntinga executes its obligations aware 
of the serious budgetary constraints confronting govern-
ment as it seeks to make inroads in alleviating the scourge of 
rampant unemployment and widespread poverty. Compet-
ing priorities place significant pressure on the national fiscus 
which constrains the spread and reach of government’s so-
cio-economic programmes. These fiscal challenges cascade 
down to the municipal level thereby impacting the available 
resources that are required to effect a pronounced develop-
ment impact.

Ntinga is no different in this regard. The agency’s liquidity po-
sition remains precarious characterised by declining budget 
allocations by the parent municipality, the OR Tambo District 
Municipality (ORTDM). The municipality is confronted with its 
own budgetary and fiscal challenges as it is forced to broad-
en the impact of its limited resources. As a result, Ntinga’s 
ability to adequately execute projects is severely curtailed 
as less funding becomes available with each passing funding 
cycle. 

This is a significant hurdle which is challenging to navigate 
as Ntinga is still required to deliver on its stated mandate. 
One of the major challenges facing Ntinga is the expectation 
to maintain capital investments particularly water services 
infrastructure. While Ntinga remains committed to fulfilling 
the water services mandate, its ability to provide repairs and 
maintenance is being hastily eroded without the required 
capital base. The resultant effect is lessened impact and 
reach of Ntinga programmes which threatens the agency’s 
viability and sustainability.

For example, funding constraints resulted in Ntinga being un-
able to adequately service water schemes that required ur-
gent repairs and maintenance. This meant only minor repair 
work could be done which required minimal or no materials. 
However, those schemes that Ntinga could maintain, they 
managed to operate all year round. This is an indication that 
when adequate capitalisation is extended to the agency, its 
efficacy and impact is significantly enhanced.

Furthermore, the effects of the ongoing global coronavirus 
pandemic continue to place additional strain on the agency. 
The various lockdown levels particularly over the busy Christ-
mas and Easter periods affected operations and revenue 
growth. The restrictions on people movement and reductions 
in the number of people attending gatherings meant commu-
nities were catering for less people. In turn, this meant less 
money was spent on food and meat products thereby affect-
ing the profitability of the Kei Fresh Produce Market and the 
Umzikantu Abattoir in the main.

CAPITALISATION

Furthermore, the liquidity position of the agency continues 
to hamper the service delivery environment as a result of a 
heavy cost structure which is comprised of a salary bill and 
an insufficiently funded mandate.
 
This situation will only be resolved through the urgent inter-
vention of the shareholder. Management, with the support of 
the Board continues to engage the parent municipality about 
the liquidity challenges Ntinga faces. These discussions are 
crucial for corporate sustainability and they should provide 
the required clarity on the mandate expectations of the 
shareholder. Clarity on mandate expectations is envisaged to 
result in a more sustainable funding model in relation to the 
required mandate outcomes. 

Ntinga deploys its mandate and project delivery apparatus acutely aware of the immense 
socio-economic challenges confronting the region. The region is beset by substantial ser-
vice delivery and infrastructural backlogs. These backlogs require the development of 
social and economic infrastructure which is geared to meet the most pressing demands 
confronting communities in this region. The region carries an immense agricultural and 
tourism potential among its varied natural endowments and it is incumbent on govern-
ment and its various special purpose service delivery vehicles such as Ntinga to exploit 
these resources for the benefit of its people. 

STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIPS

In addition, the agency realises that it has to employ inventive 
tools in order to augment the limited resource capacity of the 
parent municipality in order to effect the desired objectives. 
Part of this process is leveraging partner and other resources 
in order to widen the development impact. This requires high 
value partnerships across the entire socio-economic value 
chain and the marshalling of the collective energy of private 
and public resources in order to reach the most vulnerable 
of our communities. As such, I am pleased with the various 
stakeholder partnerships Ntinga has formed which assist 
with mandate delivery. These partnership arrangements are 
detailed in the operations and human resources reports.

HUMAN RESOURCES

Ntinga relies on the attraction and retention of the best talent 
it can secure in order to carry out its development aspira-
tions. In this regard, the agency provides empowering sup-
port programmes to its people in order to ensure that they 
are appropriately capacitated to respond to their obligations. 
Due to the declining operational budget, expenditure on 
training has gradually reduced. Priority was given to those 
positions that must meet regulated competency require-
ments. This is done in phases. The entity prioritised employ-
ees who needed to close the 70/30 gap identified during 
placement. A Workplace Skills Plan (WSP) was developed 
based on the skills audit that was undertaken. However, the 
agency only managed to implement one training intervention 
in the Workplace Skills Plan due to cash flow problems. 

Furthermore, Ntinga is concerned with developing a condu-
cive environment which drives performance and employee 
morale. These are necessary ingredients for overall organi-
sational performance. In 2020/21, performance agreements 
were signed by senior managers and middle managers. 
Performance Management System (PMS) awareness, un-
derstanding and cascading to all levels of employees was 
conducted. However, the process was stalled due to dis-
agreements with the union. The matter was resolved in the 
last quarter of the financial year. It was then agreed that the 
cascading of the PMS should be implemented in the follow-
ing financial year.  

These interventions are geared to improve the custom-
er experience while building public trust. By the end of the 
2020/21 financial year Ntinga had 121 employees on its pay-
roll. While the organisation has an organisational structure 
with 157 positions, only 130 were budgeted for in the 2020/21 
financial year. As such, the 121 employees represent a vacancy 
rate of 7% for the budgeted posts. The figures also reflect a 
23% vacancy rate for all posts in the organisational structure.

AUDIT OUTCOMES

From a financial management perspective, Ntinga continues 
to demonstrate its commitment to honest and ethical cor-
porate government practices. This sound governance ethos 
has resulted in the achievement of another unqualified au-
dit opinion in the 2020/21 financial year. This is an admirable 
track record which should encourage and build public confi-
dence in Ntinga’s ability to utilise allocated resources respon-
sibly. I am grateful to all Ntinga’s people and the leadership of 
the Board for a state of continual improvement in the agen-
cy’s financial management.

In this regard, Ntinga is pleased that the ORTDM managed to 
increase the operational grant budget allocation to the agen-
cy from R41 million in 2019/20 to R44,2 million in 2020/21. 
This is despite the financial position of the district municipal-
ity. Although not in line with Ntinga’s capital requirements, 
the agency is grateful that this injection allowed Ntinga to 
execute social and economic programmes which stimulate 
economic growth and development in the district.

121 employees on payroll

R44,2 million grant budget increase 
in 2020/21

130 employees budgeted for in the 
2020/21 finacial year

7%
Vacancy Rate

R3,2m
budget 
increase
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

During the period under review, Ntinga’s financial perfor-
mance declined in comparison to the 2019/20 financial 
year. Reported losses before tax rose from R6,1 million in 
2019/20 to R11,5 million in 2020/21. Current year total rev-
enue amounted to R67,4 million. In the previous year this 
figure was R80,3 million.

Excluding revenue from non-monetary transactions in the 
form of asset gains as well as value appreciation of bio-
logical assets, current year revenue amounted to R64,2 
million compared to the previous year’s R71,2 million. 

There was improvement in grant financial support re-
ceived from the parent municipality for operations. It in-
creased from R41 million in 2019/20 to R44,2 million in 
the period under review. 

Ntinga is also concerned with the development of own 
revenue sources in order to reduce its dependency on 
the parent municipality. in this regard, the agency gener-
ates own revenue by providing water services in the form 
of water schemes repairs and maintenance to the par-
ent municipality. Furthermore, Ntinga is working toward 
transforming its trading enterprises into profitable and 
sustainable business concerns.
 

Total expenditure in the period under review was reduced 
from R86,4 million in the previous year to R78,9 million in 
2020/21. Employees related costs form the largest expen-
diture item of R44,9 million. This figure constitutes 56.9% 
of total expenditure and 66.6% of total revenue. As a re-
sult, only new staff appointments for critical positions are 
being prioritised and those that generate revenue.   

R64,2 million current revenue amount

R7,5m
expenditure 

decrease

SPECIAL PROJECTS

During the period under review, the municipality assigned 
Ntinga to implement special projects such as the wool im-
provement project R 2,5 million and crop production. We also 
supported the parent municipality in the implementation of 
Rural Agro-Industries Finance Initiative (RAFI) project. 

OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE

In 2020/21, the Kei Fresh Produce Market sold 2,129 tons of 
fresh produce. This figure is markedly lower than the 2019/20 
figure of 5,109.43 tons owing to the supply challenges be-
ing experienced as well as the impact of COVID-19 on opera-
tions. As a result, the 5% commission earned by Ntinga from 
fresh produce sales reduced from R909,075 in 2019/20 to 
R413,102.76.

Sales were mainly comprised of potatoes and onions. A sub-
stantial portion of the sales went to the informal market in the 
form of hawkers and spaza shops. The Spar stores in Mthatha 
and Engcobo continue to source produce from KFPM.

Adam Kok Farms

In 2020/21, the Adam Kok Farms supplied 684 cattle for 
slaughter to the Umzikantu Abattoir. Of this number, 327 
cattle were from the farm herd and 357 were sourced from 
auctions and a smaller number from emerging farmers in 
the region. We continue to support local farmers to improve 
quality of their livestock through our programmes such as 
bull loaning and heifer exchange.

The total value of the 327 cattle supplied to Umzikantu Abat-
toir was R3,8 million.

A total of 60ha was utilised for crop production in the form 
of maize and sorghum for animal feed as well as cabbages 
planted on 7,5ha for revenue enhancement.

KEI FRESH PRODUCE MARKET

2,129 tons of fresh produce sold

R413,102 earned as commission by Ntinga 

Total crop sales were R476 913. The bulk of the produce went 
to the KFPM. A portion of the produce was sold to fresh 
produce shops around Kokstad and to the Pietermaritzburg 
Fresh Produce Market.

During the review period, Umzikantu slaughtered 568.92 
livestock units for butcheries and communities. The abattoir 
charged R540 to slaughter a cow, R3.00 per kg to slaughter 
a pig and R150.00 to slaughter a sheep in the period under 
review. 

A total of 887.50 units were slaughtered for meat sales. 
Again, the sales figures were affected by the CVOID-19 re-
strictions which reduced the number of people allowed to 
gather for events such as funerals, weddings and other tradi-
tional ceremonies.

Revenue generated from meat sales and slaughter fees was 
R10,7 million. In addition, 175.50 pig units were sourced from 
the piggery projects around the ORTDM, Alfred Nzo and 
Chris Hani district municipalities. This translates to a total of 
702 pigs. 

Furthermore, 24 units of sheep were sourced from breeders 
during the period under review which translates to 144 sheep. 
The supply of sheep remains a challenge. Ntinga is continu-
ing conversations with local farmers in order to improve the 
condition of their sheep.

Water services

The agency submitted a revised budget of R11,6 million for 
water services to the municipality during the review period. 
The ORTDM could only provide R4,5 million of this amount. 
This is a significant funding shortfall which affected Ntinga’s 
effectiveness.

In 2020/21, the target was to repair 16 water 
schemes. As a result of the funding con-
straints Ntinga could only conduct repairs 
on six schemes in 2020/21. 

UMZIKANTU ABATTOIR

R3.00 per kg to slaughter a pig

887.50 units were slaughtered for meat sales

R10,7 million in meat sales and slaughter fees

Ntinga is required to maintain 93 schemes 
with the intention of having all these 

schemes in working order. Ntinga 
could only maintain 16 of the 93 
schemes because of a shortage of 
funds. The maintained schemes ran 
throughout the year. This indicates 
that when adequately funded, the 
water services function is able to 
deliver effectively on its mandate.

Project management

Money was secured from the Manufacturing, Engineering 
and Related Services Sector Education and Training Author-
ity (MerSETA) to mainly train co-operatives on skills such as 
operating and repairing tractors and plant production among 
other topics. A total of R3,5 million from MerSETA was com-
mitted to OR Tambo through the Chris Hani Co-operative 
Development Centre. A total of 121 people from across the 
five O.R. Tambo District local municipalities were trained. Of 
the 121 people, 21 were people living with disabilities. While 
30 were not necessarily co-op members, 91 were drawn from 
co-operatives.

Ntinga has also selected seven projects/co-operatives which 
are developing plans and submitting funding proposals to the 
National Treasury and to the Industrial Development Corpo-
ration (IDC). These co-operatives have a total 103 members 
and have a combined 651,39 hectares on which they plan to 
produce vegetables. The proposals include the development 
of a packhouse for the seven projects which will work closely 
with the KFPM to supply it thereby providing market access 
for the vegetables produced. A total of R20 million in capital 
expenditure is required. 

In 2020/21, Ntinga assisted communities throughout OR 
Tambo to plant 700 hectares with planted maize benefitting 
communities. Ntinga’s role in this project was to do moni-
toring and evaluation. About R700 000 was raised from the 
contributions of the participating communities. A total of 
44 projects were supported. Approximately 200 individuals 
formed part of these projects.

R3,5 million committed to OR Tambo 
from MerSETA

121 people were trained trained in the region

21 people were living with disabilities
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APPRECIATION

FUTURE OUTLOOK 

Looking ahead, Ntinga will continue to engage the shareholder with a view of mobilising 
sufficient financial resources for the implementation of development programmes. Ade-
quate capitalisation of the agency should place it on a sound liquidity position which allow 
it to maintain its going concern status while contributing in a meaningful way to the reali-
sation of the socio-economic aspirations of the region. The agency will continue to assess 
the efficacy of its programmes and whether these respond to the objectives set out in the 
corporate strategy as well as the funding models applicable to identified and approved 
projects. The organisation is committed to a multi-stakeholder collaborative approach to 
development which allow the agency to leverage on partner resources in order to return a 
real socio-economic dividend to the shareholder.

In 2020/21, through funding from the parent municipality, 
the entity bought rams for the purposes of improving local-
ly-produced wool. The rams are given to farmers which are 

already in the wool production industry. In 2020/21, Ntinga 
distributed 600 rams which came at a cost of R2,5 million to 
64 farmers across the district

I thank the leadership of the district municipality for their 
leadership and financial and other support in fulfilment of the 
Ntinga mandate. I am grateful to the leadership of the five 
local municipalities in the district for their consistent support 
in the execution of the Ntinga mandate. I extend my appreci-
ation to the Ntinga Board for its incisive leadership and wise 
counsel in a challenging operating environment. I express my 

sincere gratitude to the management team and staff at large 
for their resilience and creative pursuit in driving the devel-
opment agenda. I am indebted to the entire Ntinga team for 
its determination and loyalty in the execution of our collec-
tive responsibility. Finally, I thank all partners and the various 
public entities that place their resources at the disposal of 
Ntinga in order to effect the desired socio-economic change.

Chief Executive Officer
Loyiso Mbiko
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CHIEF FINANCIAL 
OFFICER’S REVIEW

PART D 
It is with great pleasure to present the financial report for the 
2020/21 financial year. Ntinga began the period under review 
with a great sense of enthusiasm having set a clear strate-
gy and developed a budget to support its implementation. 
The COVID19 restrictions negatively impacted Ntinga’s plans 
as well as the financial results. Despite this, Ntinga has man-
aged to achieve a stable set of financial results. The company 
is proud that it continues to play its role in promoting local 
economic development in the district. Through sound budget-
ing principles and financial discipline, Ntinga has been able 
to remain afloat. Sound financial management remains a key 
focus area and this is evidenced by the admirable track record 
of good audit outcomes.

FINANCIAL POSITION

As at the end of the financial year, the entity was in a net asset position amounting to 
R60,5 million. This implies that Ntinga had enough assets to cover its liabilities. However, 
when comparing short-term (current) assets with short-term liabilities, the picture is not 
very good. Current assets amounted to R15,5 million whereas current liabilities amounted 
to R23,5 million. 

Included in current liabilities is R4,7 million being a provision 
for staff leave. This balance has increased by 4,3% when com-
pared with the previous financial year. One of the contribut-
ing factors is remote working arrangements and staff taking 
fewer vacation leave days. In the next financial year, Ntinga 
will strictly manage the staff leave in order to bring the leave 
provision balance into a reasonable amount.

Non-current assets decreased from R75,1 million in the pre-
vious financial year to R68,6 million in the current year. Land 
and buildings as well as plant and equipment make up 74,7% 
of non-current assets with carrying values of R39,8 million 
and R11,4 million respectively. Included in these assets are 
Adam Kok Farms, Mzikantu Abattoir, Kei Fresh Produce Mar-
ket properties as well as agricultural equipment. 

The value of the entity’s livestock decreased by 12,6% from 
R15 million in the previous year to R13,1 million in the current 
year, 3.6m worth of livestock was transferred to livestock in-
ventory. Livestock comprised of 1,375 herd of cattle at year-
end. Cattle is bred primarily for use as a feeder to the abattoir.

Ntinga’s statement of financial position is summartised 
as follows

Revenue Summary

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE      

The 2020/21 financial performance shows a decline when 
compared with the previous financial year with reported 
losses before tax increasing from R6,1 million to R11,5 million. 
Current year total revenue amounted to R67,4 million and in 
the previous year it was R80,3 million. Total revenue is graph-
ically summarised as follows:

2020/21 Transfers and Subsidies
2020/21 Exchange Revenue (Own generated revenue)
2020/21 Assets Gains

2018/19 Transfers and Subsidies
2018/19 Exchange Revenue (Own generated revenue)
2018/19 Assets Gains

R68,6 million 
Non-current assets value
for current year

R39,8 million 
value for land and buildings

R11,4 million
value for plant and 
equipment

74,7%
of non-current 

assets

Description 2020/21 2019/20

ASSETS

Current Assets R15,536,262 R18,454,272

Non-current Assets R68,626,998 R75,181,029

TOTAL ASSETS      R84,163,260 R93,635,301

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities R23,581,238 R21,455,742

Non-current Liabilities R67,281 R122,420

TOTAL LIABILITIES R23,648,519 R21,578,162

NET ASSETS R60,514,741 R72,057,140

45 mill

40 mill

35 mill

30 mill

25 mill

20 mill

15 mill

10 mill

5 mill
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R79m
Expenditure 

2020/21 R86m
Expenditure 

2019/20

Excluding revenue from non-monetary transactions in the form of asset gains as well as 
value appreciation of biological assets, current year revenue amounted to R64,2 million 
whereas in the previous year it was R71,2 million. 

There was improvement in grant financial support received 
from the parent municipality for operations. It increased from 
R41 million in the previous year to R44,2 million in the current 
year. The continued support from the parent municipality as-
sists in ensuring that the entity delivers on its mandate. 

Ntinga’s strategy entails building and operating a sustainable 
state-owned company. In pursuit of this goal, Ntinga gener-
ates own revenue by providing water services in the form of 
water schemes repairs and maintenance to the parent munic-
ipality. In addition, Ntinga is turning the trading enterprises 
into viable trading centres that can generate revenue and be 
self-sustainable. 

Year to year revenue generation from main sources is 
summarised as follows:

Total expenditure incurred amounted to R78,9 million com-
pared to the R86,4 million of the previous year. The highest 
expenditure item is employee related costs which amounted 
to R44,9 million which constitutes 56,9% of total expenditure 
and 66,6% of total revenue. It is for this reason that new staff 
appointments are for critical positions and those that are rev-
enue generating in nature.

In the current year, the municipality assigned Ntinga to 
implement special projects and amounts received after 
VAT were as follows:

As at the end of the year, stages of implementation and 
expenditure incurred varied per project.

Description 2020/21 2019/20

Consulting (Water Services) R5,343,027 R9,467,045

Abattoir meat sales and 
slaughter services

R10,775,676 R10,873,350

Fresh Produce Market 
commission and rentals

R729,411 R1,571,310

Livestock and crop sales R3,602,978 R1,334,445

SPECIAL PROJECTS

R2,173,913 Wool improvement 

R315,071 earned as commission by Ntinga 

R 1,342,329 RAFI Project

Chief Financial Officer
Mncedisi Mpatheni
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OPERATIONS 
REPORT

PART E 
TRADING ENTEPRISES

Ntinga is engaged in a process of continued improvement in its management of the 
economic assets bestowed upon it by the OR Tambo District Municipality (ORTDM). 
The agency acts as a custodian of three trading enterprises which are envisioned to 
inject enthusiasm and resilience into the local agricultural value chain. Ntinga does 
this work by deploying various financial and non-financial tools which are geared to 
unlock value in the agricultural assets in the hands of communal farmers and turning 
these into engines of economic growth and development.

It is common cause that the OR Tambo region possesses an exciting potential for 
primary production as well as significant backward and forward linkages in the ag-
ricultural value chain. This is especially true for opportunities inherent in processing 
and beneficiation of primary produce. For Ntinga and the region, there remains a 
challenge in creating a new mindset within the communal farming sector from sub-
sistence to commercial farming activities which can create sustainable jobs as well as 
improved revenue generation. Current farming methods among subsistence farmers 
reduce their ability to get fair value for their produce. As such, the agency is con-
tinually engaged in educational and training programmes which aim to encourage 
commercial activity and the introduction of sustainable and viable farming practices 
which add value to the local agricultural sector. 

MARKET ACCESS

This is an overwhelming assignment which 
requires clarity of thought and inventive 
solutions to these pressing socio-economic 
challenges persistent in the district. There-
fore, Ntinga’s posture is not only concerned 
with an improvement in primary produce 
and processing, but also on breaking down 
market access barriers for subsistence farm-
ers who wish to pursue commercial farming 
activities. This is a critical element as it has 
the ability to erode the local farming sector 
if not urgently addressed. Market access is 
therefore a crucial cog in broader economic 
development as it ensures consumer uptake 
for local products. 

In this regard, Ntinga’s three trading enterprises are organ-
ised around a model which encourages linkages between 
the three market elements of primary production, process-
ing and marketing/retail. This is meant to provide a ready 
market for small producers which allows them to secure 
market related prices for their products. The trading enter-
prises are the Kei Fresh Produce Market located in Vulindlela 
in Mthatha, Umzikantu Red Meat Abattoir in Zimbane Mthatha 
and the Adam Kok Farms which are located on 2,600 hectare 
(ha) of farm land in Kokstad.

PARTNERSHIPS

Importantly, Ntinga is acutely aware that its efforts should 
be augmented by inspired collaborations between the pub-
lic/government departments and private sectors. The trad-
ing enterprises operate in a manner that is cognisant of the 
financial and budgetary constraints confronting the public 
purse. Therefore, the trading enterprises programme relies 
on multi-stakeholder support in order to execute its strategic 
objectives by rallying their collective resources for a greater 
development impact. The agency is thus indebted to the var-
ious stakeholder groupings that support Ntinga programmes 
which are aimed at widening and broadening socio-economic 
impact.

KEI FRESH PRODUCE MARKET (KFPM)

The Kei Fresh Produce Market exists to provide a market ac-
cess platform for local producers and local buyers of fresh 
produce. KFPM continues to fulfil this role despite supply 
challenges due to various challenges. Amongst these chal-
lenges is the inability to attract a competent market agent 
that is able to pull volumes of produce. This is an important 
platform which guarantees access to markets for farmers that 
struggle to gain adequate access to the open market for their 
products. The 3,400 square metre facility, procures produce 
from farmers through market agents in the district as well as 
outside the region to retailers in the main. KFPM sells produc-
es such as fruits and vegetables to hawkers, retailers and to 
informal traders through the employment of market agents. 
The agency manages its buy and sell transactions through 
an IT system which conducts daily sales reports, recording 
keeping and daily payments to farmers for produce sold. In 
this regard, Ntinga acts as a watchdog to ensure fair trade 
and also ensures that the operations of the KFPM respond to 
mandate delivery aspirations.

As with all national fresh produce markets, Ntinga makes use 
of market agents who are responsible for sourcing produce 
from farmers, negotiating prices and selling the products to 
the market. The appointed agent operates from the trading 
space provided by the KFPM and is responsible for receiving 
the produce. 

Revenues are paid into the Ntinga bank 
account from where Ntinga receives a 5% 
commission from sales for providing floor 
space and a trading system. Ntinga then makes 
payments to the farmers through the market 
agent which receives a 7,5% commission.

Supply is a serious challenge with the majority of produce 
still being sourced from outside the region. The market is 
faced with an inconsistent supply of fresh fruit and vegeta-
bles. This means that the KFPM cannot capture the informal 
trader market on which all fresh produce markets rely. This 
has the net effect of driving informal traders to other markets 
which results in money leaving the region.
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In order to respond to this challenge, Ntinga is also conduct-
ing market days to identify producers in OR Tambo and then 
sell their produce at Kei Fresh. These plans were executed 
from the 2020/21 financial year but were curtailed by the re-
strictions related to the COVID-19 pandemic in 2020/21. Nt-
inga is therefore lobbying other partners such as the Depart-
ment of Rural Development and Agrarian Reform (DRDAR), 
Small Enterprise Development Agency (SEDA) and local mu-
nicipalities in order to assist KFPM to secure adequate supply 
to service the market. The plan is hold these market days 
on a monthly basis. The enterprise also faces the challenge 
of sourcing competent market agents. This is caused by the 
rural nature of the district. Market agents are complaining 
about logistics, a truck load from other provinces returns 
empty because there are no active industries in the district. 
Some market agents that are showing interest to come have 
been hit hard by COVID-19. As a result, they are waiting for 
the COVID-19 oandemic to stabilise. 

During the period under review, Ntinga only had one market 
agent. Although market agents offered COVID-19 as a reason 
for their reluctance to take up space at KFPM, the challenge 
emanates prior to the onset of the pandemic. Reasons ad-
vanced include the belief that Mthatha is not an industrial 
area which means they can only carry one load of produce to 
Mthatha and they have to return with an empty truck on the 
return trip. This is contrast to other economic centres such as 
East London and Gqeberha where market agents are guar-
anteed loads on both ends of the trip. Ntinga is therefore 
investigating alternatives besides the use of market agents.

OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE

In 2020/21, the Kei Fresh Produce Market sold 2,129 tons of 
fresh produce which is markedly lower than the 2019/20 fig-
ure of 5,109.43 tons owing to the supply challenges being 
experienced as well as the impact of COVID-19 on opera-
tions. As a result, the 5% commissioned earned by Ntinga 
from fresh produce sales reduced from R909,075 in 2019/20 
to R413,102.76.

Sales were mainly comprised of potatoes and onions. A sub-
stantial portion of the sales went to the informal market in the 
form of hawkers and spaza shops. The Spar stores in Mthatha 
and Engcobo continue to source produce from KFPM.

Inconsistency of supply continued to pose a significant chal-
lenge to the KFPM’s sustainability during the period under 
review. The inconsistent supply of quality produce results in 
local retailers sourcing produce from East London, Pieter-
maritzburg and Durban. This issue was further exacerbated 
by the lack of a competent market agent in 2020/21. Ntinga is 
actively pursuing the deployment of competent and innova-
tive market agencies in order to boost trading performance. 
Furthermore, the Kei Fresh Produce Market’s management 
team has embarked on an initiative to establish a BEE Market 
Agent with other stakeholders in the district in an attempt 
to increase open market access opportunities for local black 
farmers. The proposed BEE Market Agent will have as one of 
its priority tasks the co-ordination of local farmers in order to 
establish and ramp up quality local production.

Land ownership patterns continue to be a major stranglehold 
on consistency of supply. The majority of rural land lies in the 
hands of individual families which curtails supply consisten-
cy. Other factors such as poor infrastructure, unreliable water 
supply and a lack of irrigation systems further compound the 
challenge.

ADAM KOK FARMS

The seven Adam Kok farms in Kokstad perform a crucial 
supply role for the Kei Fresh Produce Market as well as for 
the Umzikantu Red Meat Abattoir. The 2600ha farms are in-
volved in beef production and crop farming which are inputs 
for the other two trading enterprises. The activities of the 
farms are geared toward improving local crop farming and 
in particular livestock production. The Adam Kok Farms do 
this by employing tools and programmes which are meant to 
improve the quality and condition of local livestock which is 
geared for the market. the improvement in the quality of local 
livestock has a direct bearing on the ability of local farmers 
to fetch higher prices for their livestock in the open market.2,129

tons of produce 
in 2020/215,109

tons of produce 
in 2019/20

R413,102.76 (5%) commission earned by Ntinga

The 2600ha 
farms 
are involved in 
beef production 
and crop farming

It is possible to keep an average of 1,400 animals on open 
veld farming on the 2,600ha farms which is in line with in-
dustry standards. However, on a feedlot more animals are 
accommodated. Adam Kok Farms uses open veld farming 
in the main. The farms also have a custom feedlot for ani-
mals that are culled from breeding stock and animals that 
Adam Kok buys for Mzikantu Abattoir. The farms source an-
imals to supply Umzikantu Abattoir which gets animals in 
two ways. Firstly, the abattoir receives culled animals pro-
duced at the Adam Kok Farms. The abattoir only slaughters 
and sells Grade C meat which is old cattle which has to be 
culled and taken out of the production cycle. Grade A meat 
is calflings and Grade B are heifers and steers. The Grade C 
cattle is sourced from local farmers and they have to be taken 
to a customer feedlot to be fed at Adam Kok Farms and at 
Kwezi as a waiting area for slaughter. They are fed in order 
to improve their fat content. The market in the region cannot 
afford expensive meat in the form of Grade A and B and thus 
only Grade C meat is slaughtered and sold at Umzikantu Ab-
attoir. As such, there is not enough capacity to supply cattle 
to Umzikantu for slaughter.

As a result of capacity challenges, Adam Kok Farms sources 
animals from local producers in the form of subsistence farm-
ers. However, the challenge is that subsistence farmers do 
not comply with the law which requires that Ntinga only buys 
branded animals which is required to trace their origin. Their 
animals are unbranded. Ntinga therefore conducts education 
programmes in communities on how to properly brand their 
animals.

While the OR Tambo region has the high-
est number of animals in the Eastern Cape, 
Adam Kok Farms still has to source a sig-
nificant number of animals from outside 
the region. Animals are bought on auction 
at Kokstad in KwaZulu/Natal because of 
non-compliance with laws and regulations 
by local farmers as well as the poor quality 
of livestock.

Ntinga has engaged DRDAR on a partnership to educate peo-
ple about methods to improve the quality and price of their 
livestock. This collaboration is important because Ntinga is 
located at the tail end of the value chain and does not have 
the resources to help small farmers to produce the required 
quality and quantities. Partners such as DRDAR, which has 
extension officers who can carry out the training initiatives, 

are a crucial component of this collaboration. Ntinga is also 
in conversation with feedlots in Mount Frere and Mqanduli in 
order to secure cattle from them. There exists a Memoran-
dum of Understanding (MoU) with Mdeni Feedlot in Qumbu. 

The Adam Kok Farms are also engaged in a heifer exchange 
programme with local farmers in order to improve the quali-
ty of their flock. Popular breeds are Bonsmara and brahman 
that are produced and supplied to farmers. Adam Kok Farms 
goes to farmers who exchange their old cows for the heif-
ers, assess the quality and age of an old animal and the ex-
change for slaughter. This is a development programme from 
which Ntinga derives no short-term financial benefit. Howev-
er, farmers get better quality and well-conditioned animals 
which fetch higher prices at the market. Ntinga will create a 
market by buying good quality animals from local farmers. 

Adam Kok Farms also carries out a bull loaning initiative. 
Farmers apply to Adam Kok Farms indicating the number of 
heifers and cows in their possession and the request for a 
bull loan is processed. if the application is successful, a bull 
is delivered to a farmer for a maximum of four seasons. The 
ratio of bulls to cows needs to be maintained at 1:30 in or-
der to improve production. This means the farmer must have 
enough cows to service the bull as well as enough grazing 
land. This programme is also meant to ensure that commu-
nal farmers produce good quality livestock. As such, Ntinga 
creates a market for them and buys from farmers in a market 
related price.

CROP PRODUCTION 

Adam Kok Farms is also engaged in crop production with 
200ha of arable land available for crop and animal feed 
production. There is natural water and a number of dams 
available although they need attention. The quality of wa-
ter available is of a high quality. Potatoes are produced at a 
substantial scale as well as cabbages and butternut. There 
is a plan to get 50ha close to irrigation. The crops are sold 
to the KFPM, Pietermaritzburg and to other communities in 
Kokstad.

There is about 35ha of land for orchards. 
Currently, there are nine hectares used for 
orchard. These nine hectare are comprised 
of five hectares of apples and four hectares 
of peach. Ntinga is looking at reviving the 
orchard and an agronomist is being en-
gaged to determine their feasibility.
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OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE

In 2020/21, the Adam Kok Farms supplied 684 cattle for 
slaughter to Umzikantu Red Meat Abattoir. Of this number, 
327 cattle were from the farm herd and 357 were sourced 
from auctions and a smaller number from emerging farmers 
in the region.
The total revenue generated from the sale of the 327 cattle 
supplied to Umzikantu Abattoir was R3,8 million.
A total of 60ha was utilised for animal feed in the form of 
maize and sorghum for animal feed as well as cabbages 
planted on 7,5ha for revenue enhancement.

UMZIKANTU ABATTOIR

The Umzikantu Abattoir is designed to meet the market 
access aspirations of livestock producers in the region. It 
ensures that there is a market for subsistence livestock 
producers while encouraging them to pursue value addi-
tion and commercial farming activities. The abattoir is con-
strained by the fact that it only slaughters and sells Grade 
C meat because of the socio-economic status of its market. 
local consumers cannot afford Grade A and B meat which 
is costlier. Ideally, the abattoir aims to source the majority 
of its livestock from the local farmers and Adam Kok Farms 
which would act as a feeder channel and ensure the sustain-
ability of the operation. There continues to be a dire need 
to educate farmers on useful farming methods which should 
prevent them from keeping their livestock until they are very 
old which leads to a deterioration in weight and condition. 
Farmers need to be educated on animal identification using 
registered brand marks.

The abattoir has a licence to slaughter 50 units a day. A unit 
is equivalent to one cow or four pigs or six sheep. Due to the 
unavailability of animals and the lack of access to markets, 
only 15% of the abattoir’s capacity is utilised. The abattoir 
needs a deboning facility to penetrate the retail market. Nt-
inga is engaging partners to maximise capacity by construct-
ing more lines, a deboning facility and a meat market. The 
abattoir continues to slaughter for communities, butcheries 
and for functions such as weddings, funerals and other tradi-
tional or cultural activities. The abattoir has the potential to 
break even in a two-year period. However, growth and profit-
ability is constrained by the slaughter of only Grade C cattle 
which fetches lower prices. Profitability would be significant-
ly enhanced if the abattoir were to slaughter all three grades. 
However, the Adam Kok Farms cannot supply Grade A and B 
as there is no market for it in the region. The profitability of 
the abattoir depends on the volumes of animals it slaughters.  

OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE

During the review period, Umzikantu slaughtered 568.92 
livestock units for butcheries and communities. The abattoir 
charged R540 to slaughter a cow, R3.00 per kg to slaughter 
a pig and R150.00 to slaughter a sheep in the period under 
review. 

A total of 887.50 units were slaughtered for meat sales. 
Again, the sales figures were affected by the CVOID-19 re-
strictions which reduced the number of people allowed to 
gather for events such as funerals, weddings and other tradi-
tional ceremonies.

Revenue generated from meat sales and slaughter fees was 
R10,7 million. In addition, 175.50 pig units were sourced from 
the piggery projects around the ORTDM, Alfred Nzo and 
Chris Hani district municipalities. This translates to a total of 
702 pigs. 

Furthermore, 24 units of sheep were sourced from breeders 
during the period under review which translates to 144 sheep. 
The supply of sheep remains a challenge. Ntinga is continuing 
conversations with local farmers in order to improve the condi-
tion of their sheep. The ram exchange had a positive contribu-
tion on the number of sheep slaughtered by the abattoir.

684 cattle
were supplied for slaughter to 
the Umzikantu Red Meat

R3,8 million
was generated from 
the sale of 327 cattle
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FUTURE OUTLOOK

Once the abattoir is positioned to supply the KFPM Meat 
Market, the slaughter capacity will improve. There will be 
less feet to the abattoir and that will improve the abattoir’s 
compliance with legislation. Revenue generation will improve 
as the meat market will be one of the revenue generating 
streams for the abattoir.  There will be an improvement in the 
grades the abattoir slaughters as there will be a deboning 
facility at KFPM as most retail companies may show interest.    

If the abattoir separates the pig line from the sheep and 
cattle it can be HALAAL approved. Once that is achieved, 
the capacity will also improve as there will be more clientele 
coming from the Muslim community. 

The plan is re-kindle talks with RSA Group in order lobby 
them towards doing business with KFPM so as to improve 
sales through increased farmer supply. This will also translate 
to improved revenue generation as well as local economic 
development, particularly on the side of farmers and hawk-
ers. Another effort is to continue talks with national stake-
holders and the provincial department of agriculture in an 
effort to lobby funding for the establishment of a local BEE 
Market Agent. This will help to add value to the local farmers 
whereby produce will have increased access to the market 
via a local market agent who understands the background 
and needs of farmers. Key to the above targets and plans is 
the ability of the parent municipality, Ntinga and KSD Mu-
nicipality to solve challenges related to electricity supply in 
the area. This is important because electricity is key to the 
running of a fresh produce market where stock needs to be 
kept fresh in the fridges for future sales.

Partnerships are also important in lobbying funding, infra-
structure provision, research and technology development. 
More off-take agreements will be signed with potential local 
suppliers of fresh produce to Kei Fresh. 

In addition, KFPM is one of 24 national 
fresh produce market is South Africa which 
are using the commission-based system. 
A discussion paper has been developed to 
look at various options of running a fresh 
produce market. Research outcomes are 
clear that the commission-based system is 
still the best in South Africa because of its 
advantages. 

One of the advantages of using a commissioned system is 
that it is easy to use and easy to understand. Farmers can 
access the system through their phones to track the sales of 
their consignments and to have access to records of profits 
made from sales. 

The system is linked between Freshmark, Market Agent, the 
market and farmer. The system is monitored by various peo-
ple and this means the risk of financial or consignment losses 
is minimal. The system is also able to generate information 
going back ten years for the purposes of conducting mar-
ket analysis and market performance for an identified period. 
Traceability of various fresh produce is highly possible in this 
type of system as consignment stock is recorded separately 
in the system upon arrival.

Adam Kok is looking at ways of reviving the orchard. Indus-
try experts suggest that the orchard could be a milk cow for 
Adam Kok and could carry all the operational expenditure of 
Adam Kok. Adam Kok is also exploring possible business in 
producing lurcene which would be sold to local farmers in 
O.R. Tambo and surrounding municipalities.
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WATER SERVICES
Access to a safe and reliable water supply remains a challenge that requires a co-ordinat-
ed approach across all levels of government in order to realise the collective aspiration of 
universal access. Such universal access is a basic human need. Access to safe and reliable 
water supply places a critical role in reducing the burden of disease and death particular-
ly among children. Access to this life sustaining resource encourages young children to 
stay in school thus improving the educational and literacy prospects of vulnerable com-
munities in particular. 

In essence, access to a safe and reliable water supply has a 
domino effect on all other aspects of our socio-economic 
life. Access to this increasingly scarce resource is a pivot 
to energised economic activity. As a result, inconsistent 
water supply has the effect of limiting the economic pros-
pects of towns and cities as investors take their money 
elsewhere. If not properly managed, inadequate water 
supply can destroy industry and by extension jobs.

The constitution realises the need for basic access to wa-
ter and through the Water Services Act it entrenches the 
right of access to basic water supply and sanitation ser-
vices. The Act states that every water services institution 
must take steps to realise this right and that every munici-
pality must plan in its water services development plan to 
realise this right.

In recognition of the demands laid out in the Water Ser-
vices Act, the ORTDM has empowered Ntinga to provide 
a maintenance and repair role of its water services infra-
structure in order to ensure consistent supply to commu-
nities in the region. The district municipality embarked on 
this programme with the realisation that improved eco-
nomic activity and social cohesion will be underpinned by 
basic access to water. Ntinga discharges this role aware 
of the significant infrastructural challenges facing the wa-
ter sector in the region. It therefore relies on capitalisation 
from ORTDM in order to carry out essential maintenance 
of water infrastructure.

Access to basic water services also has to be balanced 
with responsibility to pay for services rendered. This is 
critical if the municipality’s ability to supply basic water 
access is to be guaranteed. Ntinga has thus undergone a 
process of ensuring that beneficiaries pay for water used. 
The agency undertakes this work mindful of those com-
munities who are considered indigent and cannot pay for 
this service. 

MANDATE 

The ORTDM’s mandate to Ntinga is multi-pronged and it 
is hinged on water asset management, relationship man-
agement as well as water service systems operations. The 
agency’s daily activities include the servicing and mainte-
nance of water schemes, refurbishment of non-functional 
schemes, operating as a quick response unit, peri-urban 
billing, water services by-law enforcement and social facil-
itation among other activities. Ntinga is tasked with main-
taining 93 water schemes within the King Sabatha Dalin-
dyebo Local Municipality (KSD) which has 36 wards with 
a population of more than 400 000 people. 

In 2020/21, Ntinga set out as its primary objective the 
need to carry its maintenance and repair activities on wa-
ter infrastructure in order to guarantee supply to commu-
nities. Over the years, the ORTDM has done a remarkable 
job in building bulk infrastructure. The main challenge is 
the maintenance of this infrastructure which is a costly ex-
ercise. The maintenance of the water infrastructure is not 
optional in order to ensure that it runs its useful life for the 
benefit of the people of the region.

93
water schemes
maintained by 

Ntinga

400,000
people are serviced by 
the water schemes in 
36 wards 

REVENUE MANAGEMENT

In addition, the focus was on the expansion of the reve-
nue database of the municipality. The objective is to en-
sure that people that benefit from water services with a 
yard connection are added to the billing database of the 
municipality. The task involved collecting data of all con-
sumers with a yard connection in homes and businesses. 
The objective is not to bill people who access water from 
stand pipes. These individuals receive water according to 
RDP standards. People with no yard connections and the 
indigent are excluded from this exercise as they receive 
free water.

The exercise was confronted by a challenge of some peo-
ple refusing access to their facilities for data collection 
purposes. Ntinga subsequently engaged KSD municipal-
ity which had conducted a house to house verification of 
electricity consumers. The KSD municipality’s electricity 
consumption verification exercise allowed the agency to 
gain the details of water consumers through the electrici-
ty billing system. As such, Ntinga received raw data based 
on the electricity data on the assumption that if one has 
electricity they would have access to a water connection. 
The agency began processing the raw data toward the 
end of the financial year. The final data should be avail-
able in the new financial year. Ntinga is also grateful to the 
ward councillors and traditional leaders who supported 
this initiative. 

CAPITALISATION CHALLENGES

Capitalisation remains a challenge which worsened in the 
2020/21 financial year. The agency submitted a revised 
budget of R11,6 million for water services to the munici-
pality during the review period. The ORTDM could only 
provide R4,5 million of this amount. This is a significant 
funding shortfall which affected Ntinga’s effectiveness. 
For the first half of the year, minimal work was done be-
cause of the budget shortfall. The municipality doesn’t 
have a sufficient budget for repairs and maintenance be-
cause budgets are tied up in other competing priorities. 
This situation compounds the challenge of established 
capital projects which derive minimal value because they 
are not properly maintained. There is therefore, an urgent 
need to place a significant focus on maintenance of water 
infrastructure. 

As a result, the agency could only do repair work which 
didn’t require materials. In instances where a scheme 
needed materials, the agency submitted a report to the 
municipality on the work required. The funding shortfall 
resulted in a funding deficit for the year. The deficit was 

caused by fixed costs such as salaries and wages. The 
water services function employs 17 people which means 
the bulk of the R4,5 million budget went to staff salaries. 
These employees include a systems engineer, technicians, 
millwrights, electricians, instrument technicians, artisans, 
artisan aids, fitter and turner, fitter and turner aid, custom-
er liaison, enforcement officers, social facilitators, plumb-
ers as well as administrative personnel. The set of skills 
was chosen in order to reduce reliance on external service 
providers as well as to avoid duplication of work already 
by the municipality’s personnel. The salary bill for the 
function is R9,2 million. However, the agency was able to 
realise a saving on the salary bill when the water services 
director’s contract was not renewed when it expired at the 
end of March 2021. However, this meant that Ntinga ended 
the year without a leader for the water services function. 
The agency cannot extend employment contracts without 
the necessary funding. 
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OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE

During the period under review, the agency 
divided its targets into repairs and mainte-
nance. Repair work entailed schemes which 
are not working and attending to them. 
The target was to repair 16 schemes. As 
a result of the funding constraints Ntinga 
could only conduct repairs on six schemes 
in 2020/21. 

Ntinga is required to maintain 93 schemes with the inten-
tion of having all these schemes in working order. Ntinga 
could only maintain 16 of the 93 schemes because of a 
shortage of funds. The maintained schemes ran through-
out the year. This indicates that when adequately funded, 
the water services function is able to deliver effectively on 
its mandate.

Ntinga remains fully-committed to the water mandate. 
Discussions about the funding model between the agency 
and the parent municipality are underway. The outcomes 
of these discussions will determine future plans as well as 
roles and responsibilities of both parties. 

PROJECT 
MANAGEMENT 
OFFICE
The agency is responsible for the execution of an internal 
and external stakeholder project pipeline in addition to 
its trading enterprises and water services functions. The 
project management office provides high value project 
design and execution expertise which ensures the delivery 
of high impact priority projects. Ntinga is thus empowered 
to implement discretionary projects which allow the agen-
cy to focus on its core mandate outcomes. 

The project management office supports internal Ntinga 
projects and those of other stakeholders. During the peri-
od under review, the efficacy of the project management 
office was greatly affected by resource constraints which 
resulted in poor performance.

However, the office managed to develop a project selec-
tion and management policy during the period under re-
view, and in terms of this policy a project charter template 
has also been developed. 

The project charter template was developed in 2020/21 
and it will be submitted to the Board for approval in Oc-
tober of 2021/22. The charter identifies the units under 
which an identified project falls within the agency, the 
element of the mandate it addresses and the goals and 
objectives it responds to. It details funders and partners 
and the sources of funding.

The policy and resultant template are designed to assist 
management not to fall into the trap of accepting projects 
that fall outside the Ntinga mandate. Secondly, it helps Nt-
inga to ensure that prior to accepting and implementing 
any project, required funding is secured and guaranteed. 

At the governance level, the template provides for sev-
eral prescripts that need to be complied with in terms of 
project authorisation. Identified projects are envisaged to 
pass scrutiny by three Board Subcommittees, those are 
the Strategy, Development and Investment Committee, 
the Audit and Risk Committee and the Social and Ethics 
Committee. These Board committees have an interest in 
projects undertaken by the project management office 
to ensure compliance, value for money, and to determine 
their socio-economic impact.

INVESTOR ATTRACTION

In addition, the office is also required to promote trade 
and investment activities which attract investors into the 
region. In this regard, Ntinga continued to interact with 
the Eastern Cape Socio-Economic Consultative Council 
(ECSECC) in preparation for the Eastern Cape Investment 
Conference. As part of the preparations for the confer-
ence, Ntinga contributed to the investment book of the 
province by using information collected from the local 
municipalities of the district in partnership with the dis-
trict municipality. The book showcases investment oppor-
tunities identified within OR Tambo.

Ntinga is working with the district and local municipalities 
to finalise the hosting of the OR Tambo Investment Con-
ference. The plan is to finalise the conference plan by the 
end of the 2021/22 financial year. The implementation of 
the conference has been plagued by delays related to the 
COVID-19 pandemic which placed restrictions on people 
movement and on gatherings. 

CO-OPERATIVES DEVELOPMENT 

The operationalisation of the OR Tambo Co-operative Development Centre was hindered by disagreements over its 
institutional arrangements during the 2020/21 financial year. The centre is designed to provide support to co-operatives 
and their associations. As a means to developing the centre, Ntinga registered a non-profit organisation which had to 
have Board members drawn from co-operatives and those deemed to be independent with no interest in the businesses 
of the co-operatives concerned. The number of independent directors also needs to be more than those that have a di-
rect interest in order to avoid a conflict of interest and to promote good governance. Secondly, according to an original 
plan, funding for the NPO was channelled to Ntinga by the ORTDM. However, centre board of directors preferred the 
funds to be transferred directly to it. As a result of the co-operatives refusing to buy-into these governance principles, 
progress was constrained as legislation does not allow the preferences of the centre board of directors. Discussions to 
under differences, and progress in this regard is expected in the new financial year.

RURAL AGRO-INDUSTRIES FINANCE 
INITIATIVE (RAFI) 

Ntinga continued to work under RAFI to support co-oper-
atives on two levels. Firstly, money was secured from the 
Manufacturing, Engineering and Related Services Sector 
Education and Training Authority (MerSETA) to mainly 
train co-operatives on skills such as operating and repair-
ing tractors and plant production among other topics. A 
total of R3,5 million from MerSETA was committed to OR 
Tambo through the Chris Hani Co-operative Development 
Centre. 121 persons from across the five O.R. Tambo Dis-
trict local municipalities were trained, and 21 of these were 
persons living with disabilities. While 30 were not neces-
sarily co-op members, 91 were drawn from co-operatives.

 

Secondly, Ntinga has selected seven projects/co-opera-
tives which are developing plans and submitting funding 
proposals to the national treasury and to the Industrial De-
velopment Corporation (IDC). These co-operatives have a 

total 103 members and have a combined 651.39 hectares 
on which they plan to produce to produce vegetables. A 
review done indicated that viable vegetables in the region 
as cabbage, tomatoes, peppers, spinach and beetroot. 

The proposals include the development of 
a packhouse for the seven projects which 
will work closely with the KFPM to supply 
it thereby providing market access for the 
vegetables produced. A total of R20 million 
in capital expenditure is required. There is 
already a take-off agreement with George-
based Next Level Investments Property 
Limited indicating that they will buy the 
produce of these seven projects. Ntinga is 
awaiting the response of the IDC and na-
tional treasury on the proposals.

The agency is also soliciting funding from Sibanye Stillwa-
ter for the hydroponics project. These discussions are at 
an advanced stage. The company has indicated that they 
will look into the funding request in their new window of 
applications in the 2021/22 financial year.

R3,5 million committed to OR Tambo 
from MerSETA

121 people were trained trained in the region

21 people were living with disabilities
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AGRICULTURE DEVELOPEMNT

In 2020/21, Ntinga assisted communities 
throughout OR Tambo to plant 700 hectares 
with planted maize benefitting communities. 

Ntinga’s role in this project was to do monitoring and eval-
uation. Money for the project was transferred to the Chris 
Hani Co-operative Development Centre by the ORTDM. 
The project was valued at R21 million. This is not a com-
mercial project which is being championed. Each project 
that participated in the 700 hectares was required to con-
tribute R1,800 per hectare as their own contribution and 
commitment to the project. About R700 000 was raised 
from the contributions of the participating communities. 

Other projects contributed in-kind by making available 
their own tractors and fertilisers. In return, they received 
mechanisation support in the form of tractors for plough-
ing, discing the land and assisting them with planting and 
applying fertilisers as well as chemicals to kill weeds and 
insects. In addition, they benefitted from chemicals, ma-
nure and fertilisers bought by the municipality through 
Ntinga. A total of 44 projects were supported. Approxi-
mately 200 individuals formed part of these projects.

WOOL INDUSTRY DEVELOPMENT 
PROGRAMME

In 2020/21, the project management office also bought 
rams for the purposes of improving locally-produced wool. 
The rams are given to farmers which are already in the wool 
production industry. For one to qualify for one ram or bull, 
a farmer has to provide Ntinga with sheep that are ready 
for slaughter. The rams are for mating to improve livestock 
and the quality of wool harvested from the sheep. Ntinga 
takes these sheep and fattens them and then send them to 
Umzikantu Abattoir for slaughter. The money generated is 
used to sustain the programme. In 2020/21, Ntinga gave 
away 600 rams which came at a cost of R2 500 000.00 
to 64 farmers. Ntinga procures the rams from local entre-
preneurs. It is still early to tell the impact of this exchange 
programme at this stage. Farmers supported are drawn 
from all local municipalities. However, the concentration of 
sheep is in Mhlontlo, KSD and Nyandeni. 

TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT

In addition, in 2018/19, Ntinga requested service providers 
to help raise funding for training and skills development 
initiatives within our communities. One of the contracted 
companies, Anda Consulting, managed to secure money 
from the Mineworkers Qualifications Authority (MQA) to 
train 35 ex-mine workers on leadership training. The same 
company secured funding from the Transport Education 
Training Authority (TETA) to train 50 graduates. The 
graduates were trained in workplace readiness and lead-
ership. The graduates were trained for six months with 
two months in class and four months in the workplace. 
However, placements were stalled due to challenges with 
the service provider concerned. The learners were eligible 
to receive stipends of up to R3,000 per month from TETA. 
A total of R2 725 000 was secured from TETA and MQA.

600 rams

were given away 
to 64 farmers

R700,000

was raised from participating community contributions

R2,5 million

was the cost of 
the 600 rams

PERFORMANCE 
INFORMATION

PART F 
Ntinga measures its performance against its overarching strategy on the 
Service Delivery and Budget Implementation Plan (SDIP) using relevant key 
performance indicators (KPIs). In tracking its performance for the year un-
der review, Ntinga also reflects on the progress made relating to the four 
strategic goals and hereby tables the statutory Annual Performance Report 
for the 2020/2021 financial year.
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 STRATEGIC GOAL 1 SUSTAINABLE WATER SERVICES (WATER SUPPLY AND SANITATION) SYSTEMS

Objectives Key Perfor-
mance Indicator

Baseline 2019/20 Original 2020/21 
Annual Performance 
Target

Revised 2020/2021 Annual 
performance Target

Annual  
Actual Performance

Annual Performance 
Variance & Reasons

Corrective Measure Means of Verification Custodian

1.1 Provide repair and 
physical infrastructure 
maintenance services 
to peri urban and rural 
village water supply 
schemes

1.1.1 Number of  
repaired water 
supply schemes, 
revenue generat-
ed from repairs 
in each water 
supply scheme, 
revenue generat-
ed from main-
tenance in each 
water supply 
scheme

Refurbishment of 50 
water schemes.

Repairing of 22 water 
schemes

Repairing of 16 water schemes: 
Mqhekezweni; Magubu Nkalane; 
Mxambule; Upper Qweqwe; 
Kunene Mahodini; Maqadini/
Xhongorha; Mbane; Lukhwethu; 
Kotishini; Biltane; Ndibela; Mnc-
wasa, Upper Ntlangaza/Hlabat-
shane; Dobe; Eluxolweni; Bityi 
Sparks

Not Achieved: Of 
the planned 16 water 
schemes, 6 were re-
paired. The following 
6 water schemes were 
repaired: Mqhekezwe-
ni; Magubu Nkalane; 
Kunene Mahodini; 
Kotishini; Biltane; Bityi 
Sparks.   

Of the planned schemes, the 
following 10 were not repaired: 
Mxambule, Upper Qweqwe, 
Maqadini/Xhongorha, Mbane, 
Lukhwethu, Ndibela, Mncwasa, 
Upper Ntlangaza/Hlabatshane, 
Dobe, Eluxolweni. However, 
although not planned, addition-
al 43 schemes were repaired. 
There was a lack of funds for 
purchasing spares & materials 
required to attend the ex-
tent of work necessary on the 
planned schemes. The additional 
schemes which were repaired 
did not require a lot of work.

The Council resolution 
for the funding of  the 
water services func-
tion will address the 
problem. Executive 
Mayor indicated that 
the municipality con-
templates suspending 
the water mandate.

Job Cards for 
repaired Water 
Schemes (Q1-Q4)

 Head: Water 
Services

Maintenance of 93 
water schemes

Annual target not revised Not achieved: 16 
water schemes were 
maintained.

Lack of funds for purchasing 
spares & materials

The Council resolution 
for the funding of  the 
water services func-
tion will address the 
problem. Executive 
Mayor indicated that 
the municipality con-
templates suspending 
the water mandate.

Job Cards for 
Maintained Water 
Schemes (Q1- Q4)

 Head: Water 
Services

1.2 Provide accurate 
data of households, 
businesses, that have 
yard connections and 
levy the approved 
tariff each consumer 
category

1.2.1 Number of 
households that 
have yard con-
nections in each 
water supply 
scheme, number 
of churches and 
schools that 
have yard water 
connections in 
each water sup-
ply scheme

Households and 
Businesses with yard 
water connections 
in each water supply 
scheme, Business-
es with yard water 
connections in 
each water supply 
scheme, Churches 
and schools with 
yard water connec-
tions in each water 
supply schemes

Collecting data from 
500 businesses , col-
lecting 150 Churches 
and schools, collect-
ing 1500 households

collecting data from 1250 
households, 300 businesses, 50 
churches, 50 schools

Not Achieved: No 
data collected

The entity prepared a plan to 
collect data on water consum-
ers in areas targeted for billing. 
We required the support of 
the parent of the municipal-
ity. Prevailing challenges at 
the municipality coupled with 
uncertainty about the entity's 
continued involvement in the 
water mandate disturbed plans 
on data collection.

 We are waiting for 
confirmation about 
the entity's contin-
ued involvement in 
the water mandate. 
Support of the parent 
municipality particu-
lar at political level is 
required in order to 
achieve this target. 

Consumer Data 
collected (Q1 - Q4)

 Head: Water 
Services

1.2.2    Revenue 
generated by 
water services 
department from 
maintenance of 
water schemes

R10,172,346.00 R15,288,900.00 
generated from water 
services operations

R11,644,446 revenue generated 
from water services operations

Not Achieved: 
R4,559,066 gen-
erated from water 
services operations

Water schemes not refurbished 
due to non-availability of funds 
from the Municipality

The Council resolu-
tion for the funding 
of  the water services 
function will address 
the problem.

* Invoices 
* Proof of payment

Head: Water 
Services 

1.2.3    Revenue 
generated from 
billing water 
consumers

Nil R1 million collected 
from billing water 
consumers.

R500 000 collected from billing 
water consumers.

Not Achieved: No 
revenue collected 
from water consum-
ers

Consumer data collection could 
not be finalised due to uncer-
tainty about the entity's con-
tinued involvement in the water 
mandate

The Council Resolu-
tion on the Entity's 
involvement in the 
water mandate will 
solve the problem 

* Invoices 
* Proof of payment

CFO

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 

Achieved

Overachieved

Not achieved
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 STRATEGIC GOAL 2 ENHANCED AND ENABLED FULL VALUE CHAINS (UPSTREAM AND DOWNSTREAM) FOR 
AGRICULTURAL PRODUCE, MARKETS, ABATTOIR AND AQUACULTURE

Strategic Objectives Key Perfor-
mance Indicator

Baseline 2019/20 2020/21 Annual 
Performance Target

Revised 2020/2021 Annual 
performance Target

Annual 
Actual Performance"

Performance Variance and 
Reasons

Corrective Measure Means of Verification Custodian

2.1 Improve productiv-
ity and profitability of 
Umzikantu Abattoir by 
30 June 2021.

2.1.1 Number of 
livestock units 
slaughtered for 
communities, 
butcheries and 
other

541.75  Livestock 
units slaughtered for 
communities,

900 Livestock units 
slaughtered for com-
munities, butcheries, 
and others. (50% 
increase from the pre-
vious financial year)

675  Livestock units slaughtered 
for communities, butcheries, and 
others. 

Not Achieved : 
568.92 Livestock units 
slaughtered for com-
munities, butcheries 
and others

Underperformed by 31.08 Live-
stock units slaughtered for com-
munities, butcheries and others. 
This is due to the fact that:                  
1.  The funerals, weddings etc 
have been suspended because 
of covid so communities are not 
slaughtering as they used to. 
2. We mainly slaughter pigs 
for correctional services                           
3. The Animal Identification Act 
is being Heavily implemented 
where no animal without the 
proper identification is allowed 
in the abattoir. . 

This is difficult to con-
trol as this outcome 
because of the Covid 
outbreak and as the 
abattoir we rely on 
people who come 
requesting to use the 
abattoir.

 Batch control docu-
ments.

 Head: Trading 
Enterprises

2.1.2 Number of 
livestock units 
slaughtered for 
sale, towards 
abattoir full 
capacity

956.67 Livestock 
units slaughtered 

1155 Livestock units 
slaughtered for sale, 
towards abattoir 
full capacity. (2.37% 
Decline from the pre-
vious financial year)

811Livestock units of cattle, 184 
livestock units of pigs and 10 
livestock units of sheep slaugh-
tered for sale, towards abattoir 
full capacity.

Not Achieved: 887.50 
Livestock units(688 
units of cattle, 175.5 
units of pigs and 
24 units of sheep)  
slaughtered for meat 
sales towards abattoir 
full capacity

slaughtered 117.50 less Livestock 
units  for sale, towards abattoir 
full capacity. Reasons for this 
are: The suspension of livestock 
auctions due to Covid regula-
tions. The poor quality of sheep 
slaughtered, the inability of local 
farmers to supply the abattoir 
with livestock due to the Animal 
Identification Act and the short-
age of pigs as the abattoir has 
no constant supplier for pigs. 
There also had been problems 
with the budget which resulted 
to the abattoir using manual 
slaughter techniques.    

The entity needs to 
secure sufficient sup-
ply for all the abattoir 
lines and also intensi-
fy marketing.  There is 
also a need to secure 
enough budget for 
the abattoir opera-
tions. 

 Batch control docu-
ments.

 Head: Trading 
Enterprises

2.1.3 Revenue 
generated from 
meat sales and 
slaughter fees

R10,873,350.00 
Revenue generated 
from meat sales and 
slaughter fees

R7,367,615.00  Rev-
enue generated 
from meat sales 
and slaughter fees. 
(26.77% increase from 
the previous financial 
year)

R11,800,000.00  Revenue 
generated from meat sales and 
slaughter fees.     

Not Achieved: R10 
775 676.38 Revenue 
generated from meat 
sales and slaughter 
fees

 Underperformed by R1 024 
323.62.  Reasons for this are: 
The suspension of livestock 
auctions due to Covid regula-
tions. The poor quality of sheep 
slaughtered, the inability of local 
farmers to supply the abattoir 
with livestock due to the Animal 
Identification Act and the short-
age of pigs as the abattoir has 
no constant supplier for pigs. 
There also had been problems 
with the budget which resulted 
to the abattoir using manual 
slaughter techniques. 

The entity needs to 
secure sufficient sup-
ply for all the abattoir 
lines and also intensi-
fy marketing.  There is 
also a need to secure 
enough budget for 
the abattoir opera-
tions. 

 Financial Reports  Head: Trading 
Enterprises

2.2   Improve function-
ality and viability of Kei 
Fresh Produce Market 
(KFPM) by initially 
focusing and target-
ing linkages of fruits, 
vegetables and meat 
industry supply chains 
by 30 June 2021.

2.2.1 Tonnage 
of agricultural 
produce sold by 
Market Agents

5109 tons 6 538 Tons of agricul-
tural produce sold by 
Market Agents.

3,000 Tons of agricultural pro-
duce sold by Market Agents.

Not Achieved:                   
2129  Tons of agricul-
tural produce sold by 
Market Agent from Q1 
to Q4 of 2020-21

A negative variance  871 Tons of 
agricultural fresh produce was 
experienced. Currently, there is 
only one (1) market agent on the 
trading floor.

Market Management 
is under discussions 
with O.R. Tambo 
District Stakeholders 
to assist with efforts 
to  establish BEE 
Market Agent. This 
will increase market 
access opportunities 
at KFPM. 

Freshmark System 
monthly reports.

 Head: Trading 
Enterprises
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 STRATEGIC GOAL 2 ENHANCED AND ENABLED FULL VALUE CHAINS (UPSTREAM AND DOWNSTREAM) FOR 
AGRICULTURAL PRODUCE, MARKETS, ABATTOIR AND AQUACULTURE

Strategic Objectives Key Perfor-
mance Indicator

Baseline 2019/20 2020/21 Annual 
Performance Target

Revised 2020/2021 Annual 
performance Target

Annual 
Actual Performance"

Performance Variance and 
Reasons

Corrective Measure Means of Verification Custodian

2.2.2 Revenue 
generated from 
5% commission 
of agricultural  
produce sold

R909 075 revenue R2,045,821.05  Reve-
nue generated from 
5% commission of 
agricultural produce 
sold.

R1,103 641,20  Revenue gener-
ated from 5% commission of 
agricultural produce sold.

Not achieved:              
R413,102.76  Revenue 
generated from agri-
cultural produce sold 
by Market Agent from 
Q1 to Q4 of 2020-21

A negative variance of 
R690,358.24 (5% Commission 
was experienced. Currently, 
there is 1 market agent and is 
under performing in terms of 
bringing in produce and pushing 
sales.

Market Management 
is in talks with O.R. 
Tambo District Stake-
holders to assist with 
efforts to  establish 
BEE Market Agent. 
This will increase mar-
ket access opportuni-
ties at KFPM. 

Freshmark System 
monthly reports.

Head: Trading 
Enterprises

2.2.3 Full utili-
sation of KFPM 
floor space for 
revenue gener-
ation

2 Market Agents 
trading at KFPM

1  Additional compet-
itive Market Agent 
secured who can feel 
floor space

Annual target not revised Not Achieved: Market 
Management was 
not able to secure 1 
market agent.

Market Management is in talks 
with O.R. Tambo District Stake-
holders to assist with efforts 
to  establish BEE Market Agent. 
This will increase market access 
opportunities at KFPM. 

Market Management 
is in talks with O.R. 
Tambo District Stake-
holders to assist with 
efforts to  establish 
BEE Market Agent. 
This will increase mar-
ket access opportuni-
ties at KFPM. 

Freshmark System 
monthly reports.

 Head: Trading 
Enterprises

2.2.4 Revenue 
generated from 
meat sales. 

None 132 382.52 Kilograms 
sold by the Market

19 752,13 kilograms sold by the 
market

Not Achieved: Meat Market was not established 
as planned, due to budget con-
straints, which was later provid-
ed in the new financial year 

Plans are in progress 
to set up the meat 
market in the second 
quarter of the new 
Financial Year

Stock Control Book.  Head: Trading 
Enterprises

2.2.4 Revenue 
generated from 
meat market 
sales

None R7, 876, 760.00 Rev-
enue generated from 
meat market sales.

R1, 175, 252.00 Revenue generat-
ed from meat market sales.

Not Achieved Meat Market was not established 
as planned, due to budget con-
strains, which was later provided 
in the new financial year 

Plans are in progress 
to set up the meat 
market in the second 
quarter of the new 
Financial Year

"Financial Reports 
Bank Statements 
Receipts. 
"

 Head: Trading 
Enterprises

2.3 Utilise Adam Kok 
Farms as  a primary 
production hub for  
agricultural produce by 
30 June 2021

2.3.1 Number of 
cattle produced, 
sourced and 
supplied to 
Umzikantu Ab-
attoir. 

745 cattle 960 Cattle produced, 
sourced and supplied 
to Umzikantu Abattoir                                                                                                                                         
                    

495 Cattle sourced and sup-
plied to Umzikantu Abattoir                                                                                                                                         
                    

Not achieved - 357 
cattle sourced and 
supplied to Umzikan-
tu Abattoir.

179 less cattle.  Suspension of 
auctions due to Lockdown reg-
ulations as well as non compli-
ance of local farmers with the 
Animal Identification regulations.

Intensify animal iden-
tification campaigns.

Supplier invoices Head: Trading 
Enterprises

316 Cattle produced and sup-
plied to Umzikantu Abattoir                                                                                                                                         
                    

Over achieved - 327 
cattle produced and 
supplied to Umzikan-
tu Abattoir

11 more cattle produced and 
supplied. More cattle were ready 
for slaughter than anticipated.

not applicable Cattle transfer re-
ports.

2.3.2 Revenue 
generated from 
cattle produced 
and sold to other 
markets

R634 554.84 R1,375 000.00 gen-
erated from cattle 
produced and sold to 
other markets

R2 580 400,00 generated from 
cattle produced and sold to 
other markets

Over achieved - R 3 
126 064.91 generated 
from produced and 
sold to other markets

R545 664.91 more revenue gen-
erated.  Prices were favourable 
all year around.

Not applicable Cattle sales invoices/
receipts

2.3.3. Number of 
hectares utilised 
for animal feed 

46 ha utilised for 
animal feed

60 ha utilised for 
animal feed (40 ha 
maize grain and 20 
Ha winter pastures)

Annual target not revised Achieved - 60 Ha uti-
lised for animal feed

Not applicable Not applicable . Requisition 
Vouchers (procure-
ment of inputs)                              
. Tractor log books      
. GPS coordinates       
. Pictures                                                     

2.3.4  Number of 
hectares utilised 
for crop produc-
tion 

11.3 Ha utilised for 
crop production

11.5 ha utilised for 
crop production  ( 8 
ha cabbage and 3,5ha 
butternut)  

7.5 ha utilised for crop produc-
tion  ( 4 ha cabbage and 3,5ha 
butternut)  

Achieved - 7.5 ha 
utilised for crop pro-
duction

Not applicable Not applicable . Requisition 
Vouchers (procure-
ment of inputs)                              
. Tractor log books      
. GPS coordinates       
. Pictures                                                     

2.3.4.1 Revenue 
generated from 
sale of crops

R699 892.45 Generate R1 403 
213.00 from crop 
sales

Generate R 803 213.00 from sale 
of crops

Not achieved - R 
476 913.76 generated 
from sale of crops

R326 299.24 less generated.  
This is because  2Ha of cabbage 
could not be harvested in June 
2021 due to slow plant growth 
resulted from very cold weather 
conditions

Harvesting will start in 
July 2021.

Sales invoices/ re-
ceipts
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 STRATEGIC GOAL 3 DIVERSIFIED PARTNERSHIPS THAT PROMOTE INCLUSIVE SOCIO-ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
AND GROWTH.

Strategic Objectives Key Performance 
Indicator

Baseline 2019/20 2020/21 Annual 
Performance Target

Revised 2020/2021 Annual 
performance Target

Annual 
Actual Performance"

Performance Variance and 
Reasons

Corrective Measure Means of Verification Custodian

3.1 Optimize linkages 
of meat industry value 
chain that enhance 
functionality of 
Umzikantu Abattoir by 
30 June 2021.

3.1.1 Number of 
signed and imple-
mented partnership 
agreements that 
enhance function-
ality of Umzikantu 
Abattoir

1 MOU signed 
between Ntinga 
and JoGEDA on 
supply of livestock 
for slaughter.

1 new partnership 
agreement that enhance 
functionality  of Umzikan-
tu Abattoir signed and 
implemented

Annual target not revised Achieved: one MOU 
signed between Ntinga 
and Mdeni Feedlot on 
supply of livestock for 
slaughter.  

None Not Applicable * Minutes and Atten-
dance Register  (Q1+ 
Q2). 
 
* Signed Partnership 
Agreement.(Q3). 
 
* Implementation 
progress report.(Q4)

Head: 
Trading 
Enterprises

3.2   Optimize linkages 
of fruit and vegetable 
industry value chain in 
support of Kei Fresh 
Produce Market by 30 
June 2021.

3.1.2 Number of 
signed and imple-
mented off-take 
agreements for 
sale of meat from 
Umzikantu Abattoir.

1 Offtake Agree-
ment Signed.

5 Off-take agreements 
for sale of meat from 
Umzikantu Abattoir 
signed and implemented.

3 Off-take agreements for 
sale of meat from Umzikantu 
Abattoir signed and imple-
mented.

Achieved: 3 Offtake 
Agreements Signed.

None Not Applicable * Attendance Register 
& Minutes (Q1 = Q2). 
 
* Signed Off-take 
Agreement (Q3+Q4)

Head: 
Trading 
Enterprises

3.2.1 Number of 
signed and imple-
mented partner-
ships agreements 
that enhance 
functionality  of 
Kei Fresh Produce 
Market.

1 Partnership 
agreement

1 new partnership agree-
ment signed with local 
non-commercial farmer to 
supply KFPM with agricul-
tural produce.

Annual target not revised Not Achieved.             
Three (3) meetings held 
with potential partners to 
facilitate signing of part-
nership agreements.

No partnership agreement 
signed to date due to challenges 
related to the economic down-
turn of the Country especially 
during Covid 19 period. There 
are various attempts to negoti-
ate possible partnerships with 
external stakeholders on various 
areas such as the establishment 
of meat market as well as BEE 
market agent. 

Market Management 
will continue to 
explore opportuni-
ties to partner with 
various stakeholders 
in an attempt to form 
partnerships that will 
yield positive results 
for Ntinga and the 
Market.

1 Partnership  
Agreement Signed.

Head: 
Trading 
Enterprises

3.2.2 Number of 
signed and imple-
mented off-take 
agreements with lo-
cal non-commercial 
farmers to supply 
KFPM with agricul-
tural produce.

2 Off-take agree-
ments.

2 new off-take agree-
ments signed and 
implemented with local 
non-commercial farmers 
to supply KFPM with agri-
cultural produce.

Annual target not revised Over Achieved: Signed 
three (3) Off-take 
agreements with local 
non-commercial farmers 
to supply KFPM with agri-
cultural produce.

None None * Attendance Register, 
Minutes (Q1+ Q2) 
* Two Signed Off-take 
agreements.(Q3)

Head: 
Trading 
Enterprises

3.3 Mobilise resources 
for strategic economic 
infrastructure initiatives 
through the estab-
lishment of strategic 
partnerships

3.3.1 Rand value of 
resources mobilised 
through strategic 
partnerships

New target R10 million Annual target not revised Not Achieved:  Resource 
mobilisation applications 
have  been submitted to 
IDC and National Trea-
sury as part of the RAFI 
Partnership. The IDC 
application is for funding 
up to  R35,708,200 and 
the National Treasury 
Application is for up to 
R2.4 Billion

No actual funding has been 
received - processes still at ne-
gotiations stages.

Addressing of IDC 
queries contained 
in correspondence 
attached as POE 
and compliance 
with expectations 
of National Treasury 
for being considered 
eligible for funding. 

Copy of resource 
mobilisation plan, 
progress report on 
resource mobilisation

Chief 
Executive 
Officer

3.4  Develop, Support 
and promote  SM-
MEs as a catalyst for 
economic development 
and growth and inno-
vation by 30 June 2021.

3.4.1Development 
of Trade and Invest-
ment Plan

Trade and invest-
ment brochure 

Investment Plan Devel-
oped and Implemented

Annual target not revised Not Achieved: Only a 
discussion proposal was 
developed to serve as a 
basis for engaging inter-
nal  stakeholders towards 
the development of the 
Plan.

A multi-stakeholder workshop 
was necessary for discussing 
the proposal but the workshop 
remains outstanding due to 
Covid-19 pandemic not allowing 
gatherings to the magnitude of 
required participants 

The Plan will be de-
veloped in line with 
Trade and investment 
planning targets set 
in the 2021/22 SDA

Copy of Investment 
Promotion and Facil-
itation Plan, progress 
report on Investment 
Promotion and facili-
tation

Chief 
Executive 
Officer

3.4.2 number of 
new Domestic 
Investors attracted 
into O.R. Tambo 
region

1 New Domestic investor 
attracted into O.R. Tambo 
region

Annual Target not revised Not Achieved: Only docu-
mentary commitments 
were secured in respect 
of investment in wagyu 
development support for 
livestock development in 
Lambasi and Mkambathi 
by RAFI Beef. 

While fencing has been done in 
Lambasi, the 500 cattle ear-
marked for delivery to the site 
have not been delivered, reason 
for the delay is access road to 
the site which is yet to be final-
ised by the Ingquza Hill Local 
Municipality.   

The investment op-
portunities that have 
started will be driven 
to their respective 
logical conclusion in 
the 2021/22 Finan-
cial Year as much 
progress was already 
recorded up to 30 
June 2021

Copy of Investment 
Promotion and Facil-
itation Plan, progress 
report on Investment 
Promotion and facili-
tation

Chief 
Executive 
Officer
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 STRATEGIC GOAL 4 DYNAMIC, CAPABLE AND SUSTAINABLE STATE OWNED COMPANY

Strategic Objectives Key Performance 
Indicator

Baseline 2019/20 2020/21 Annual 
Performance Target

Revised 2020/2021 Annual 
performance Target

Annual Actual 
Performance

Performance Variance 
and Reasons

Corrective Measure Means of Verification Custodian

4.1 Ensure Business 
Processes, Tools and 
Systems that support 
implementation of the 
Strategy and continued 
viability of the organi-
sation by 30 June 2021

4.1.1 Sound Financial  
Management and 
Accurate reporting

Final Annual Bud-
get approved by 
30 May.

Final Annual Budget ap-
proved by 30 May.

Annual Target not revised Achieved : The Final Annual  
Budget was approved by 30 
May 2021.

None Not Applicable *Board resolution and 
*Proof of submission 
to parent municipality

Chief Financial 
Officer

 MFMA S87(11) 
monthly finance 
reports prepared 
within 7 working 
days after the end 
of the month.

 MFMA S87(11) monthly 
finance reports prepared 
within 7 working days af-
ter the end of the month.

Annual Target not revised Achieved : MFMA S87(11) 
monthly finance reports were 
prepared within 7 working days 
after the end of the month.

None Not Applicable * Proof of  submission 
to parent municipality

Chief Financial 
Officer

Quarterly finance 
reports  prepared 
and submitted to 
the Board within 
30 days after the 
end of the quarter.

Quarterly finance reports  
prepared and submitted 
to the Board within 30 
days after the end of the 
quarter.

Annual Target not revised Achieved : Quarterly finance 
reports  were prepared and 
submitted to the Board within 
30 days after the end of the 
quarter.

None Not Applicable * Quarterly Finance 
Reports. 
* Minutes of Board 
Meetings.

Chief Financial 
Officer

Mid-year budget 
& performance 
assessment report  
submitted to 
Board of Direc-
tors and Parent 
Municipality by 20 
January. 

2020/2021 Mid-year bud-
get & performance assess-
ment report  submitted 
to Board of Directors and 
Parent Municipality by 20 
January 2021. 

Annual Target not revised Achieved : 2020/2021 Mid-
year budget & performance 
assessment report  submitted 
to Board of Directors and Par-
ent Municipality by 20 January 
2021. 

None Not Applicable *Mid-year assessment 
report. 
* Proof of Submission 
to the Board and to 
the Parent Munici-
pality.

Chief Financial 
Officer

Audit Action Plan 
to resolve audit 
queries developed

Audit Action Plan to 
resolve audit queries 
developed

Annual Target not revised Achieved:  Audit Action Plan 
was developed, to resolve audit 
queries.

None Not Applicable *Audit Action Plan 
* Audit Action Plan 
Implementation 
Report

Chief Financial 
Officer

Obtain unqualified 
audit report from 
Auditor General

Obtain unqualified audit 
report from Auditor 
General

Annual Target not revised Achieved :  An unqualified 
audit report was obtained from 
Auditor General.

None Not Applicable Audit Report Chief Financial 
Officer

4.1.2 Rand value of 
investment income 
collected.

R650 000 in-
vestment income 
collected.

R450 000 investment 
income collected.

R220 000 investment 
income collected

Not achieved : R 192,615 was 
collected as an investment 
income.

The Entity did not have 
cash reserves available 
for investments.

Entity to increase it's 
revenue collection 
sources.

Investment register Chief Financial 
Officer

4.1.3 Annual Finan-
cial Statements 
submitted to Au-
ditor General by 31 
August

Annual Finan-
cial Statements 
prepared by 31 
August.

2019/2020 Annual Finan-
cial Statements prepared 
by 31 October 2020.

Annual Target not revised Achieved : 2019/2020 Annual 
Financial Statements were pre-
pared by 31 October 2020.

None Not Applicable * Signed AFS  
* Proof of Submission.

Chief Financial 
Officer

4.1.4 % of suppli-
ers paid within 30  
days from date of 
invoice

100% of suppliers 
paid within 30 
days from date of 
invoice

100% of suppliers paid 
within 30 days from date 
of invoice

Annual Target not revised Achieved. 100% of suppliers 
paid within 30 days from date 
of invoice

None Not Applicable Supplier payment 
vouchers.

Chief Financial 
Officer

4.1.4 %Procurement 
Done with local 
suppliers

50% value of the 
procurement done 
with local sup-
pliers

50% value of the pro-
curement done with local 
suppliers

Annual Target not revised Achieved. 50% value of the 
procurement was done with 
local suppliers.

Non Not Applicable Annual procurement 
plan.

Chief Financial 
Officer

Annual Target not revised Achieved : 50% value of the 
procurement was done with 
local suppliers.

None Not Applicable SCM Paragraph 6 
reports.

Chief Financial 
Officer

3.4.3 number of 
business incubators 
piloted

New target 1 Business incubator es-
tablished

Annual Target not revised Not Achieved: The incubator will be 
finalised when incubation programme 
commences under the Fresh Produce 
Development Programme for which 
funding is required from IDC. Up to 
now only the fresh produce sites have 
been identified, the co-operatives 
to be developed through incubation 
identified and funding proposals sub-
mitted to funders including IDC.

Variance is lack of fund-
ing for the incubation 
and the finalisation of 
institutional arrange-
ments amongst co-op-
eratives earmarked 
for incubation, private 
sector players and par-
ticipating district munic-
ipality agencies. 

The plan for developing the 
incubation programme is at an 
advanced stage and will con-
tinue in the 2021/22 financial 
year should funding be secured 
and proposed agreement on 
institutional arrangements 
signed.

Copy of 
proposal 
on business 
incubator

Chief 
Executive  
Officer
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 STRATEGIC GOAL 4 DYNAMIC, CAPABLE AND SUSTAINABLE STATE OWNED COMPANY

Strategic Objectives Key Performance 
Indicator

Baseline 2019/20 2020/21 Annual 
Performance Target

Revised 2020/2021 Annual 
performance Target

Annual Actual 
Performance

Performance Variance and 
Reasons

Corrective Measure Means of Verification Custodian

4.2 Create and Maintain 
administrative capacity 
through recruitment, 
PMS and good gover-
nance for effective and 
functioning of SOC.

4.2.1 Number of 
policies and SOPs 
reviewed 

15  policies re-
viewed.

 40 policies reviewed. Annual Target not revised Over Achieved:  
46 Policies Reviewed

6 additional policies were 
reviewed due to operational 
needs. 

None Reviewed policies.              
Board Resolution .      
Policy Handbook

Head: Corporate 
Services

4.2.5 Number of 
budgeted vacant 
posts filled

128  Posts Filled 9 budgeted vacant posts 
filled

Annual Target not revised Not Achieved: 2 budgeted 
vacant posts filled

Positions could not be filled 
due to recruitment pro-
cesses halted by the Parent 
Municipality.

Awaiting for Parent 
Municipality  to unhalt 
recruitment processes

Appointment Letters Head: Corporate 
Services

4.2.6 Number 
leadership develop-
ment programmes 
completed.

New indicator 2 Senior Managers en-
rolled on the leadership 
development programme

Annual Target not revised Not Achieved: Senior 
Managers enrolled but 
de-registered 

All Skills Development 
Programmes were sus-
pended due to budgetary 
constraints

All Skills Development 
programmes deferred 
to the next financial 
year

Enrolment certificates Head: Corporate 
Services

4.2.7 Number of 
staff development 
trainings imple-
mented.

New indicator 8 staff trainings conduct-
ed.

8 staff trainings conducted. Not Achieved: 1 staff train-
ing conducted.

All Skills Development 
Programmes were sus-
pended due to budgetary 
constraints

All Skills Development 
programmes deferred 
to the next financial 
year

Training certificates Head: Corporate 
Services

4.2.8 Percentage of 
staff performance 
appraisals conduct-
ed.

New indicator 100% of staff performance 
appraisals conducted.

100% of Senior and Middle 
Management performance 
appraisals conducted.

Not  Achieved: perfor-
mance appraisals were 
conducted to 5 Senior 
Managers for Q1 & 3 Senior 
Managers for Q3 
 
No performance apprais-
als conducted for middle 
managers  

Lack of performance man-
agement culture

Instil performance 
culture to all employ-
ees through change 
management pro-
gramme

Appraisal reports All Senior Man-
agers

4.3 Continuously 
improve internal and 
external reputation and 
image of the institution 
by 30 June 2021

4.3.1 Well known 
corporate brand

New indicator Communication and mar-
keting policy developed 
and approved 

Annual Target not revised Achieved- Communication 
and Marketing Policy was 
approved on the 30th April 
2021 by the Board

None Not Applicable Board approved 
Communication and 
Marketing Policy                         
Board Resolution                                               

CEO

Participated in 2  cam-
paigns / events

Annual Target not revised Achieved- Participated in 
2 campaigns/events in the 
first quarter and last quar-
ter of 2020/2021 Financial 
year.

None Not Applicable Post Campaign/Event 
Report and Pictures 

4 Media Statements / 
notice issued

Annual Target not revised Over-Achieved- 7 Media 
Statements/Notices issued 

3 More Media Statements/ 
Notices was issued due to 
urgent demand  

None Media Statement/No-
tice issued

4 reports on website man-
agement compiled 

Annual Target not revised Achieved- 4 Website man-
agement reports compiled 

None Not Applicable Signed report on 
website management 

4.4 Operational resil-
ience: ensure that your 
business processes are 
documented, busi-
ness process must be 
aligned to your busi-
ness by 30 June 2021

4.4.1 Business pro-
cesses and systems 
documented.

New indicator Revised and reviewed 
business processes for the 
entity

Business processes (Stan-
dard Operating Procedures) 
for the Entity revised and 
reviewed.

Achieved:  Corporate 
Services, CEO's Office and 
Budget and Treasury SOP  
revised and reviewed.

None Not Applicable SOPs Approved Chief Executive 
Officer  & All Se-
nior Managers

4.4.2 Informa-
tion Technology 
Business Systems 
aligned with doc-
umented business 
processes and 
systems.

New indicator Entity business processes 
aligned

Information Technology 
Business Systems aligned 
with documented business 
processes and systems.

Achieved: the developed 
SOPs are aligned with 
the  Existing IT Business 
Systems.

None Not Applicable SOPs Approved Chief Executive 
Officer  & All Se-
nior Managers

4.5 Ensure a Strategic 
effective State Owned 
Company

4.5.1   Annual Re-
view of the Corpo-
rate Strategic Plan 

Annual review of 
strategic plan by 
30 April 2021

Annual review of strategic 
plan by 30 April.

Annual Target not revised Achieved: Strategy plan 
was reviewed on 23 June 
2021

None Not Applicable "Reviewed and signed 
Strategic Plan   
"

Chief Executive 
Officer
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 STRATEGIC GOAL 4 DYNAMIC, CAPABLE AND SUSTAINABLE STATE OWNED COMPANY

Strategic Objectives Key Performance 
Indicator

Baseline 2019/20 2020/21 Annual 
Performance Target

Revised 2020/2021 Annual 
performance Target

Annual Actual 
Performance

Performance Variance 
and Reasons

Corrective Measure Means of Verifi-
cation

Custodian

4.5.2 Number of 
compliance reports  
submitted to the 
Board, ORTDM and 
Auditor General

4 Quarterly per-
formance reports; 
1 Midterm per-
formance report; 
1 Annual Perfor-
mance report, and 
1 Annual Report 
submitted to the 
Board ,Parent 
Municipality  and 
AGSA

4 Quarterly performance 
reports; 1 Midterm perfor-
mance report; 1 Annual 
Performance report, and 1 
Annual Report submitted 
to the Board ,Parent Mu-
nicipality  and AGSA

Annual Target not revised Achieved: Compliance reports 
submitted to Board, Parent 
Municipality and AGS 
*4 Quarterly performance 
reports  
* 1 Midterm Performance 
Report  
*1 Annual Performance Report 
*1 Annual Report

None Not Applicable * Proof of Submis-
sion to the Board, 
Parent Municipali-
ty and to AGSA. 
* Performance 
Reports: 
Q1- 4th Quarter 
Performance 
Report 
Q2- 1st Quarter 
Report 
Q3- 2nd Quarter 
Report 
- Midterm Report 
Q4-  3rd Quarter 
report 
* Board Minutes  

Chief Executive 
Officer

4.5.3 Implementation 
of performance Man-
agement Systems, 
monitoring and 
evaluation

12 Monthly Senior 
Management 
meetings

12 Monthly Senior Man-
agement meetings

Annual Target not revised Over Achieved: 12 Management 
Committee Meetings were held 
for period under review.

None None * Attendance 
registers, 
 * Signed Minutes.

Chief Executive 
Officer

4.5.4 Number of 
Board and Board 
Committee Meetings 
attended

4.5.3 Implemen-
tation of perfor-
mance Manage-
ment Systems, 
monitoring and 
evaluation

12 Monthly Senior Man-
agement meetings

Annual Target not revised Over-Achieved: 8 Meetings 
held for the period under 
review.  
 4 Ordinary Board Meet-
ings (Aug,Oct,Jan,Apr)                          
4 Special Board Meetings 
(Sept,Dec,Mar,Jun)

The Board required 
special meetings to 
deal with various spe-
cial issues and matters.  
The adhoc meetings 
were a special Board 
Committee formed to 
assist in the special 
matters the Board 
needed to attend to.

None * Attendance 
Registers  
* Draft Minutes                                                                                                                                          
                                                                                                                                             
* Agenda of 
the meeting                                                                                                                                          
                                                                                                                             
* Meeting pack         

Company Sec-
retary

5 ARC Meetings 
1 AGM 
4 HRRC Meetings 
4 SDIC Meetings  
2 SEC Meetings

Annual Target not revised Over-Achieved:                   
6 ARC Meetings (Aug,Oct,-
Jan,Feb,Apr,Jun)                                    
4 HRRC Meetings (Aug,Oct,-
Jan,Apr)                  
4 SDIC Meetings (Aug,
Oct,Jan,Apr)                  
2 SEC Meetings (Oct,Apr)                

1 AGM was not held in 
April 2021 due to the 
unavailability of the 
Shareholder. 

The meeting has been 
postponed to August 
2021, as the Companies 
Act allows for 15 months 
between meetings and 
therefore the AGM must 
be held before 18 Sep-
tember 2021. This will still 
ensure the compliance 
deadline is met.

* Attendance 
Registers  
* Draft Minutes                                                                                                                                          
                                                                                                                                             
* Agenda of 
the meeting                                                                                                                                          
                                                                                                                             
* Meeting pack  

Company Sec-
retary

4.5.5 Resolutions 
and decisions of the 
board recorded and 
implemented  

New indicator Updated and signed 
Annual Board Resolution 
Register

Annual Target not revised Not Achieved; 2020/2021 
Board Resolution Register was 
finalised and only table to the 
Board on July 2021. (Compa-
ny Sec was undercapacitated 
hence there were delays in 
finalising the Resolution Reg-
ister).

Board Resolution Reg-
ister was only  tabled in 
the July 2021

The target has been 
revised in the 2021/22 
financial year and set to 
be achieved on quarterly 
basis

Signed Board Res-
olutions Register

Chief Executive 
Officer & Com-
pany Secretary

4.5.6 Monitoring and 
evaluation of strate-
gy execution

New indicator 2 CEO's Reports with 
progress on the strategy 
execution presented to 
the Board meetings

Annual Target not revised Achieved: 2 CEOs Reports 
were presented to the Board 
Meetings

None Not Applicable CEO's Report and 
Board minutes 

Chief Executive 
Officer

Chief Executive Officer
L. Mbiko
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HUMAN 
RESOURCES 

PART G 
Introduction

The purpose of human resources is to provide high quality in-
tegrated human capital solutions which enhance the customer 
service experience. It aims at ensuring that the organisation 
has the right calibre of people with the right competencies, at 
the right places and at the right time so that it deliver on its 
mandate.

Talent Management 

Ntinga adopted an organisational structure which has a total of 157 positions. Of this number, 130 were budgeted for in 
the period under review. Of these positions, 121 were filled by the end of the 2020/2021 financial year. This represents a 
staff vacancy rate of 7% for the budgeted posts. The overall vacancy rate (for all posts in the organisational structure) 
was 23%.  All posts in the organisational structure were evaluated using the Paterson Job Grading System as per the 
Entity’s Job Evaluation Policy. 

Ntinga has an approved Policy on Succession Planning and Career Pathing which is being implemented to ensure that 
there is a pool of employees that will be available when vacancies arise.

The terminations were 
a result of resignations, 
retirements and death. 
The turnover rate is a bit 
high compared to the 
previous financial year. 

SENIOR MANAGEMENT 2020/2021FY

Description 2020/2021 
No. of employees

No. of 
Approved Posts

No. of filled
posts

No. of 
vacancies

Vacancy 
rate (%)

Chief Executive Officer 0 1 0 1 100%

Chief Financial Officer 1 1 1 0 0%

Company Secretary 1 1 1 0 0%

Head Corporate Services 1 1 1 0 0%

Head Trading Enterprises 1 1 1 0 0%

Water Systems Engineer Services 0 1 0 1 100%

EMPLOYEES 2020/2021FY

Description 2020/2021 
No. of 
employees

No. of 
Approved 
Posts

No. of 
filled
posts

No. of 
vacancies

Vacancy 
rate (%)

Water Services 17 37 17 20 54%

Trading Enterprise – Abattoir 24 28 24 4 14%

Trading Enterprise – Adam Kok 
Farms

30 33 30 3 9%

Trading Enterprise - Kei Fresh 15 15 15 0 0%

CEO’s Office 6 12 5 6 50%

Finance including Supply Chain 14 15 14 1 6 %

Human Resource 4 5 4 1 20%

Information Technology 3 3 3 0 0%

General Administration 8 9 8 1 11%

TOTAL 121 157 121 36 23%

Employee totals, turnover and vacancies

54%
Water services

20%
Human resource

50%
CEO’s office

STAFF TURNOVER RATE STAFF TURNOVER RATE

Details Total number
of employees

Total
appointments

Termination During 
the financial year

Turn-over Rate

2019/2020 126 6 4 3%

2020/2021 121 2 9 7%

23% 
Vacancy 

Rate
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Performance Management System (PMS)

Performance agreements were signed by senior managers and middle managers. Performance Management System 
awareness, understanding and cascading to all levels of employees was conducted. However, the process was stalled 
due to disagreements with the union. The matter was resolved in the last quarter of the financial year. It was then agreed 
that the cascading of the PMS should be implemented in the following financial year.  

Performance Assessments were conducted to Senior Managers.

Skills Development 

Due to the declining operational budget, expenditure on 
training has gradually reduced. Priority was given to those 
positions that must meet regulated competency require-
ments. This is done in phases. The entity prioritised em-
ployees who needed to close the 70/30 gap identified 
during placement. A Workplace Skills Plan (WSP) was 
developed based on the skills audit that was undertaken. 
However, the agency only managed to implement one 
training intervention in the Workplace Skills Plan due to 
cash flow problems.

The Certificate in Municipal Financial Management is prior-
itised to finance officials as well as senior management as 
part of their statutory financial competency development. 
There were no new employees registered for this course in 
the year under review due to cash flow challenges.

During the review period, Ntinga contracted seventeen 
(17) interns/experiential trainees from various institutions. 
Four of the interns were funded in-house, and the remain-
der were funded by different Sector Education and Train-
ing Authorities (SETAs) and the National Skills Fund (NSF). 

  NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES REQUIRED AND ACTUAL AS AT 30 JUNE 2020

Description Learner ships Skills programmes  
and other short 
courses

Other forms of 
training

Total

Management level Gender 19/20 20/21 19/20 20/21 19/20 20/21 19/20 20/21

CEO and Senior Managers Female 0 0 3 0 0 0 3 0

Male 0 0 4 0 0 0 4 0

Middle Management Female 0 0 2 0 0 0 2 0

Male 0 0 6 0 0 0 6 0

Professionals Female 0 0 12 0 0 0 12 0

Male 0 0 7 0 0 0 7 0

Other Female 0 0 5 0 0 0 5 0

Male 0 0 5 0 0 1 5 1

TOTAL 0 0 44 0 0 1 44 1

  FINANCIAL COMPETENCY DEVELOPMENT: PROGRESS REPORT

Description Total number of 
officials employed 
by the Municipal 
Entity

Competency
Assessments 
completed

Comment

Financial Officials

- Chief Executive Officer 0 0

- Chief Financial Officer 1 1

- Senior Managers 3 1 One Senior Manager has enrolled 
for the course and another one will 
enrol in 2021/2022 financial year 
because of budgetary constraints 

- Any other financial officials 9 6 One official will enrol in 2021/2022 
financial year and the remaining 
two in the outer years because of 
budgetary constraints

Supply Chain Management Officials

Head of Supply Chain Management Unit 1 1

Supply Chain Management Officials 3 3

TOTAL 17 12

Employee Health and Wellness 

Ntinga has an adopted policy on Employee Health and 
Wellness and an established Employee Health and Well-
ness Committee whose purpose is to look at health and 
wellness issues within the organisation and to make rec-
ommendations to management for action. 

There were no referrals for employees who needed assis-
tance under the Employee Assistance Programme. Aware-
ness is made on a continuous basis for people to utilise 
the programme. 

Occupational Health and Safety (OHS)

Ntinga has a policy on OHS which is implemented. OHS 
Committee is in pace and its functional. Safety, Health and 
Environment (SHE) reps were appointed in all business 
units but could not be trained due to cash flow problems, 
the training has been deferred to 2021/22 financial year. 

The company does not have an OHS Officer in the organ-
isational structure but the function has been assigned to 
the HR Officer who has been trained on SAMTRAC. 

There were no occupational injuries reported in the period 
under review.
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COVID-19 PANDEMIC

In response to the National State of Disaster declared by 
the President, Ntinga established a Disaster Management 
Committee that was responsible for the management and 
coordination of the COVID-19 pandemic within the enti-
ty including the issuing of statements to the employees 
with the involvement of the CEO. The Committee, in con-
junction with the entity’s OHS Committee, developed a 
Disaster Management Plan and subsequently a COVID-19 
Workplace Plan which outlined the entity’s plan on the 
management of the pandemic. 

This plan contained a number of precautionary mea-
sures, including categorising those discharging essential 
services and non-essential services in order to fight the 
spread of the disease. Employees under essential services 
included those in the trading enterprises (Kei Fresh Pro-
duce Market, Umzikantu Abattoir and Adam Kok Farms), 
Water Services and drivers. Non-essential service workers 
were allowed to work from home in order to minimise the 
spread of the virus. 

Ntinga’s commercial business was severely affected 
during this crisis. As such, all employees including clients 
and shareholder had to play a responsive role in order to 
protect themselves, their families and the community at 
large. Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) was procured 
and supplied to all our sites and employees.

In the year under review, there were eight 
employees who contracted the virus and 
one of them ultimately succumbed to the 
virus. Support was given to the employees 
in the form of counselling and PPEs. They 
were quarantined until they fully-recovered 
and returned to work.  

The sudden onset of the pandemic, coupled with the en-
tity’s existing strained financial situation caused a fund-
ing challenge during this period. Ntinga had to ensure 
that working tools that will be conducive for employees 
from working from home were in place. The agency’s ICT 
systems had to adapt quickly as data costs escalated as 
meetings had to be conducted virtually, including the ur-
gent procurement of software that would enable users to 
conduct meetings virtually. 

Despite the challenges and uncertainty posed by the vi-
rus, the entity commends those essential service workers 
who rose to the occasion and continued to contribute 
positively to the Ntinga’s mandate.

The Board would like to send a sincere word of gratitude 
to these Ntinga heroes who worked tirelessly during this 
period to ensure that the nation is fed and that the enti-
ty is kept afloat despite the anxiety that this pandemic 
brought to the nation. Ntinga salutes you and your dedi-
cation will forever be cherished. 

INJURIES & SICKNESS NUMBER AND COSTS OF INJURIES ON DUTY

Type of injury Injury leave
taken (Days)

Employees using 
injury leave 
(number)

Proportion 
of
employees 
using

Average
Injury 
leave per 
employee 
(Days)

Total
estimated 
Cost (Rand 
value)

Required Basic mental attention 
only

0 0 0 0 0

Temporary total disablement 0 0 0 0 0

Permanent disablement 0 0 0 0 0

Total 0 0 0 0 0

Comment on injury and sick leave

The highest rates of sick leave taken are in the salary 
bands of Lower- skills and Middle Management levels 
which is attributed to hospitalisation of two employees at 

these levels.

Labour Relations

There are two recognised unions Ntinga which are the ma-
jority union, the Independent Municipal and Allied Trade 
Union (IMATU) and the South African Municipal Workers 
Union (SAMWU). 

The Workplace Forum is in place and is functional thus 
resulting in the agency having sound labour relations.

There has been an increase in the number of misconduct 
cases in the year under review and the transgressors have 
been subjected to disciplinary hearings.         

Managing the workforce expenditure

• Employee expenditure

Employee expenditure relates to water services, trading 
enterprises, special projects as well as support functions. 
The parent municipality makes available grant funding to 
subsidise the agency’s payroll costs.  Expenditure incurred 
is kept within budget.

WORKFORCE EXPENDITURE TRENDS

Comment on workforce expenditure

There was a decrease in employee related costs compared 
to the previous year. This is attributed to the fact that the re-
cruitment processes were halted by the parent municipality.

Future Outlook

The entity continues to appreciate the commitment and 
efforts of its employees in advancing the socio-econom-
ic mandate of the agency. Every great achievement is 
achieved through collaboration and the HR function re-
mains committed to seeing the fruition of the entity’s 
mandate through the inputs of its most significant capital, 
its people.

Ntinga extends appreciation to Mr Vuyolwethu Dekeda, who succumbed to this deadly virus. His dedication and humil-
ity didn’t go unnoticed and he will always be remembered as our hero. To his family, the Board would like to send its 
heartfelt condolences and we thank you for giving us time to spend with him. 

SICK LEAVE NUMBER OF DAYS AND COST OF SICK LEAVE (EXCLUDING INJURIES ON DUTY)

Salary band Total
Sick Leave 
(Days)

Proportion
Of sick leave 
with medical 
certification (%)

Employees
using  sick 
leave (num-
ber)

Total
Employ-
ees in post 
(number)

Average
sick 
leave per 
employee 
(Days)

Total
estimated 
Cost  (Rand 
value)

Lower skilled 48 46 6 55 31 R14 449.04

Semi - Skilled 2 1 1 19 2 R1326.40

Skilled 24 22 3 31 13 R44 702.00

Middle management 29 26 2 10 26 R104 257.00

Chief Executive Officer  
and  Senior Management

19 18 5 6 11 R106 101.10

Total 122 113 17 121 83 R270 835.54

46 mill

45 mill

44 mill

43 mill

42 mill

41 mill

40 mill

41,5 MILL
2019

45,5 MILL
2020

44,9 MILL
2021
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CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE

PART H 
The Board of Directors remains committed to the ongoing 
maintenance of its high standards of governance, ethics and 
integrity. By setting an ethical tone at the top and leading ef-
fectively, the intention is to ensure that good corporate gov-
ernance permeates into all levels of the organisation in order 
to enhance its reputation and to build trust. The ultimate ob-
jective is value creation for the Ntinga business and its stake-
holders. 

66

As a State-Owned Company and develop-
ment agency, Ntinga recognises its unique 
position and the opportunity it has to effect 
material change to the human condition of 
the O.R Tambo District Municipality com-
munities in which it operates. The agency is 
encouraged by the leadership and support 
of the Shareholder and parent municipality, 
the O.R Tambo District Municipality. 

Our strategic purpose remains to create long-term value 
through good governance and deliver to all our customers 
and stakeholders. 

Ntinga is committed to good corporate citizenship and 
organisational integrity in the running of its affairs and ap-
plies strict adherence to the Local Government: Municipal 
Finance Management Act in its business. This commitment 
provides the parent municipality/shareholder, customers 
and stakeholders with the assurance that Ntinga’s affairs 
are being managed in an ethical and disciplined manner.

GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK

The Board has adopted a governance framework that 
is rooted in adhering to legislation, the principles of the 
MFMA, MSA, Companies Act and the King IV Report, best 
practice and other governance prescripts and guidelines. 
The Board is also mindful of the clear governance proto-
cols required to communicate and interact with our Share-
holder and its various political and administrative struc-
tures. 

The agency is wholly owned by O.R Tambo District Mu-
nicipality and as such it is the Agency’s Parent municipal-
ity and sole Shareholder. It is the Executive Authority and 
provides oversight over the Agency. Two Shareholder rep-
resentatives are delegated by the Parent Municipality to 
attend all Ntinga Board meetings for additional oversight, 
integration and cross-pollination of information between 
the parties. 

The parent municipality’s Rural Economic Development 
Programmes (REDP) Unit provides specific oversight over 
the entity, working closely to monitor our Local Econom-
ic Development and Special Projects mandates. Monthly 
and quarterly reports are submitted to the municipality as 
per the requirements of the MFMA. The Agency’s reports 

and performance are further subjected to scrutiny by the 
municipality’s oversight structures such as the portfolio 
committees and the Municipal Public Accounts Commit-
tee (MPAC). 

At Board level, the governance framework provides for the 
Board of Ntinga, as an independent SOC, to serve as the 
Accounting Authority that governs the Agency. The Board 
oversees governance through setting the strategic direc-
tion of the entity and ensuring an integrated framework of 
oversight which includes the Board committees that have 
been formally appointed by the Board, with powers dele-
gated or assigned to them by the Board. The framework is 
supported by the Board Charter, committee terms of ref-
erence and our governance policies, which provide guard-
rails to steer performance in a manner aimed at creating 
value. Our governance framework provides role clarity by 
clearly delineating roles and areas of accountability and 
recognises the independent roles and duties required to 
effectively govern the entity. 

The Chief Executive Officer is the Accounting Officer 
of the Agency. The CEO is an ex-officio member of the 
Board. The Company Secretary is considered a prescribed 
officer. Other Senior Managers are invitees to the board 
committees and provide operational and administrative 
leadership to the Agency on a day-to-day basis. 

EFFECTIVE LEADERSHIP 

King IV P1 & 7 & 10 

Board of Directors 

The Parent Municipality appoints the Board of Directors 
in terms of section 93E of the Municipal Systems Act 32 
of 2000. The Board is comprised of nine independent 
non-executive directors who were appointed in July 2017. 
The Chief Executive Officer is appointed as an ex-officio 
director by virtue of his position. 

The Directors bring a wealth of expertise, skills and diverse 
experience which strengthens the ability of the Board to 
provide wide-ranging strategic direction and oversight 
over the entity. 

In line with best practice, the Board is led by the Acting 
Board Chairperson, Dr Lindile Linduxolo Ndabeni who is 
further supported by the Deputy Chairman, Rev. Nosipho 
Doris Alice Ngewu to ensure adequate and streamlined 
oversight over the affairs of the Board.”
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GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORKGOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK

Ntinga’s governance framework is underpinned by its values and a range of legislation, governance principles and regulations

Board Charter Ntinga Code 
of Ethics

Risk Management 
Policy

Code of Conduct Board Committee 
Terms of Reference Policy

Anti-corruption and 
Fraud Policy

Ntinga has the following governance policies and procedures in place

ARC SDIC HRRC SEC

Internal Audit

Company 
Secretary

Senior Management 
Team

Corporate
Services

Water
Services

Trading 
Enterprise

Project 
Management

O.R. Tambo District 
Municipality Shareholder

NTINGA BOARD

CEO

AGSA

Rural Economic Development 
Programmes

Municipal Public Accounts 
Committee

Finance

Executive 
Authority and 

Oversight

A
ccounting A

uthority
and G

overnance

Accounting
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NTINGA BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS 

Lindile L Ndabeni (PhD)*  
- Chairperson

Mr. Sitembele Eric Mase*
 - Chairperson

Rev Nosipho Doris Alice Ngewu*
- Deputy Board Chairperson

Mr. Mzimkulu Msiwa

Mr Mpumzi Milford Pupuma

Dr Nandipha Toyota Ndudane 

Ms Nolukhanyo Makuni - 
Independent ARC member only 
and does not serve on the BoardProf.  Lindelwa Yvonne Majova- 

Songca* - Deputy Board Chairperson

Ms Unathi Nosiphe Mkize

Ms Nandipa Sibongile 
Nwabisa Bam  

*Lindile Linduxolo Ndabeni was appointed as Chairperson of the Board on 4 May 2021.
*Nosipho Ngewu was appointed as Deputy Chairperson of the Board in July 2021.
* Sitembele Mase resigned as Chairperson of the Board on 3 May 2021
*Prof. Lindelwa Yvonne Majova – Songca resigned as Deputy Board Chairperson on 30 April 2021.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board member Qualifications Area of expertise Active Directorships/ 
Positions

Mr. Lindile Linduxolo 
Ndabeni (PhD)*  
- Chairperson

• Doctor of Philosophy  
• Master of Science in Develop-

ment Planning
• Bachelor of Arts in Education

• Economic Research
• Rural Development 
and agricultural sys-
tems

None

Rev Nosipho Doris 
Alice Ngewu*

• Masters in Business Leadership 
(MBL) 

• B. Compt
• HDip Tax
• BTH

• Development finance
• People management 
& change
• Organisational devel-
opment
• Business leadership & 
strategy

• TARDI Advisory Council
• Mexiscene Pty Ltd
• Council Member Diocese 
of Grahamstown Anglican 
Church

Mr. Sitembele Eric Mase* 
- Chairperson

• Bachelor of Commerce 
• BCom Honours 
• Masters in Business Leadership 

(MBL) 
• Post grad Certificate in Invest-

ment and Portfolio Analysis with 
further training from UK (Lon-
don Guildhall University), USA, 
Colorado University )

• Business Leadership 
and Strategy

• Development and 
Corporate Finance

• Sikuvile Consultancy 
Services

Prof.  Lindelwa Yvonne 
Majova- Songca* Deputy 
Board Chairperson

• M.Com in Finance;
• MBA
• B. Compt (Hons); 
• Certificate in Theory of Accoun-

tancy
• Senior Teachers Diploma 
• Chartered Accountant (South 

Africa)

• Financial manage-
ment

• Public sector Audit-
ing

• Risk management

None

Ms Unathi Nosiphe Mkize • LLB
• B. Juris

• Regulatory compli-
ance

• Litigation 
• Corporate Law

• Board RIM 
• Symphony Property In-

vestments
• MMA Inc
• Leadership Investment 

Group
• Keiskamma Trust
• Nyangiwe Trust

Mr. Mzimkulu Msiwa • Master of Business Leadership 
(MBL)

• Bachelor of Science Degree in 
Civil Engineering

• PR Eng (ECSA)

• Water systems engi-
neering

• Business Processes 
and systems optimi-
sation

• KZN Planning Commis-
sion – Chairman Zutari

Dr Nandipha Toyota 
Ndudane

• Bachelor of Agricultural Science 
• Bachelor of Veterinary Medicine 

and Surgery 
• Master’s degree in Veterinary 

Animal Pathology 

• Agricultural systems
• Agricultural business 

management

• Ivili loboya
• South African Veterinary 
Council
• Eastern Cape Planning 
Commission
• Department of Rural 
Development and Agrarian 
Reform

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board member Qualifications Area of expertise Active Directorships/ Posi-
tions

Ms Nandipa Sibongile Nwabisa Bam  • Bachelor of Com-
merce

• Bachelor of Com-
merce Honours 

• CPMD-Municipal 
Finance

• Local Economic 
Development and 
Trade & Investment 
Promotion

• Corporate Gover-
nance

• Strategic Leadership

• GP4
• Furntech NPC
• Furntech Trust
• Sanami NPC

Mr Mpumzi Milford Pupuma • Bachelor of Account-
ing Science

• Master of Business 
Leadership

• Banking
• People management

• Ithala SOC Limited
• Grassland Development 
Trust

Ms Nolukhanyo Makuni
Independent ARC member only and 
does not serve on the Board

• Bachelor of Account-
ing Science degree 

• Post-Grad Diploma in 
Accounting

• Chartered Accountant 
(South Africa)

• Certificate in Money 
Laundering & Detec-
tion

• Financial management
• Auditing and Tax
• Risk management

• CN Outsourced Finance 
(Pty) Ltd

BOARD AND COMMITTEES’ MEMBERSHIP 
AND MEETING 

King IV P.6 

The Board has delegated some of its responsibilities to 
committees in accordance with the approved delega-
tion of authority. Each committee acts within the ambit 
of clearly defined terms of reference that are approved 
by the Board. These terms of reference are reviewed peri-
odically and they are updated to address any changes in 
legislation or the governance and oversight needs of the 
Board.

The Board has four committees to assist it in discharging 
its role and responsibilities. The committees have been 
established in line with legislative requirements and busi-
ness imperatives. These committees report to the Board 
to enable the Board to take responsibility for complete 
oversight and the exercise of their fiduciary duties both 
individually and as a collective. This aims to provide sound 
governance. 

The Board Committees 

a. Audit and Risk Committee; 

b. Human Resources and Remuneration Committee; 

c. Social and Ethics Committee; 

d. Strategy, Development and Investment Committee

The Board and its Committees meet as prescribed by its 
mandates. The meetings are supported and facilitated by 
the Company Secretary who ensures timely, accurate and 
relevant information is provided ahead of meetings. The 
Board is pleased that it has fully digitised its meetings, 
having met virtually since the advent of the pandemic and 
has access to secure, real-time information through the 
use of electronic boardpack software.

Non-Executive Directors Demographics Gender and Race 

44%
Male

56%
Females

46-50
Yrs

3
51-55
Yrs

2
61-65

Yrs

2
66-70

Yrs

2 100% 
Black
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  BOARD MEETING ATTENDANCE

Meetings Mase* Majova* Pupuma Msiwa* Mkize Bam* Ngewu* Ndabeni Ndudane Makuni

Board 6

AD HOC Board 2*

ARC 6

SDIC 4

HRRC 4

SEC 2

5/5

N/A

5/5

2/2

4/5

1/1

1/2 2/2 2/21/2

6/6

N/A

4/4

4/4

4/4 3/3

4/4 4/4 4/4

4/4 4/4

5/5

2/2

5/5

6/6

2/2

5/5

6/6

2/2

1/1

6/6

2/2

1/1

6/6

N/A

6/6

N/A

6/6

*Mr Msiwa resigned on 03 May 2021 

*Mr Mase resigned on 03 April 2021

*Professor Majova resigned on 30 April 2021

*Ms Bam was moved from SDIC from April to join ARC

*Ms Ngewu was moved from SDIC from April to Join ARC

*The two adhoc Board Meetings were attended by few Board Members to deal with special matters. 

Audit & Risk Committee (ARC)

Chairperson:
• Nosipho Doris Ngewu: Appointed 1 March 2021

Members:     
• N Bam: Appointed 1 March 2021
• LY Majova-Songca: Term expired on 28 February 2021
• M Msiwa: Term expired on 28 February 2021
• UN Mkize: Term expired on 28 February 2021
• N Makuni: (Independent Committee Member)

Committee duties and how these add value to the execution 
of the strategy: 
•  Oversees the entity’s compliance with the MFMA, Prefer-

ential Procurement Act, Treasury Regulations and other le-
gal and regulatory requirements applicable to the agency 

• Review and approve the Internal Audit Charter, rolling 
three-year Strategic Internal Audit Plan based on its as-

sessment of key areas of risk for the Agency and review 
quarterly reports submitted by Internal Audit to ensure 
robust assurance 

• Review the efficiency and effectiveness of the Entity’s sys-
tems of internal control, including financial controls and 
business risk management 

• Provides advice on IT governance, controls, access, safe-
guarding of information in the Entity, on behalf of the board 

• Review the Annual Financial Statements and establish that 
they have been prepared by management in accordance 
with the MFMA and accounting standards. 

• Evaluating the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk man-
agement process followed and the development, mainte-
nance and enhancement of the Fraud Prevention Plans 

• Review quarterly and annual reports of the entity regard-
ing the performance management systems and assists the 
board to ensure these are reported to the Shareholder ac-
cording to compliance timelines.

COMMITTEES FRAMEWORK

Strategy, Development & Investment  
Committee (SDIC)

Chairperson:
• M. Msiwa (Chairperson) Resigned 3 May 2021

Members:     
• NT Ndudane
• LL Ndabeni
• M Pupuma
• N Bam: Moved to ARC from 1 March 2021
• LY Majova Songca: Appointed 1 March 2021 & resigned 
   30 April 2021

Committee duties and how these add value to the execution 
of the strategy: 
• Determine the strategic priorities of Ntinga’s operations 

and recommends these to the board 
• Determine long-term development programmes of Ntinga 

in line with the approved Ntinga mandate; and 
• Assess the effectiveness of major trade and investment 

decisions and prospective trade and investment projects, 
and consider how these can increase shareholder value 
within Ntinga. 

• Oversee the operational business areas of water services, 
trading enterprises and projects performance and man-
agement

Human Resources & Remuneration  
Committee (HRRC)

Chairperson:
• M Pupuma

Members:     
• Ms. N.S.N. Bam
• Dr. N.T. Ndudane
• Ms. N.D.A. Ngewu

Committee duties and how these add value to the execution 
of the strategy: 
Review, approve and monitor the implementation of the  
Annual Human Resource Strategic Plan insofar as it relates to:
• Organisational design; 
• Behavioural and cultural framework and practices; 
• Management succession plan; 

• Workplace health and safety planning, practices and com-
pliance; 

• Capability and talent development; 
• Equal opportunity, equity and diversity; and 
• Recruitment, retention and termination policies for key 

management personnel. 
• Records Management and Archives 
• Ensure alignment of the remuneration and human resourc-

es strategies and policies with Ntinga Corporate Strategy, 
desired organisational culture 

• Consider recommendations by Management in relation to 
remuneration of non-executive Board members for final 
recommendation by the Board to parent municipality 

• Consider and recommend for Board approval, the annual 
salary increase for non-bargaining employees and man-
dates for negotiations with trade unions, and ensure the 
Board remains appraised of such negotiations.

Social and Ethics Committee (SEC)

Chairperson:
• UN Mkize

Members:     
• N Ngewu: Move to ARC from 1 March 2021
• LL Ndabeni
• LY Majova-Songca: Appointed 1 March 2021 & resigned 30 
April 2021

Committee duties and how these add value to the execution 
of the strategy: 
Monitoring the entity’s activities having regard to any rele-
vant legislation, other legal requirements or prevailing codes 
of best practice, with regard to matters relating to: 

• Social and economic development; 
• Good corporate citizenship; 
• The environment, health and public safety, including the 

impact of the entity’s activities and of its products or ser-
vices; 

• Consumer relationships, including the entity’s advertising, 
public relations and compliance with consumer protection 
laws; 

• Labour and employment; 
• Ensuring that the entity’s ethics are managed effectively; 
• Reporting, through the Chairman of the committee, to the 

shareholders at the Company’s Annual General Meeting on 
any part of the business of the meeting that concerns the 
committee’s functions.
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BOARD TRAINING & 
DEVELOPMENT
King IV P1 & 9 

In driving a return to the foundations of governance, in the 
year under review, the Board, Senior Management Team and 
our Shareholder Representatives attended a virtual train-
ing course with the Institute of Directors of Southern Africa 
(IoDSA) on Corporate Governance and Board Effectiveness. 
This was the first training course for the Board, and albeit 
delayed was a positive shift towards the improvement and 
continuous improvement on governance for the Board. 

The Directors are further regularly kept abreast of relevant 
agency matters and regulatory developments through inter-
ventions such as ongoing director development through the 
various resources made available by the IoDSA. The agency 
is proud that all its serving Directors, CEO, CFO and Compa-
ny Secretary are members of the IoDSA and regularly par-
ticipate in corporate governance training and development 
through the membership resources. 

SUCCESSION PLANNING
 King IV P.13 

The Board of Directors is appointed directly by the Parent 
Municipality. The Board therefore remains independent and 
impartial by ensuring that the Parent Municipality provides 
sole oversight over the Board succession plan of the Agency. 
The Chairperson provides guidance and engagement to the 
Parent Municipality where it specifically requests guidance 
to understanding the Agency’s evolving needs in terms of 
non-executive director succession. 

SENIOR MANAGEMENT 
King IV P10 

The entity’s Administration is headed by the Chief Executive 
Officer (CEO) who is the Accounting Officer. The CEO re-
ports and accounts to the Board of Directors and leads the 
senior management team, which provides operational sup-
port. The majority of the Senior Management Team are ap-
pointed on five-year contracts, per the requirements of the 
MFMA.

GOVERNANCE FOUNDATIONS 

ETHICS COMMITMENT 

King IV P.2 

In the year under review, the Board continues to entrench its 
commitment to ethical governance through the approval of 
its Code of Ethics. The Code guides employee behaviour in 
all internal and external stakeholder relations. 

Ntinga’s main ethical values as espoused in the Code include 
Integrity, Reliability, Honesty, Accountability and Transparency. 

The Social and Ethics Committee of the Board continues to 
provide its delegated oversight over the application and en-
trenchment of an ethical culture in the entity. 

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS 
AND REGULATIONS 

King IV P.13 

The Office of the Company Secretary provides legal and 
compliance advice to the agency. The parent municipality 
supports the agency with a shared legal service on litiga-
tion matters. Due to limitations with capacity, compliance is 
entrenched at departmental level with each unit and trading 
enterprise ensuring compliance at departmental level. The 
Board continues to provide management support in extend-
ing its compliance and monitoring over the agency. 

The Internal Audit Unit periodically reviews compliance with 
laws and the Board strives for a culture of compliance with 
all relevant laws and regulations pertaining to the agency. 

FRAUD AND ANTI-CORRUPTION 

The agency carefully monitors fraud and corruption. There 
is an anti-fraud and anti-corruption policy in place which is 
reviewed regularly. The policy includes the whistle blowing 
processes. Systems of internal controls are documented and 
subject to periodic reviews by internal audit. There is a func-
tional Audit and Risk Committee in place which amongst 
other things is tasked with oversight over fraud and corrup-
tion management processes. 

Vuyiseka Mviko
Head: Corporate Services

Cassandra Mfana
Company Secretary, Legal and 
Compliance Advisor

Mncedisi Mpatheni

NTINGA MANAGEMENT 

Loyiso Mbiko
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Mlungiseleli Zilimbola
Head: Trading Enterprises

Eric Mzayiya
Systems Engineer

Zandisile Kanise

Senior Managament Composition

No Management member Date of appointment

1. Mr. L. Mbiko Acting Chief Executive • B Com
• Honours B Compt/CTA
• Completed Articles
• CPMD

04 Dec 2020

2. Mr M. Mpatheni Acting Chief Financial • B Com
• ND: Internal Auditing
• Completed Articles
• CPMD

04 Dec 2020

3. Ms. C.Mfana Company Secretary, 
Legal & Compliance 
Advisor

• B.Com Law 
• Postgraduate LLB
• Admitted Attorney of the High Court RSA
• Practical Legal Training Course 

  Secretarial & Governance Practice  

01 Dec 2019

4. Ms. N. Mningiswa-Maswazi
the CEO

• BA Social Work
• Diploma in Human Resources Management 
• Diploma in Business Management
• Honours in Business Administration
• Honours in Psychology 
• Masters of Business Administration 

02 Jan 2018

5. Mr. E. Mzayiya Systems Engineer • National Diploma: Management of Civil Engineering 
Construction

• Diploma (Mech Eng)
• BSc

• Advanced Project Management
• CPMD
• CPMD Advanced
• Masters of Business Administration

01 Jul 2018

6. Ms. V.  Mviko Head: Corporate 
Services

• Bachelor of Administration
• B Admin Honours(Industrial & Organisational Psychology)
• Masters in Public Administration
• Post Graduate Diploma in Labour Law Practice
• CPMD 

09 Apr 2018

7. Mr. M. Zilimbola Head: Trading 
Enterprises

• B.Com General
• Higher diploma in Project Management     
• B.Com Honours (Business Management)                  
• Masters of Business Administration 

01 Jul 2019

8. Mr. Z. Kanise Manager: Project 
 
 Philosophy and African Politics)
 Short Course in Process Facilitation Skills
 Short Course in Batho Pele Implementation for 
 Operational Managers
 Professional Business Writing Skills for Managers

 Short Course in Project Management

08 Jan 2003

Gender 
and Race

62.5%
Male

37.5%
Females

100% 
Black

Management 
Demographics

Nwabisa Mpendu-Maswazi
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MINIMISING CONFLICT OF  
INTEREST 
King IV P.13

In line with the recommendations of the King IV code, the di-
rectors are required to declare their interest in any discussion 
on the agenda at each meeting. The directors further annu-
ally provide the declaration of all their private or business 
interests and directorships held. These are included above 
in this report.

Ntinga staff are similarly required to declare their interests 
in other businesses/organisations on a regular basis. In ad-
dition to this declaration, all bid evaluation and adjudication 
committee members are required to declare any potential 
conflict of interest at each committee meeting. Committee 
members are excluded from participating in procurement 
decisions where a conflict of interest exists or is perceived to 
exist. Conflict of interest includes the interest of spouses and 
close family members.
 
Further, the agency requires all suppliers registered on its da-
tabase to declare its shareholders and any conflict of interest 
upon registration to avoid the inadvertent use of suppliers in 
an irregular manner. Ntinga prevents conflict of interest by 
ensuring adherence to National Treasury’s Code of Conduct 
for supply chain management practices. 

RISK MANAGEMENT 
King IV P11 

The Board, through its Audit and Risk Committee, ensures 
that there is an effective risk management process within the 
agency. Risk management processes include policy develop-
ment, facilitation of risk assessments and development of 
mitigating controls for the risks identified. 

The CEO is the ultimate Chief Risk Officer of the agency. The 
agency has experienced challenges with the support of the 
shared services provided for Risk Management, but manage-
ment and the Board continue to provide oversight through 
its Audit and Risk Committee. 

The Board-approved Risk Management policy was imple-
mented throughout the financial year to ensure that risk 
management activities are institutionalised within the agen-
cy. Risk assessments were facilitated by the Internal Audit 
unit for all business units and the risk registers were submit-
ted to the Audit & Risk Committee for review and to provide 
input with regards to the effective implementation of the 
Risk Management policy within the agency. 

The Audit and Risk Committee plays an independent over-
sight role which assists management with risk management 
processes and as such recommends suitable actions for miti-
gating any unacceptable levels of risks identified.
 

INTERNAL AUDIT AND AUDIT 
COMMITTEE 

King IV P15 

Ntinga’s internal audit function is an independent, objective, 
assurance and consulting activity designed to add value and 
improve the organisation’s operations. It assists the organisa-
tion in accomplishing its objectives by bringing a systematic, 
disciplined approach to the evaluation and effectiveness of 
risk management, control and governance processes. Such 
assurance is based on objective information, in the form of 
audit opinions, arising from internal audits performed. 

In the year under review, the IA conducted reviews according 
to the Internal Audit Plan. The corrective actions resulting 
from the Audits are monitored through the tracking of the 
Management Audit Action Plan to minimise repeat findings. 

COMPANY SECRETARIAL 
FUNCTION 

King IV P.10 

In the year under review the Company Secretary was Ms Mfa-
na, who was appointed with effect from December 2019 to 
provide the Board with effective and efficient corporate gov-
ernance and company secretarial support.
 
The Company Secretary reports directly to the Board with 
the responsibility for advising the Board, through the Chair-
man, on all governance matters and any breach of legislation 
which may arise. The Company Secretary acts as the primary 
point of contact between the Board and the agency.
 
The Board if satisfied that the Company Secretary has main-
tained an arms-length relationship with the Board and is 
qualified to perform her duties in accordance with the appli-
cable legislation. She is considered by the Board to be fit and 
proper for the position. In accordance with the King IV Code 
and best practice, the Company Secretary is not a director 
of the Company and is deemed by the Board to be suitably 
independent.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board member Sitting allowance Re-imbursive travel expenses Total

Mr SE Mase 51 700 - 51 700

Mr M Msiwa 68 200 - 68 200

Mr MM Pupuma 102 383 - 102 383

Mrs NDA Ngewu 100 100 - 100 100

Dr LL Ndabeni 88 000 - 88 000

Ms UN Mkize 78 100 - 78 100

Prof LY Majova-Songca 85 250 - 85 250

Ms NSN Bam 110 000 - 110 000

Dr NT Ndudane 99 414 - 99 414

Mrs N Makuni* 44 335 - 44 335

827 482 - 827 482

Members of the Board are non-executive directors. In order to enable them to carry out their responsibilities efficiently and effectively 
some members are provided with computer equipment and data bundles. Except for the Board Chairperson members are divided to 
serve in board committees. *Mrs. Makuni serves as an independent member of the Audit and Risk Committee only. 

BOARD REMUNERATION
The remuneration of the Board members is stipulated by the parent municipality, upon appointment of the director and is 
reviewed annually by the municipality. The Board members are remunerated per meeting and are reimbursed for travel in 
terms of Ntinga’s Subsistence and Travel policy. The Board members do not claim for preparation fees and do not receive 
retention allowances.
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REPORT OF THE 
AUDIT & RISK 
COMMITTEE (ARC)

PART I 

 Dear Stakeholder 

The Audit and Risk Committee (the committee) is pleased to 
present its report for the financial year ended 30 June 2021. 
 ARC, an independent statutory committee appointed by the 
shareholder, consists of independent non-executive board 
members. Its overall objectives are to assist the Board with 
ensuring that adequate systems and controls are in place, thus 
ensuring that the assets are safeguarded; assessing the going 
concern status; reviewing the financial information, and over-
seeing the preparation of financial statements.
 The committee also assists the Board in fulfilling its responsi-
bilities of risk management. 

The Local Government defines the committee’s statutory re-
sponsibilities: Municipal Finance Management Act and the 
Companies Act and it has further responsibilities delegated to 
it by the Board.

AUDIT & RISK COMMITTEE 
RESPONSIBILITY
The committee has complied with its re-
sponsibilities arising from Sections 166(2) 
and 121(4) (g) of the MFMA. It has also 
reviewed and adopted appropriate terms 
of reference in its Audit & Risk Committee 
charter which provides clarity for its statu-
tory and delegated duties as a committee 
of the Board of Directors.

ARC MEMBERS AND ATTENDANCE

The committee should comprise at least three directors who 
are considered independent non-executive directors in terms 
of both the Companies Act and King IV. Membership of the 
committee during the year under review was as follows:
Chairperson:
• Nosipho Doris Ngewu: Appointed 1 March 2021
 
Members:     
• N Bam: Appointed 1 March 2021
• LY Majova-Songca: Term expired on 28 February 2021
• M Msiwa: Term expired on 28 February 2021
• UN Mkize: Term expired on 28 February 2021
• N Makuni* Appointed 27 January 2021 (Independent                         
Committee Member)
 
*Ms. Makuni is appointed as an Independent member of the 
Committee and does not serve on the Board.

This creates maximum value and oversight for stakeholders.
The committee met six times during the year under review. 
The table on page 56 of the Report references the atten-
dance at these meetings. The Chief Executive Officer, Chief 
Financial Officer, senior management team and internal and 
external auditors regularly attend meetings by invitation.

THE EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL  
CONTROLS AND ASSURANCE

In line with the requirements of the MFMA, Internal Audit is 
required to provide the ARC and management with assur-
ance that the internal controls are appropriate and effective. 
This is achieved by means of the risk management process as 
well as the identification of corrective actions and suggested 

enhancements to the controls and processes. The system of 
internal controls applied by the entity over financial manage-
ment is considered effective, efficient and transparent.
Based on the results of the internal and external audit re-
ports, and information and explanations given by manage-
ment, the committee is of the view that the systems of inter-
nal control over risk and IT governance require improvement. 
The committee is however encouraged that the necessary 
measures are being taken to remediate the deficiencies iden-
tified relating to risk and IT management, compliance and 
internal controls.
Internal audit has audited and reviewed the following to pro-
vide assurance, however, the list is not exhaustive:
• Review of Quarterly Performance Reports; 
• Annual Financial Statements Review; 
• Review of Annual Performance Report; 
• Follow-up on Internal Audit Reports; 
• Implementation of Auditor General Management Audit Ac-
tion Plan; 
• Review of Supply Chain Management; 
• Review of the 2020/21 Service Delivery and Budget Imple-
mentation Plan; 
• Review of the Draft 2021/22 SDBIP and 
• ARC Ad – Hoc requests. 
 

THE QUALITY MANAGEMENT OF 
QUARTERLY REPORTS SUBMITTED TO THE 
ARC

The committee has reviewed the management quarterly re-
ports tabled for submission in terms of MFMA. Systems and 
processes are in place for monitoring and reporting on bud-
getary performance and against set targets. The commit-
tee is satisfied that the mechanisms in place for the in-year 
management of resources are effective notwithstanding the 
deficiencies noted in the Internal Audit reviews and AGSA 
Audit Reports.

EVALUATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The committee has reviewed and discussed the audited An-
nual Financial Statements (AFS) and Annual Performance 
Report (APR) to be included in the Annual Report with the 
Auditor General and Management. The committee accepted 
and welcomed the Auditor-General’s conclusion on the un-
qualified Annual Financial Statements. The Board approved 
the Annual Financial Statements on 29 October 2021 and 
these will be presented to the Shareholder at the Annual 
General Meeting.
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INTERNAL AUDIT

The committee is satisfied that the Internal Audit function is operating effectively and that the Internal Audit procedures have ad-
dressed the risks pertinent to the entity. The committee considered the following in relation to the internal audit function in the year 
under review:
• Internal audit charter; 
• Annual audit plan including the alignment of the audit plan with the company’s key risk areas of concern; 
• Internal audit reports; 
• Management action plans; 
• Co-ordination with external auditors: and 
• The independence and effectiveness of the function.

AUDITOR GENERAL SOUTH AFRICA (AGSA)

The committee has met with the Auditor-General of South Africa 
and there are no unresolved issues. The AGSA has maintained 
its independence and the audit for the year under review was 
conducted effectively. The Audit Report of the Annual Report 
provides further detail on the performance of the entity and the 
outcomes of the external audit.
 

COVID-19 GLOBAL PANDEMIC

The COVID-19 pandemic has materially affected the company’s 
operations, throughout the financial year, resulting in a decrease 
in revenue, profitability and cash flows. The committee interro-
gated the effects of these changes and continues to engage the 
Board on the need for further recapitalisation and restructuring 
of the entity’s finances to assist with post-COVID-19 recovery 
plans to be implemented.

OUTLOOK

As we move forward to the next period, the Committee will focus 
on:
• Continuing to closely monitor the going concern status of the 
entity, its liquidity and the adequate recapitalisation of opera-
tions by the Parent Municipality; 
• The clear implementation of the turnaround plans for the im-
provement of the performance of the enterprises and the moni-
toring of the effects thereof on the entity’s financial viability; and 
• Strengthen the entity’s risk management and IT governance 
functions for the future.

APPRECIATION
I wish to express my appreciation to the members of the Com-
mittee and to the Ntinga management team for their commit-
ment and support in this financial year.

Audit and Risk Committee Chairperson
Rev. Nosipho Ngewu
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Report of the auditor-general 
to Eastern Cape Provincial 
Legislature on Ntinga OR Tambo 
Development Agency SOC Ltd 

Audit 
Report

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Opinion

1.  I have audited the financial statements of the Ntinga OR Tambo Development Agency SOC Ltd set out on pages 100 to 167, which 
comprise the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2021, the statement of financial performance, statement of changes in 
net assets and cash flow statement and statement of comparison of budget information with actual information for the year then 
ended, as well as notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

2.  In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Ntinga OR Tambo Devel-
opment Agency SOC Ltd as at 30 June 2021, and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance 
with the South African Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP) and the requirements of the Municipal 
Finance Management Act 56 of 2003 (MFMA) and the Companies Act 71 of 2008.

Basis of opinion

3. I conducted my audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Myresponsibilities under those standards 
are further described in the auditor-general’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of my report.

4. I am independent of the municipal entity in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ International 
code of ethics for professional accountants (including International Independence Standards) (IESBA code) as well as other ethical 
requirements that are relevant to my audit in South Africa. I have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements and the IESBA code.

5.  I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.

Emphasis of matter

6.  I draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Irregular expenditure

7.  As disclosed in note 33.2 to the financial statements, irregular expenditure of R1.5 million (2019-20: R1.4 million) that was incurred 
in the previous years was not investigated.

Responsibilities of the accounting officer for the financial statements

8. The board of directors, which constitutes the accounting officer, is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in accordance with GRAP and the requirements of the MFMA and the Companies Act, and for such internal 
control as the accounting officer determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from ma-
terial misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

9.  In preparing the financial statements, the accounting officer is responsible for assessing the municipal entity’s ability to continue 
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting 
unless the appropriate governance structure either intends to liquidate the municipal entity or to cease operations, or has no re-
alistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor-general’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

10. My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material mis-
statement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high 
level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the tSAs will always detect a material mis-
statement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, 
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
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11.  A further description of my responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is included in the annexure to this auditor’s 
report.

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE ANNUAL PERFORMANCE REPORT 

Introduction and scope

12.  In accordance with the Public Audit Act 25 of 2004 (PAA) and the general notice issued in terms thereof, I have a responsibility to 
report on the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information against predetermined objectives for the select-
ed objective presented in the annual performance report. I performed procedures to identify material findings but not to gather 
evidence to express assurance.

13. My procedures address the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information, which must be based on the mu-
nicipal entity’s approved performance planning documents. I have not evaluated the completeness and appropriateness of the 
performance indicators included in the planning documents. My procedures do not examine whether the actions taken by the 
municipal entity enabled service delivery. My procedures do not extend to any disclosures or assertions relating to the extent of 
achievements in the current year or planned performance strategies and information in respect of future periods that may be 
included as part of the reported performance information. Accordingly, my findings do not extend to these matters.

14. I evaluated the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information in accordance with the criteria developed from 
the performance management and reporting framework, as defined in the general notice, for the following selected objective 
presented in the municipal entity’s annual performance report for the year ended 30 June 2021:

15. I performed procedures to determine whether the reported performance information was consistent with the approved per-
formance planning documents. I performed further procedures to determine whether the indicators and related targets were 
measurable and relevant, and assessed the reliability of the reported performance information to determine whether it was valid, 
accurate and complete.

16.  The material findings on the usefulness of the performance information of the selected objective are as follows:

Strategic goal 1: Sustainable water services {water supply and sanitation) systems

1.1.1. Number of repaired water supply schemes, revenue generated from repairs in each water supply scheme, revenue generated  
from maintenance in each water supply scheme.

Number of repaired water schemes
17.  The indicator includes the following:
 • Revenue generated from repairs in each water supply scheme
 • Revenue generated from maintenance in each water supply scheme.

However, the target and the actual achievement do not make any reference to the above.
Therefore, there is no consistency between the indicator and target and the actual achievement as none of the revenue as indicated 
above was targeted and reported in the actual achievement.

Number of maintained water schemes
18. The indicator includes the following:
 • Number of repaired water supply schemes
 • Revenue generated from repairs in each water supply scheme
 • Revenue generated from maintenance in each water supply scheme.

 However, the target and the actual achievement only make reference to the number of water schemes maintained while the indi-
cator, as shown above, does not make reference to the number of maintained water schemes, but instead refers to the number of 
repaired water schemes. The only reference made which relates to the maintenance, is the revenue generated from maintenance 
in each water supply scheme and not the number of maintained water schemes.

 Therefore, there is no consistency between the indicator and target and the actual achievement

1.2.1. Number of households that have yard connections in each water supply scheme, number of churches and schools that have yard 
water connections in each water supply scheme

22. The target is stated as 300 businesses while the indicator makes no reference of businesses.

 Therefore, there is no consistency between the target and the indicator.

1.2.2. Revenue generated by water services department from maintenance of water schemes.

23. The indicator only includes the revenue generated from maintenance of water schemes and not the refurbishment of water schemes.

 Therefore the target is not specific in terms of whether the revenue is expected to be generated from maintenance or refurbishments.
 While the reported achievement includes the revenue generated from refurbishment and maintenance of water schemes, this 

is not consistent with the indicator as the key performance indicator (KPI) refers only to revenue from maintenance of water 
schemes.

Therefore, the reported achievement is not consistent with the indicator.

Other matters

24. I draw attention to the matters below.

Achievement of planned targets

25. Refer to the annual performance report on pages 46 to 59 for information on the achievement of planned targets for the year. This 
information should be considered in the context of the material findings on the usefulness of the reported performance information 
in paragraphs) 17 to 23 of this report.

Adjustment of material misstatements

26. I identified material misstatements in the annual performance report submitted for auditing. These material misstatements were 
in the reported performance information of sustainable water services (water supply and sanitation) systems. As management 
subsequently corrected only some of the misstatements, I raised material findings on the usefulness of the reported performance 
information. Those that were not corrected are reported above.

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF COMPLIANCE WITH LEGISLATION

Introduction and scope

27. In accordance with the PAA and the general notice issued in terms thereof, I have a responsibility to report material findings on 
the municipal entity’s compliance with specific matters in key legislation. I performed procedures to identify findings but not to 
gather evidence to express assurance. 

28. The material findings on compliance with specific matters in key legislation are as follows:
 Annual financial statements and annual report

Objective Pages in the annual performance report

Strategic goal 1 - Sustainable water services 
(water resource management supply and sanitation)

46 - 47
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29. The financial statements submitted for auditing were not prepared in all material respects in accordance with the requirements 
of section 122( 1) of the MFMA. Material misstatements of inventory, property, plant and equipment and contingent liabilities 
identified by the auditors in the submitted financial statement were subsequently corrected and/or the supporting records were 
provided subsequently, resulting in the financial statements receiving an unqualified audit opinion.

Consequence management

30. Irregular expenditure incurred by the municipal entity were not investigated to determine whether any person is liable for the 
expenditure, as required by municipal budget and reporting regulation 75(1 ).

OTHER INFORMATION

31. The accounting officer is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the 
annual report, which includes the directors’ report, the audit committee’s report and the company secretary’s certificate, as 
required by the Companies Act. The other information does not include the financial statements, the auditor’s report and the 
selected objective presented in the annual performance report that has been specifically reported in this auditor’s report.

32. My opinion on the financial statements and findings on the reported performance information and compliance with legislation do 
not cover the other information and I do not express an audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion on it.

33. In connection with my audit, my responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other infor-
mation is materially inconsistent with the financial statements and the selected objective presented in the annual performance 
report, or my knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

34. When I do receive and read the annual report and if I conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, I am required to 
communicate the matter to those charged with governance and request that the other information be corrected. If the other 
information is not corrected, I may have to retract this auditor’s report and re-issue an amended report as appropriate. However, 
if it is corrected, this will not be necessary.

INTERNAL CONTROL DEFICIENCIES

35. I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements, reported performance information and compliance 
with applicable legislation; however, my objective was not to express any form of assurance on it. The matters reported below 
are limited to the significant internal control deficiencies that resulted in the findings on the annual performance report and the 
findings on complianqe with legislation included in this report.

 Monitoring activities were established by the entity. These were, however, not fully effective in the current year, as material 
misstatements in the submitted financial statements that were subsequently corrected and annual performance report, and 
non-compliance with legislation were identified in the current year.

East London
30 November 2021

ANNEXURE -AUDITOR-GENERAL’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE AUDIT

1.  As part of an audit in accordance with the ISAs, I exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism through-
out my audit of the financial statements and the procedures performed on reported performance information for the selected 
objective and on the municipal entity’s compliance with respect to the selected subject matters.

Financial statements
2.  In addition to my responsibility for the audit of the financial statements as described in this auditor’s report, J also:

•  identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error; design and per-
form audit procedures responsive to those risks; and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

•  obtain an understanding of internai control relevant lo the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the municipal entity’s internal control.

•  evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures 
made by the board of directors, which constitutes the accounting officer.

•  conclude on the appropriateness of the accounting officer’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of 
the financial statements. I also conclude, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists relating 
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Ntinga OR Tambo Development Agency SOC Ltd 
to continue as a going concern. If I conclude that a material uncertainty exists, I am required to draw attention in my auditor’s 
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements about the material uncertainty or, if such disclosures are inadequate, 
to modify my opinion on the financial statements. My conclusions are based on the information available to me at the date of this 
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause a municipal entity to cease operating as a going concern.

•  evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and determine 
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

•  obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the 
group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. I am responsible for the direction, supervision and perfor-
mance of the group audit. I remain solely responsible for my audit opinion.

Communication with those charged with governance

3.  I communicate with the accounting officer regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant 
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that I identify during my audit.

4.  I also provide the accounting officer with a statement that I have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, 
and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to have a bearing on my 
independence and, where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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NTINGA O. R. TAMBO DEVELOPMENT AGENCY SOC LTD
(A MUNICIPAL ENTITY OF THE O. R. TAMBO DISTRICT MUNICIPALITY : 
REGISTRATION NUMBER: 2016/272582/30)

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021
GENERAL INFORMATION

NATURE OF BUSINESS
Service Delivery vehicle of the parent municipality, O.R. Tambo District Municipality. 

LEGAL FORM
A Municipal Entity of the O.R. Tambo District Municipality as defined by the Municipal 
Structures Act.  (Act no 117 of 1998) 

ACTING CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
Mr. L. MBIKO
Appointed on 07 December 2020 to act in this position. Previous CEO, Mr. P. Pongwana
resigned with effect from 19 January 2021.

ACTING CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
Mr. M. MPATHENI
(Appointed on 07 December 2020 to act in this position)

REGISTERED OFFICE
Old Government Printers Building, 5 Textile Road, Vulindlela Heights, Southernwood, Mthatha

EXTERNAL AUDITORS
Auditor General South Africa

PRINCIPAL BANKERS
First National Bank

MOST RELEVANT LEGISLATION       
- Constitution of the Republic of South Africa (Act no. 108 of 1996)      
 
- Municipal Finance Management Act (Act no 56 of 2003) (MFMA)      
 
- Division of Revenue Act (Act No.3 of 2016)        
- The Income Tax Act (Act no. 58 of 1962)        
- Value Added Tax Act (Act no. 89 of 1991)        
- Local Government: Municipal Structures Act (Act no 117 of 1998)      
 
- Local Government: Municipal Systems Act (Act no 32 of 2000)      
 
- Municipal Planning and Performance Management Regulations of 2001 issued in terms of Local Government: Municipal  
   Systems Act (Act no. 32 of 2000)        
- Skills Development Levies Act (Act no 9 of 1999)        
- Employment Equity Act (Act no 55 of 1998)        
- Unemployment Insurance Act (Act no 30 of 1966)        
- Basic Conditions of Employment Act (Act no 75 of 1997)       
 
- Supply Chain Management Regulations, 2005 issued in terms of Local Government: Municipal Finance Management Act 
   (Act no.     56 of 2003)        
Collective Agreements        
- South African Local Government Bargaining Council - Collective Agreement on Leave    
 
- Companies Act (Act no.71 of 2008)

(A MUNICIPAL ENTITY OF THE O. R. TAMBO DISTRICT MUNICIPALITY : 
REGISTRATION NUMBER: 2016/272582/30) 

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021
ACCOUNTING OFFICER’S STATEMENT

The accounting officer is required by the Municipal Finance Management Act, to maintain adequate accounting records and is 
responsible for the content and integrity of the annual financial statements and related financial information included in this 
report.  It is his responsibility to ensure that the annual financial statements fairly present the state of affairs of the Entity as 
at the end of the financial year and the results of its operations and cash flows for the period then ended, in conformity with 
Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP).  The external auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion on 
the annual financial statements. 

The Annual Financial Statements are prepared in accordance with Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP) and the 
MFMA, and are based upon appropriate accounting policies consistently applied and supported by reasonable and prudent 
judgments and estimates. 

I, as the Accounting Officer, acknowledge that I am ultimately responsible for the system of internal financial control estab-
lished by the Entity and place considerable importance on maintaining a strong control environment.  To enable me to meet 
these responsibilities, I have set standards for internal control aimed at reducing the risk of error or deficit in a cost-effective 
manner.  The standards include the proper delegation of responsibilities within a clearly defined framework, effective ac-
counting procedures and adequate segregation of duties to ensure an acceptable level of risk.  These controls are monitored 
throughout the Entity and all employees are required to maintain the highest ethical standards in ensuring the Entity’s business 
is conducted in a manner that in all reasonable circumstances is above reproach.  The focus of risk management in the Entity is 
on identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring all known forms of risks. While operating risks cannot be fully eliminated, 
the Entity endeavours to minimise them by ensuring that appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical behaviour 
are applied and managed within predetermined procedures and constraints. 

The annual financial statements set out on pages 2 to 44, which have been prepared on the going concern basis, were ap-
proved on 31 August 2021.

Mr. L. Mbiko        
Acting Chief Executive Officer
Date 30/11/2021
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(A MUNICIPAL ENTITY OF THE O. R. TAMBO DISTRICT MUNICIPALITY : 
REGISTRATION NUMBER: 2016/272582/30) 

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2021 
CERTIFICATE BY THE COMPANY SECRETARY

In terms of Section 88(2)(e) of the South African Companies Act No. 71 of 2008, Company Secretary must certify whether the 
company has filed required returns and notices in terms of this Act and whether all such returns and notices appear to be true, 
correct and up to date.

The Company Secretary resigned with effect from 29 July 2021 hence at the time of issuing these Annual Financial Statements, 
that is 31 August 2021, the position was vacant.

Management certifies that the company has lodged with the Companies and Intellectual Property Commission, all such returns 
as are required in terms of the Companies Act and that all such returns and notices are true, correct and up to date.

Mr. L. Mbiko        
Acting Chief Executive Officer
Date 30/11/2021

(A MUNICIPAL ENTITY OF THE O. R. TAMBO DISTRICT MUNICIPALITY : REGISTRATION 
NUMBER: 2016/272582/30) 

DIRECTORS REPORT

Directors submit their report for the financial year ended 30 June 2021.

1. Main business and operations
The Ntinga O.R. Tambo Development Agency, a municipal entity established by the O.R. Tambo District Municipality (ORTDM) 
performs activities which fall within the functions and powers of  district municipalities as contemplated in Section 84(1) of the 
Municipal Structures Act, 1998 (Act 117 of 1998), in particular Section 84 (1).

2. Taxation
The Entity is a operating as a State Owned Company, incorporated as a private company. In terms of the Income Tax Act, a private 
company is liable for Income Tax.

3. Board of Directors
The directors of the Entity appointed for a period of five years are as follows:

Name    Nationality Appointment date Changes  
        
Mr. S. Mase (Chairperson)  RSA  01 July 2017  Resigned on 03 May 2021  
Professor L. Majova-Songca 
(Deputy Chairperson)  RSA  01 July 2017  Resigned on 30 April 2021  
Mr. M. Msiwa   RSA  01 July 2017  Resigned on 03 May 2021  
Ms. U. Mkize   RSA  01 July 2017  -  
Dr. L. Ndabeni   RSA  01 July 2017  -  
Ms. N. Bam   RSA  01 July 2017  -  
Dr. N.L. Ndudane   RSA  01 July 2017  -  
Mr. M. Pupuma   RSA  01 July 2017  -  
Mrs. N. Ngewu   RSA  01 July 2017  -  

4. Entity Company Secretary
The Company Secretary of the Entity was Ms. C. Mfana. She resigned from the Entity with effect from 29 July 2021.   
     
        
5. Business Address: 
Old Government Printers Building, 5 Textile Road, Vulindlela Heights, Mthatha, 5100
     
6. Physical Address:        
Old Government Printers Building, 5 Textile Road, Vulindlela Heights, Mthatha, 5100

7. Postal Address:            
P.O. Box 1134, Mthatha, 5100

8. Members of the Audit and Risk Committee (ARC)       
        
 The members of the ARC were as follows:-       
        
 Name       Changes   
        
 Professor L.Y. Majova-Songca (Chairperson)   Term expired on 28 February 2021   
 Ms U.N. Mkize      Term expired on 28 February 2021   
 Mr. M. Msiwa      Term expired on 28 February 2021   
 Ms. N. Makuni - Independent Member.    -   
 Ms. N.D.A. Ngewu (Chairperson)     Appointed with effect from 01 March 2021  
 
 Ms. N.S.N. Bam      Appointed with effect from 01 March 2021  
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9. Members of the Human Resource and Remuneration Committee       
 
         
 The members of the Human Resource and Remuneration Committee (HRRC) were as follows:-    
    
         
 Name        
 Mr. M.M. Pupuma (Chairperson)        
 Ms. N.S.N. Bam        
 Dr. N.T. Ndudane        
 Ms. N.D.A. Ngewu        
         
10. Members of the Strategy Development and Investment Committee       
 
         
 The members of Strategy Development and Investment Committee (SDIC) were as follows:-    
    
 Name       Changes     
 Mr. M. Msiwa (Chairperson)     Resigned on 03 May 2021    
 Dr. N.T. Ndudane      -     
 Dr. L. Ndabeni      -     
 Mr. M. Pupuma      -     
 Ms. N.S.N. Bam      Moved to ARC with effect from 01 March 2021  
   
 Professor L.Y. Majova-Songca    Appointed with effect from 01 March 2021 and
        resigned on 30 April 2021.    
 
         
11. Members of the Social and Ethics Committee        
         
 The members of Social and Ethics Committee (SEC) were as follows:-       
 
         
 Name       Changes     
 Ms. U. Mkize (Chairperson)     -     
 Ms. N.D.A. Ngewu      Moved to ARC with effect from 01 March 2021 
 Dr. L. Ndabeni      -     
 Professor L.Y. Majova-Songca    Appointed with effect from 01 March 2021 and
        resigned on 30 April 2021.    
 
         
12. The Entity’s Mandate        
         
 The mandate given to the Entity by the Parent Municipality includes rendering services in the following areas:  
      
         
 - Intergrated Development Plan;        
 - Potable Water Supply Systems;        
 - Domestic and Industrial Waste-water and Sewage Disposal Systems;      
 - Fresh Produce Markets and Abattoirs;        
 - Local Tourism Promotion;        
 - Municipal Public Works;        
 - Collection of rates, Levies and Duties, and        
 - Discretionary Activities (which include):        
 (a)  Any other activity agreed upon with the Parent Municipality, Provincial and National Governments and the Private  
 Sector.         
         
13. Financial results
        
 The Entity made a deficit of R 11,542,392 (2020: deficit R 6,114,760).        
 
 The reduced funding for the Water Services function has contributed to the increase in deficit in the current year. The fair  
 values of biological assets remained stable in the current financial year and there were no assets donation received in the  
 current year compared to the previous year.           
       

14. Legal form of the Entity        
         
 The Entity is a Municipal Entity incorporated as a State Owned Company in terms of the Companies Act.   
     
         
15. Impact of COVID on business        
         
 The Entity encountered disruptions in operations. At times suppliers could not supply the Entity with the required goods  
 or services due closures. In addition, there has been a noticeable reduction in demand for goods supplied by the Entity.  
 There has also been added operational costs owing to remote working arrangements as well as the requirement to   
 comply with COVID-19 Regulations. At the sametime, other operational costs such as travel and accommodation   
 have reduced.             
         
16. Going concern        
         
 The parent municipality, O.R. Tambo District Municipality, continues to provide financial support to the Entity. There is   
 commitment by the parent to continue funding the entity. The Entity is implementing a strategy that is focused  on   
 generating own revenue particularly from its trading enterprises.        
 
         
         
         
         
17. Events after the reporting date        
         
 The Entity’s cashflow and liquidity position has been affected by not receiving the full monthly tranches of July 2021 and  
 August 2021 grant funding from the parent municipality. The is due to the parent municipality grants being withheld by  
 National Treasury. The Entity was informed that with effect from 20 August 2021, Council of the parent municipality was  
 dissolved, and an Administrator appointed.        
         
18. Holding Entity        
         
 The holding entity is the O.R. Tambo District Municipality.       
 
         
19. External Auditors        
         
 Auditor General of South Africa (Eastern Cape) will continue in office in accordance with the MFMA.   
     
         
         
         
20. Website 

 www.ntinga.org.za       
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NOTE 30 JUNE 2021
R (ACTUAL)

 JUNE 2020
R (ACTUAL)

ASSETS

Current Assets   15,536,262   18,454,272 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 2   3,309,325   13,278,532 

Receivables from exchange transactions 3   69,942   752,164

Inventory 4   4,060,042   3,235,871 

Receivables from non-exchange transactions 5   8,096,954   1,187,705

  

Non-Current Assets   68,626,998   75,181,029 

Property, Plant and Equipment 8   54,969,817   59,420,271 

Intangible Assets 9   483,522   671,228 

Biological Assets 10   13,173,660   15,089,530 

Deferred tax 7  - -

Total Assets   84,163,260   93,635,301 

NET ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities   23,581,238   21,455,742 

Payables from exchange transactions 11   5,271,050   5,834,200 

Payables from non-exchange transactions 12   446,974   446,974 

Unspent Conditional Government Grants and Receipts 12   4,307,504   5,748,198 

Current Employee benefits 14   4,788,007   4,586,855 

Current portion of long - term liabilities 16   296,953   87,536 

Taxes 6   8,470,750   4,751,979 

  

Non - Current Liabilities 16   67,281   122,420 

Long - term liabilities   67,281   122,420 

TOTAL LIABILITIES   23,648,519   21,578,161

NET ASSETS   60,514,741   72,057,140 

Accumulated Surplus   60,514,743   72,057,135 

TOTAL NET ASSETS   84,163,260   93,635,301 

 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 30 JUNE 2021 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

NOTE 30 JUNE 2021
R (ACTUAL)

 JUNE 2020
R (ACTUAL)

REVENUE

Non-exchange Revenue   46,443,139   46,514,585 

Transfers and Subsidies 17   46,443,139   46,514,585 

Exchange Revenue   17,758,288   24,784,089 

Interest Earned - external investments   194,956   385,520 

Sale of Goods and Rendering of Services 18   17,563,332   24,398,569 

Gains   3,255,876   9,073,081

Adjustments to Biological Assets 19.1   2,956,707   6,604,567 

Gains on disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment -   4,731 

Gains on disposal of Biological Assets   299,169   - 

Intercompany Transactions - Donation of Assets 19.3   -   2,463,783

Total Revenue   67,457,303   80,371,755

EXPENDITURE   12,914,452 

Employee related costs 20   44,944,690   45,031,065 

Board of directors related costs 21   827,482   932,106 

Depreciation and Amortisation 23   5,415,041   5,466,038 

Loss on disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment   54,863   - 

Repairs and Maintenance   108,028   145,654 

Finance Charges 24   263,153   70,020 

Operational costs 26   24,563,104   32,475,885 

Contracted services 27   2,346,035   2,124,547 

Losses - Biological Assets 19.2   477,300   241,200 

Total Expenditure   78,999,695   86,486,515

Loss before tax for the year   (11,542,392)   (6,114,760)

Income tax 7   -   -

Loss after tax for the year   (11,542,392)   (6,114,760)
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ACUMULATED/ SURPLUS/ 
(Deficit)

Total 

R R

Balance at 1 JULY 2019   85,391,446   85,391,446 

Net Deficit for the year   (6,114,760)   (6,114,760) 

  

Previously reported at 30 June 2020   79,276,686   79,276,686

Correction of error   (note 25)   (7,219,551)   (7,219,551)

Restated Balance at 30 JUNE 2020   72,057,135   72,057,135

Net Deficit for the year   (11,542,392)   (11,542,392)

Balance at 30 JUNE 2021   60,514,743   60,514,743

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS FOR THE YEAR ENDED

NOTE 30 JUNE 2021
R (ACTUAL)

 JUNE 2020
R (ACTUAL)

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES R R

Receipts

    Grants and public contributions   45,002,446   49,297,177 

    Sales of goods and services   11,336,306   33,389,172 

    Interest Earned - external investments   194,956   385,520 

Payments  

    Suppliers   (20,819,283)   (29,560,672)

    Employees and directors   (45,772,172)   (44,830,248)

    Finance charges   (263,153)   (70,020)

Cash utilised by operations 29   (10,320,900)   8,610,929 

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment 32   (764,470)   (673,495)

Proceeds on Disposal of Fixed Assets   1,243   17,112

Purchase of Intangible Assets   (68,523)   (132,958)

Purchase of Biological assets   (2,096,900)   (947,785)

Proceeds on Disposal of Biological assets   3,126,064   -

Net Cash Utilised by Investing Activities   197,414   (1,737,126)

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

New loans raised   377,094   270,189 

Loans repaid   (222,815)   (147,769)

Net Cash from Financing Activities   154,279   122,420 

  

NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH AND 
CASH EQUIVALENTS

  (9,969,207)   6,996,223 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year   13,278,532   6,282,309 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 30   3,309,325   13,278,532 

NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH 
EQUIVALENTS

  (9,969,207)   6,996,223 

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021   
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2020 / 2021

Notes Original 
Budget

Adjust-
ments 

Budget

Final 
Adjusted 

Budget

Actual 
Outcome

Variance 
Amount

Vari-
ance %

ASSETS

Current Assets   9,567,635   (7,276,561)   2,291,074   15,536,262   (13,245,188)

Cash and Cash Equivalents 1a   8,994,523   -8,793,424   201,099   3,309,325   (3,108,226) -1546%

Receivables from exchange 
transactions

1b   200,000 267,975 469,975   69,942   400,033 85%

Inventory 1c   173,112   1,296,888   1,470,000   4,060,042   (2,590,042) -176% 

Receivables from non-exchange 
transactions

1d   200,000   -50,000   150,000   8,096,954   (7,946,954)  -5298%

Non-Current Assets   106,698,827  (28,063,738)    78,635,089   68,626,998   10,008,092 

Property, Plant and Equipment   84,050,867   -28,709,782   55,341,085   54,969,817   371,269 1%

Intangible Assets 1f   393,906   111,017   504,923   483,522   21,401 4%

Biological Assets 1g   15,034,503   535,027   15,569,530   13,173,660   2,395,870 15%

Deferred tax 1n 7,219,551   -    7,219,551   -    7,219,551 100%

TOTAL ASSETS   116,266,462  (35,340,299)   80,926,163   84,163,260   (3,237,096)

NET ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities   1,690,000   6,934,491   8,624,491   23,581,238   (14,956,747)

Payables from exchange transac-
tions

1h   100,000   1,644,617   1,744,617   5,271,050   (3,526,433) -202%

Payables from non-exchange 
transactions

  -     446,973   446,973   446,974   (1) 0%

Unspent Conditional Government 
Grants and Receipts

1j   -     -    -     4,307,504   (4,307,504) 0%

Current Employee benefits 1j   1,200,000   2,900,000   4,100,000 4,788,007   (688,007) -17%

Current portion of long-term 
liabilities

1k   87,536   87,536   296,953   (209,417) -239%

Deferred tax 1l   390,000   1,855,365   2,245,365   8,470,750   (6,225,385) -277%

Non - Current Liabilities   -    34,884   34,884   67,281   (32,397)

Long-term liabilities 1m   -     34,884   34,884   67,281   (32,397) -93%

TOTAL LIABILITIES   1,690,000   6,969,375   8,659,375   23,648,519

NET ASSETS   114,576,462  (42,309,674)   72,266,788   60,514,741

Accumulated Surplus   114,576,464   -42,309,675   72,266,789   60,514,743   2

TOTAL NET ASSETS   116,266,462  (35,340,299)    80,926,163   84,163,260

STATEMENT OF COMPARISON OF BUDGET AND ACTUAL AMOUNTS 
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AT 30 JUNE 2021 
   
COMPARISON OF ACTUAL FIGURES TO FINAL BUDGET

STATEMENT OF COMPARISON OF BUDGET AND ACTUAL AMOUNTS 
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AT 30 JUNE 2021 

COMPARISON OF ACTUAL FIGURES TO FINAL BUDGET

The diffference between the final adjustments budget and the final budget are due to virements in terms of the 
entity’s approved policy.

Explanations of variances greater than 10% between final budget and actual income.
 

1a Some of the special projects for which funds were received from funders could not be implemented due to lockdown   
 restrictions.       
1b An invoice issued to the municipality for VAT was not paid by year end.       
 
1c There was invetory at hand in the form of livestock bought towards the year end.       
 
1d These are pre-payment deposits for electricity paid to King Sabata Dalindyebo Municipality. The balance is the money  
 receivable from O.R. Tambo Distrit Municipality.       
1l No budget provision was made for an increase in the deffered tax asset due to the reason that the entity projected a   
 trading surplus.       
1f The variance is insignificant and is due to depreciation charges.       
1g The variance is caused by livestock transferred to inventory.       
1h Projections were that balances owed by the entity would be settled by year-end but that was not the case hence the 
 variance. Some of the balances were settled after year-end.        
1i Certain special projects for which funding was recieved could not be implented due to lockdown restrictions.   
     
1j A number of employees were working from home and did not utilise their annual leave days hence the higher than  
 anticipated leave provision.       
1k The variance is attributed to the short-term portion of the liability that arose from the acquisition of computer equipment  
 through leasing and the original plan was to buy them instead of leasing.      
 
1l This is due to VAT amount on grants, that was invoiced to ORTDM.      
 
1m The variance is attributed to the long-term portion of the liability that arose from the acquisition of computer equipment  
 through leasing and the original plan was to buy them instead of leasing.      
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2020 / 2021

Notes Original 
Budget

Adjust-
ments 

Budget

Final 
Adjusted 

Budget

Actual 
Outcome

Variance 
Amount

Variance %

REVENUE

Non-exchange Revenue   48,053,730   2,181,528   50,235,258   46,443,139 

Transfers and Subsidies 2a   48,053,730   2,181,528   50,235,258   46,443,139   3,792,119 8%

Exchange Revenue   64,596,007   (40,717,641)   23,878,366   17,758,288 

Interest Earned - external 
investments

  455,000   -200,000   255,000   194,956   60,044 24%

Sale of Goods and Rendering of 
Services

2b   64,141,007   -40,517,641   23,623,366   17,563,332   6,060,034 26%

Gains   2,140,000   -     2,140,000   2,956,707 

Adjustments to Biological Assets 2c   2,100,000   -     2,100,000   2,956,707   (856,707) -41%

Gains on disposal of Property, Plant 
and Equipment

2d   40,000   -     40,000   -     40,000 -100%

Intercompany Transactions - 
Donation of Assets

2e   -     -     -     -     -   -100%

Total Revenue   114,789,736   (38,536,113)   76,253,624   67,158,134   9,095,490 

EXPENDITURE

Employee related costs   47,976,354   -3,178,187   44,798,167   44,944,690   (146,523) 0%

Board of directors related costs 2f   1,214,350   -212,400   1,001,950   827,482   174,468 17%

Depreciation and Amortisation 2g   3,756,922   1,052,721   4,809,643   5,415,041   (605,398) -13%

Repairs and Maintenance 2h   215,080   -90,080   125,000   108,028   16,972 14%

Finance Charges 2i   41,580   -     41,580   263,153   (221,573) -533%

Operational costs 2j   33,402,844   -1,065,663   32,337,181   26,909,139   5,428,042 17%

Loss on disposal of Property, Plant 
and Equipment

  -     0   0   54,863   (54,863) -100%

Losses - Biological Assets 2l   150,000   -     150,000   477,300   (327,300) -218%

Total Expenditure   86,757,130   (3,493,609)   83,263,521   78,999,695   4,263,826 

(Loss)/Profit before tax for the 
year

  28,032,606 (35,042,504)   (7,009,897)   (11,841,561)   4,831,664

Income tax   -     -  

(Loss)/Profit after tax for the year   28,032,606 (35,042,504)   (7,009,897)   (11,841,561)   4,831,664 

STATEMENT OF COMPARISON OF BUDGET AND ACTUAL AMOUNTS 
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021
COMPARISON OF ACTUAL FIGURES TO FINAL BUDGET

STATEMENT OF COMPARISON OF BUDGET AND ACTUAL AMOUNTS
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AT 30 JUNE 2021
       
COMPARISON OF ACTUAL FIGURES TO FINAL BUDGET 

The diffference between the final adjustments budget and the final budget are due to virements in terms of the entity’s 
approved policy.       
       
Explanations of variances greater than 10% between final budget and actual income.      
 

2a Funding for certain projects from the parent municipality received and and the implementation of these projects was   
impacted negatively by lockdown restrictions.

       
2b Missed revenue targets for the fresh produce market, farms and water services are the main cause of the variance. The   

market is still unable to attract additional market agents to trade at its floor.       
 

2c Livestock at hand appreciated in value more than originally anticipated. Valuation of livestock was conducted by an inde  
pendent and professional Veterinarian. 

        
2d Disposal of redundant assets could not be conducted due to COVID-19 lockdown restrictions.     

 
2f Owing to lockdown restrictions, Board and Committee meetings were held virtually in the second half of the financial   

year hence the savings on the budget.
       
2g Budgeted depreciation of assets was undersestimated hence the variance.
      
2h This variance is due to efficiencies otherwise assets requiring repairs and maintenance were attended to.
      
2i The variance is attributed mainly to interest charged by the parent municipality on overdue water account at Kei Fresh   

Produce Market and laptop computers that were purchased on finance lease. Part of the water balance originated before   
the market was transferred to Ntinga. 

     
2j Budgeted opertional costs include expenditure on special projects. As stated in 2a above the implementation of these   

projects was negatively impacted by lockdown restrictions. With staff having to work from virtually and rotation, there   
were savings on some of the budgeted operational expenditure items.    

       
1l The livestock death were mainly due to the red water desease in the farms and it was not anticipated.    
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2020 / 2021

Notes Original 
Budget

Adjust-
ments 

Budget

Final 
Adjusted 

Budget

Actual 
Outcome

Variance 
Amount

Vari-
ance %

CASHFLOW FROM OPERATING 
ACTIVITIES  

Receipts   90,820,571   (24,016,991)   66,803,580   56,533,708 

Grants and public contributions 3a   62,976,498   -18,709,319   44,267,179   45,002,446   (735,267) -2%

Sales of goods and services   27,444,073   -5,120,176   22,323,897   11,336,306   10,987,591 49%

Interest Earned - external
 nvestments

  400,000   -187,496   212,504   194,956   17,548 8%

Payments   (85,759,848)   4,574,484   (81,185,364)   (66,854,608)

Suppliers 3b -36,527,564.00   1,183,897   (35,343,667)   (20,819,283)   (14,524,384) 41%

Employees and directors   (49,190,704)   3,390,587   (45,800,117)   (45,772,172)   (27,945) 0%

Finance charges 3c   -41,580   -     (41,580)   (263,153)   221,573 -533%

Cash utilised by operations   5,060,723  (19,442,507)   (14,381,784)   (10,320,900)

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING 
ACTIVITIES

Purchase of Property, Plant and 
Equipment

3d   -1,768,510   1,445,510   (323,000)   (764,470)   441,470 -137%

Proceeds on Disposal of Fixed 
Assets

3e   120,000   -120,000   0   1,243   (1,243) 0%

Purchase of Intangible Assets 3f   -     -158,000   (158,000)   (68,523)   (89,477) 57%

Purchase of Biological assets 3g   -700,000   700,000   -     (2,096,900)   2,096,900 0%

Proceeds on Disposal of Biological 
assets

3h   -     1,785,351   1,785,351   3,126,064   (1,340,713) -75%

Net Cash from Investing Activities   (2,348,510)   3,652,861   1,304,351   197,414 

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING 
ACTIVITIES

New loans raised 3i   -    -     -     377,094   (377,094) 0%

Loans repaid 3j - - -   (222,815)   222,815 -100%

Net Cash from Financing Activities   -     -     -     154,280 

NET (DECREASE) / INCREASE IN 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

  2,712,213   (15,789,646)   (13,077,433)   (9,969,207)

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the 
beginning of the year

  6,282,309   6,996,223   13,278,532   13,278,532 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the 
end of the year

  8,994,523   -8,793,423   201,099   3,309,325 

NET (DECREASE) / INCREASE 
IN CASH AND CASH 
EQUIVALENTS

2,712,213  (15,789,646)  (13,077,433) (9,969,207)

STATEMENT OF COMPARISON OF BUDGET AND ACTUAL AMOUNTS 
CASHFLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021   
COMPARISON OF ACTUAL FIGURES TO FINAL BUDGET

STATEMENT OF COMPARISON OF BUDGET AND ACTUAL AMOUNTS
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AT 30 JUNE 2021
       
COMPARISON OF ACTUAL FIGURES TO FINAL BUDGET 

The diffference between the final adjustments budget and the final budget are due to virements in terms of the entity’s 
approved policy.      
       
Explanations of variances greater than 10% between final budget and actual income.      
 

3a Funding for certain projects from the parent municipality received and the implementation of these projects was 
impacted negatively by lockdown restrictions.

       
3b Missed revenue targets for the fresh produce market, farms and water services are the main cause of the variance. The 

market is still unable to attract additional market agents to trade at its floor.  
     
3c The variance is attributed mainly to interest charged by the parent municipality on overdue water account at Kei Fresh 

Produce Market and laptop computers that were purchased on finance lease. Part of the water balance originated before 
the market was transferred to Ntinga.

        
3d Some laptops were purchased though a finance lease and were capitalised in the current financial year.    

 
3e This relates to proceeds received from our insurance for assets either damaged or lost. 
       
3f This is the balance of the POS and inventory system for the abattoir that was settled in the current financial year.
      
3g The budget relates to the acquisition of heifers for livestock exchange programme. 
      
3h Due to favourable meat prices sales of biological assets were more than the forecast.
     
3i The variance is attributed to the loan raised as a result of acquisition of computer equipment through leasing and the 

original plan was to buy them instead of leasing.    
       
3j The variance is attributed to loan repayments as a result of acquisition of computer equipment through leasing and the 

original plan was to buy them instead of leasing.
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1. ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES AND POLICIES APPLIED IN THE ANNUAL 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION           
 
              
The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis of accounting and are in accordance with historical cost 
convention unless specified otherwise.           
              
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Municipal Finance Management Act (MFMA) and effective 
standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practices (GRAP), including any interpretations and directives issued by the 
Accounting Standards Board (ASB) in accordance with Section 122(3) of the Municipal Finance Management Act, (Act No 56 
of 2003).             
 
Accounting policies for material transactions, events or conditions not covered by the GRAP reporting framework have been 
developed in accordance with GRAP 3.            
   
A summary of the significant accounting policies, which have been consistently applied except where an exemption has been 
granted, are disclosed below.             
  
Assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses have not been offset except when offsetting is permitted or required by a Standard of 
GRAP or any relevant Legislation.            
  
The accounting policies applied are consistent with those used to present the previous year’s financial statements, unless 
explicitly stated otherwise.  The details of any changes in accounting policies are explained in the relevant notes to the financial 
statements.             
 

1.2 ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS          
               
  
The Entity has applied the effective standards, interpretations and directives of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice 
(GRAP) applicable to it that are issued and approved by the Accounting Standards Board.        
         
The Entity has not early-adopted any standard of GRAP that is not yet effective.       
 
             
1.3   PRESENTATION CURRENCY            
  

Amounts reflected in the financial statements are in South African Rand and at actual values. Financial values are rounded to 
the nearest one Rand.              
 

1.4   GOING CONCERN ASSUMPTION           
   
              
 
These financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis which assumes that Entity will continue in operation 
at-least for the next twelve (12) months.           
   
              
 
1.5   COMPARATIVE INFORMATION            
  
              
 
When the presentation or classification of items in the financial statements is amended, prior period comparative amounts are 
restated, unless a standard of GRAP does not require the restatements of comparative information.  The nature and reason for 
the reclassification is disclosed.  Where material accounting errors have been identified in the current year, the correction is 
made retrospectively as far as is practicable, and the prior year comparatives are restated accordingly.  Where there has been 
a change in accounting policy in the current year, the adjustment is made retrospectively as far as is practicable, and the prior 
year comparatives are restated accordingly.           
   

1.6   AMENDED DISCLOSURE POLICY           
 
             
Amendments to accounting policies are reported as and when deemed necessary based on the relevance of any such amendment 
to the format and presentation of the financial statements.          
   
             
1.7    MATERIALITY            
             
Material omissions or misstatements of items are material if they could, individually or collectively, influence the decision or 
assessments of users made on the basis of the financial statements.  Materiality depends on the nature or size of the omission 
or misstatements judged in the surrounding circumstances.  The nature or size of the information item, or a combination of 
both, could be the determining factor.  Materiality is determined as any amount that is higher than 1% of total expenditure.  This 
materiality is from management’s perspective and does not correlate with the auditor’s materiality.      
       
             
1.8   PRESENTATION OF BUDGET INFORMATION          
  
             
The presentation of budget information is prepared in accordance with GRAP 24 and guidelines issued by National Treasury.  
The comparison of budget and actual amounts are disclosed as a separate additional financial statement, namely Statement of 
comparison of budget and actual amounts.           
 
Budget information is presented on the accrual basis and is based on the same period as the actual amounts, i.e. 1 July 2020 to 
30 June 2021 The budget information is therefore on a comparable basis to the actual amounts.        
       
             
The comparable information includes the following:          
  
             
 ·       the original and final budget amounts;          
  
 ·       actual amounts and final budget amounts;         
   
             
Explanations for differences between the approved and final budget are included in the Statement of Comparison of Budget and 
Actual Amounts.            
Explanations for material differences between the final budget amounts and actual amounts are included the Statement of 
Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts.           
 
             
1.9   LEASES            
             
1.9.1  Entity as Lessee            
             
Leases are classified as finance leases where substantially all the risks and rewards associated with ownership of an asset are 
transferred to the Entity. Property, plant and equipment or intangible assets (excluding licensing agreements for such items 
as motion picture films, video recordings, plays, manuscripts, patents and copyrights) subject to finance lease agreements are 
initially recognised at the lower of the asset’s fair value and the present value of the minimum lease payments.  The corresponding 
liabilities are initially recognised at the inception of the lease and are measured as the sum of the minimum lease payments due 
in terms of the lease agreement, discounted for the effect of interest.  In discounting the lease payments, the Entity uses the 
interest rate that exactly discounts the lease payments and unguaranteed residual value to the fair value of the asset plus any 
direct costs incurred.            

Subsequent to initial recognition, the leased assets are accounted for in accordance with the stated accounting policies applicable 
to property, plant and equipment, investment property or intangibles assets.  The lease liability is reduced by the lease payments, 
which are allocated between the lease finance cost and the capital repayment using the effective interest rate method.  Lease 
finance costs are expensed when incurred.  The accounting policies relating to de-recognition of financial instruments are applied 
to lease payables. 
           
Operating leases are those leases that do not fall within the scope of the above definition.  Operating lease rentals are recognised 
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.  The difference between the straight-lined expenses and actual 
payments made will give rise to a liability.  The Entity recognises the aggregate benefit of incentives as a reduction of rental 
expense over the lease term, on a straight-line basis unless another systematic basis is representative of the time pattern of the 
lessee’s benefit from the use of the leased asset.          
  

Notes to the annual financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2021 Notes to the annual financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2021
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1.10   UNSPENT CONDITIONAL GOVERNMENT GRANTS AND RECEIPTS        
    
            
Conditional government grants are subject to specific conditions. This section equally applies to grant allocation from the parent 
municipality to the extent that it is allocated to specific projects. If specific conditions are not met or unspent balances cannot 
be allocated to other projects, the monies received are repayable.        
    
Unspent conditional grants are financial liabilities that are separately reflected on the Statement of Financial Position. They 
represent unspent government grants, subsidies and contributions from the parent municipality or other organs of state.  
          
This liability always has to be cash-backed. The following provisions are set for the creation and utilisation of this liability: 
 
• Unspent conditional grants are recognised as a liability when the grant is received.
• When grant conditions are met an amount equal to the conditions met are transferred to revenue in the Statement of Financial 

Performance.
• The cash which backs up the creditor is invested as individual investment or part of the general investments of the Entity until 

it is utilised.
• Interest earned on the investment is treated in accordance with grant conditions. If it is payable to the funder it is recorded as 

part of the creditor. If it is the Entity’s interest, it is recognised as interest earned in the Statement of Financial Performance.  
          

            
1.11   PROVISIONS            
            
Provisions are recognised when the Entity has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable 
that an outflow of resource embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required to settle the obligation and a 
reliable estimate of the provision can be made.  Provisions are reviewed at reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best 
estimate of future outflows of resources.  Where the effect is material, non-current provisions are discounted to their present 
value using a discount rate that reflects the market’s current assessment of the time value of money, adjusted for risks specific 
to the liability.             
The Entity does not recognise a contingent liability or contingent asset.  A contingent liability is disclosed unless the probability 
of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential is remote.  A contingent asset is disclosed where 
an inflow of economic benefits or service potential is probable.         
   
Future events that may affect the amount required to settle an obligation are reflected in the amount of a provision where there 
is sufficient objective evidence that they will occur.  Gains from the expected disposal of assets are not taken into account in 
measuring a provision.  Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.  The present obligation under an onerous 
contract is recognised and measured as a provision.          
  
The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the 
reporting date.            
If it is no longer probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required to 
settle the obligation, the provision is de-recognised.          
  
            
1.12       EMPLOYEE BENEFITS           
 
            
1.12.1   Provision for Staff Leave           
 
            
Liabilities for annual leave are recognised as the leave accrues to employees. The liability is based on the total amount of leave 
days due to employees at year-end and also on the total remuneration package of the employee.       
       
Accumulating leave is carried forward and can be used in future periods if the current period’s entitlement is not used in full. All 
unused leave will be paid out to the specific employee at the end of that employee’s employment term or at a time determined 
and approved by the Board of Directors.           
 
            
1.12.2   Staff Bonuses Accrued           
 
            
Liabilities for staff bonuses are recognised as they accrue to employees. The liability at year end is based on bonus accrued at 
year-end for each employee.           
 
            

1.12.3   Pension and retirement fund obligations          
  
            
The Entity provides retirement benefits for its employees on a defined contribution plan. Defined contribution plans are post-
employment benefit plans under which the Entity pays fixed contributions into a separate entity (a fund) and will have no legal 
or constructive obligation to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits 
relating to employee service in the current and prior periods. The contributions to fund obligations for the payment of retirement 
benefits are recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance in the year they become payable.      
        
            
1.13 BORROWING COSTS            
            
“Borrowing costs are interest and other expenses incurred by the Entity in connection with the borrowing of funds.   
Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.”      
      
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalised to the 
cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred. 

1.14 FINANCE CHARGES            
            
Finance charges comprise interest charges by providers of credit to the Entity. Finance charges are recognised as an expense in 
the period in which it is incurred.           
 
            
1.15       PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT           
 
            
1.15.1   Initial Recognition            
            
Property, plant and equipment are tangible non-current assets (including infrastructure assets) that are held for use in the 
production or supply of goods or services, rental to others, or for administrative purposes, and are expected to be used during 
more than one year.  The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset if, and only if it is probable 
that future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the Entity, and the cost or fair value of the 
item can be measured reliably.  Items of property, plant and equipment are initially recognised as assets on acquisition date and 
are initially recorded at cost less any estimated residual value at the end of its lifespan.  The cost of an item of property, plant and 
equipment is the purchase price and other costs attributable to bring the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to 
be capable of operating in the manner intended by the Entity.  Trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the cost.  
The cost also includes the necessary costs of dismantling and removing the asset and restoring the site on which it is located.  
          
When significant components of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as 
separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.        
    
Where an asset is acquired by the Entity for no or nominal consideration (i.e. a non-exchange transaction), the cost is deemed to 
be equal to the fair value of that asset on the date acquired.         
   
Where an item of property, plant and equipment is acquired in exchange for a non-monetary asset or monetary assets, or a 
combination of monetary and non-monetary assets, the assets acquired is initially measured at fair value (the cost).  If the 
acquired item’s fair value is not determinable, it’s deemed cost is the carrying amount of the asset(s) given up.   
         
Major spare parts and servicing equipment qualify as property, plant and equipment when the Entity expects to use them during 
more than one period.  Similarly, if the major spare parts and servicing equipment can be used only in connection with an item 
of property, plant and equipment, they are accounted for as property, plant and equipment.     
       
            
1.15.2   Subsequent Measurement – Cost Model          
  
            
Subsequent to initial recognition, items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation 
and any accumulated impairment losses.  Land is not depreciated as it is deemed to have an indefinite useful life.   
         
Where the Entity replaces parts of an asset, it derecognises the part of the asset being replaced and capitalises the new 
component.  Subsequent expenditure incurred on an asset is capitalised when it increases the capacity or future economic 
benefits or service potential associated with the asset.          
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1.15.3   Depreciation and Impairment           
 
            
Depreciation is calculated on the depreciable amount, using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the 
assets.  Depreciation of an asset begins when it is available for use, i.e. when it is in the location and condition necessary for 
it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Components of assets that are significant in relation to 
the whole asset and that have different useful lives are depreciated separately. The estimated useful lives, residual values and 
depreciation method are reviewed at each year end, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective 
basis.  The annual depreciation rates are based on the following estimated useful lives: 

       
        Years    
Buildings       
Buildings       30    
       
Other assets       
Computer hardware      5    
Office equipment       5    
Furniture and fittings      6    
Motor vehicles       5    
Agricultural equipment      6    
Network hardware      5    
Plant and equipment      6    
       
Finance lease assets            
Computer Equipment      5    

Property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each reporting date for any indication of material impairment. If any such indication 
exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. The impairment recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance is the 
excess of the carrying value over the recoverable amount.         
   
An impairment is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would 
have been determined had no impairment been recognised. A reversal of impairment is recognised in the Statement of Financial 
Performance.            
            
1.15.4   De-recognition            
            
Items of property, plant and equipment are derecognised when the asset is disposed or when there are no further economic 
benefits or service potential expected from the use of the asset.  The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an 
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying value and is 
recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance. 

1.16    NTANGIBLE ASSETS            
1.16.1   Initial Recognition            
            
An intangible asset is an identifiable non-monetary asset without physical substance.          
      
            
An asset meets the identifiability criterion in the definition of an intangible asset when it:     
 
• is separable, i.e. is capable of being separated or divided from the Entity and sold, transferred, licensed, rented or exchanged, 

either individually or together with a related contract, identifiable asset or liability, regardless of whether the Entity intends 
to do so; or

• arises from binding arrangements from contracts, regardless of whether those rights are transferable or separable from the 
Entity or from other rights and obligations.

The Entity recognises an intangible asset in its Statement of Financial Position only when it is probable that the expected future 
economic benefits or service potential that are attributable to the asset will flow to the Entity and the cost or fair value of the 
asset can be measured reliably.           
 

Internally generated intangible assets are subject to strict recognition criteria before they are capitalised.  Research expenditure 
is never capitalised, while development expenditure is only capitalised to the extent that:      
      
·         the Entity intends to complete the intangible asset for use or sale;        
    
·         it is technically feasible to complete the intangible asset;         
   
·         the Entity has the resources to complete the project;          
   
·         it is probable that the Entity will receive future economic benefits or service potential; and     
       
·         the Entity can measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its development.   
         
            
Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost.          
  
            
Where an intangible asset is acquired in exchange for a non-monetary asset or monetary assets, or a combination of monetary 
and non-monetary assets, the asset acquired is initially measured at fair value (the cost).  If the acquired item’s fair value is not 
determinable, it’s deemed cost is the carrying amount of the asset(s) given up.

1.16.2   Subsequent Measurement – Cost Model          
  
            
Intangible assets are subsequently carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairments losses.  The 
cost of an intangible asset is amortised over the useful life where that useful life is finite.  Where the useful life is indefinite, the 
asset is not amortised but is subject to an annual impairment test.        
    
            
1.16.3   Amortisation and Impairment           
 
            
Amortisation is charged so as to write off the cost or valuation of intangible assets over its estimated useful lives using the 
straight-line method. Amortisation of an asset begins when it is available for use, i.e. when it is in the condition necessary for 
it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Components of assets that are significant in relation to 
the whole asset and that have different useful lives are amortised separately. The estimated useful lives, residual values and 
amortisation method are reviewed at each year end, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective 
basis.   The annual amortisation rates are based on the following estimated useful lives:      
      
            
Intangible Assets    Years          
            
Computer Software   5         

            
1.16.4   De-recognition            
            
Intangible assets are derecognised when the asset is disposed or when there are no further economic benefits or service potential 
expected from the use of the asset.  The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an intangible asset is determined as 
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying value and is recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance.  
          
            
1.17   BIOLOGICAL ASSETS           
            
1.17.1   Initial Recognition            
            
A biological asset or agricultural produce is recognised when, and only when:       
                                      
• the Entity controls the asset as a result of past events;
• it is probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with the asset will flow to the Entity;
• livestock is expected to be kept for a period extending beyond twelve months for breeding purposes;
• and the fair value or cost of the asset can be measured reliably.       
            
Biological assets are initially measured at their fair value less cost to sell.        
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1.17.2   Subsequent Measurement           
 
            
Biological assets are measured at their fair value less cost to sell.        
    
The fair value of cattle is determined based on market prices of livestock of similar age, breed, and genetic merit in the local 
industry.              
A gain or loss arising on initial recognition of biological assets at fair value less cost to sell is recognised in the Statement of 
Financial Performance for the period in which it arises. 

1.18   IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS          
  
             
1.18.1   Cash-generating assets            
Cash-generating assets are assets held with the primary objective of generating a commercial return.      
        
The Entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be materially impaired. If any indication 
exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Entity estimates the asset’s recoverable amount.   
          
In assessing whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, the Entity considers the following indications:  
          

(a) External sources of information           
 
-During the period, an asset’s market value has declined significantly more than would be expected as a result of the 
passage of time or normal use.           
 
-Significant changes with an adverse effect on the Entity have taken place during the period, or will take place in the   
near future, in the technological, market, economic or legal environment in which the Entity operates or in the market   
to which an asset is dedicated.           

-Market interest rates or other market rates of return on investments have increased during the period, and those increases 
are likely to affect the discount rate used in calculating an asset’s value in use and decrease the asset’s recoverable amount 
materially.            
             
(b)  Internal sources of information
 
-Evidence is available of obsolescence or physical damage of an asset.      
 

-Significant changes with an adverse effect on the Entity have taken place during the period, or are expected to take  
place in the near future, in the extent to which, or manner in which, an asset is used or is expected to be used. These 
changes include the asset becoming idle, plans to discontinue or restructure the operation to which an asset belongs, plans 
to dispose of an asset before the previously expected date, and reassessing the useful life ofan asset as  finite rather than 
indefinite.            

-Evidence is available from internal reporting that indicates that the economic performance of an asset is, or will be, worse 
than expected.

            
The re-designation of assets from a cash-generating asset to a non-cash generating asset or from a non-cash-gene rating 
asset to a cash-generating asset shall only occur when there is clear evidence that such a re-designation is appropriate. A re-
designation, by itself, does not necessarily trigger an impairment test or a reversal of tan impairment loss. Instead, the indication 
for an impairment test or a reversal of an impairment loss arises from, as a minimum, the indications listed above.   
               
               
             
            

An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs to sell and its value 
in use and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of 
those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the 
asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash 
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time 
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs to sell, an appropriate valuation model is 
used. Impairment losses are recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance in those expense categories consistent with 
the function of the impaired asset.           
 
After the recognition of an impairment loss, the depreciation (amortisation) charge for the asset is adjusted in future periods to 
allocate the asset’s revised carrying amount, less its residual value (if any), on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life.
            
An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognised impairment losses 
may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the Entity estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. 
A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the 
asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount 
of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of 
depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the Statement 
of Financial Performance.            
            
1.18.2 Non-cash-generating assets              
 
            
Non-cash-generating assets are assets other than cash-generating assets.       
     
The Entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, 
or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Entity estimates the asset’s recoverable service amount.   
          
In assessing whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, the Entity considers the following indications:  
          
            
(a)   External sources of information           
 

• Cessation, or near cessation, of the demand or need for services provided by the asset.     
       

• Significant long-term changes with an adverse effect on the Entity have taken place during the period or will take place 
in the near future, in the technological, legal or government policy environment in which the Entity operates.   
         

            
(b)   Internal sources of information           
 

• Evidence is available of physical damage of an asset.         
   

• Significant long-term changes with an adverse effect on the Entity have taken place during the period, or are expected to 
take place in the near future, in the extent to which, or manner in which, an asset is used or is expected to be used. These 
changes include the asset becoming idle, plans to discontinue or restructure the operation to which an asset belongs, or 
plans to dispose of an asset before the previously expected date.        
    

• A decision to halt the construction of the asset before it is complete or in a usable condition.     
       

• Evidence is available from internal reporting that indicates that the service performance of an asset is, or will be, 
significantly worse than expected.

            
An asset’s recoverable service amount is the higher of a non-cash-generating asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in 
use.  If the recoverable service amount of an asset is less than it’s carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to 
its recoverable service amount. That reduction is an impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance.   
           
The value in use of a non-cash-generating asset is the present value of the asset’s remaining service potential. The present value 
of the remaining service potential of the asset is determined using any one of the following approaches, depending on the nature 
of the asset in question:            
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Depreciation replacement cost approach - the present value of the remaining service potential of an asset is determined 
as the depreciated replacement cost of the asset. The replacement cost of an asset is the cost to replace the asset’s gross 
service potential. This cost is depreciated to reflect the asset in its used condition. An asset may be replaced either through 
reproduction (replication) of the existing asset or through replacement of its gross service potential. The depreciated 
replacement cost is measured as the reproduction or replacement cost of the asset, whichever is lower, less accumulated 
depreciation calculated on the basis of such cost, to reflect the already consumed or expired service potential of the asset. 

Restoration cost approach - the cost of restoring the service potential of an asset to its pre-impaired level. Under this 
approach, the present value of the remaining service potential of the asset is determined by subtracting the estimated 
restoration cost of the asset from the current cost of replacing the remaining service potential of the asset before impairment. 
The latter cost is usually determined as the depreciated reproduction or replacement cost of the asset, whichever is lower.  
          
Service unit approach - the present value of the remaining service potential of the asset is determined by reducing the current 
cost of the remaining service potential of the asset before impairment, to conform with the reduced number of service units 
expected from the asset in its impaired state. As in the restoration cost approach, the current cost of replacing the remaining 
service potential of the asset before impairment is usually determined as the depreciated reproduction or replacement cost of 
the asset before impairment, whichever is lower.          
  
Fair value less costs to sell is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm’s length transaction between 
knowledgeable, willing parties, less the costs of disposal. 

           
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount in 
accordance with another Standard of GRAP. Any impairment loss of a revalued asset shall be treated as a revaluation decrease 
in accordance with that Standard of GRAP.           
 
The Entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an impairment loss recognised in prior periods 
for an asset may no longer exist or may have decreased. If any such indication exists, the Entity estimates the recoverable 
service amount of that asset. 
           
An impairment loss recognised in prior periods for an asset is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to 
determine the asset’s recoverable service amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. If this is the case, the carrying 
amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable service amount. The increased carrying amount of an asset attributable to a 
reversal of an impairment loss does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of depreciation or 
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior periods.  Such a reversal of an impairment loss is 
recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance.         

1.19       INVENTORIES            
            
1.19.1   Initial Recognition            
            
Inventories comprise of current assets held for sale, consumption or distribution during the ordinary course of business.  
Inventories are recognised as an asset if, and only if, it is probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated 
with the item will flow to the Entity, and the cost of the inventories can be measured reliably.  Inventories are initially 
recognised at cost.  Cost generally refers to the purchase price, plus non-recoverable taxes, transport costs and any other costs 
in bringing the inventories to their current location and condition.  Where inventory is manufactured, constructed or produced, 
the cost includes the cost of labour, materials and overheads used during the manufacturing process.    
        
Livestock that is acquired or identified for sale within a period of twelve months is classified as inventory.    
        
Where inventory is acquired by the Entity for no or nominal consideration (i.e. a non-exchange transaction), the cost is deemed 
to be equal to the fair value of the item on the date acquired.         
   
            
1.19.2   Subsequent Measurement           
 
            
Inventories, consisting of consumable stores, raw materials, work-in-progress and finished goods, are valued at the lower of 
cost and net realisable value unless they are to be distributed at no or nominal charge, in which case they are measured at 
the lower of cost and current replacement cost.  Redundant and slow-moving inventories are identified and written down.  
Differences arising on the valuation of inventory are recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance in the year in which 
they arose.  The amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories arising from an increase in net realisable value or 
current replacement cost is recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period in 
which the reversal occurs. 
           
The carrying amount of inventories is recognised as an expense in the period that the inventory was sold, distributed, written 
off or consumed, unless that cost qualifies for capitalisation to the cost of another asset.     
 

1.20       FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS           
 
            
Financial instruments recognised on the Statement of Financial Position include receivables (both from exchange transactions 
and non-exchange transactions), cash and cash equivalents, annuity loans and payables (both form exchange and non-
exchange transactions) and non-current investments.  The future utilization of Unspent Conditional Grants is evaluated in order 
to determine whether it is treated as financial instruments.         
   
            
1.20.1   Initial Recognition            
            
Financial instruments are initially recognised when the Entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument 
at fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset or financial liability not at fair value, transaction costs that are directly 
attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset or financial liability.  If finance charges in respect of financial assets 
and financial liabilities are significantly different from similar charges usually obtained in an open market transaction, adjusted 
for the specific risks of the Entity, such differences are immediately recognised in the period it occurs, and the unamortised 
portion adjusted over the period of the loan transactions.         
   
            
1.20.2   Subsequent Measurement           
 
            
Financial assets are categorised according to their nature as either financial assets at fair value, financial assets at amortised 
cost or financial assets at cost.  Financial liabilities are categorised as either at fair value or financial liabilities carried at 
amortised cost.  The subsequent measurement of financial assets and liabilities depends on this categorisation.    
         
            
1.20.2.1         Receivables            
            
Receivables are classified as financial assets at amortised cost, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the 
effective interest rate method.           
 
For amounts due from debtors carried at amortised cost, the Entity first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment 
exists individually for financial assets that are individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not individually 
significant. Objective evidence of impairment includes significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor 
will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation and default or delinquency in payments (more than 90 days overdue).  If 
the Entity determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether 
significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively 
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or 
continues to be, recognised are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.      
      
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference 
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future expected credit 
losses that have not yet been incurred). The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account 
and the amount of the loss is recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance. Interest income continues to be accrued 
on the reduced carrying amount based on the original effective interest rate of the asset. Loans together with the associated 
allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been realised or has been 
transferred to the Entity. If, in a subsequent year, the amount of the estimated impairment loss increases or decreases because 
of an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced 
by adjusting the allowance account. If a future write-off is later recovered, the recovery is recognised in the Statement of 
Financial Performance.            
The present value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate, if 
material. If a loan has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current effective 
interest rate.            
            
1.20.2.2         Payables and Annuity Loans           
 
            
Financial liabilities consist of payables and annuity loans.  They are categorised as financial liabilities held at amortised cost, 
and are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using an effective interest rate, which is 
the initial carrying amount, less repayments, plus interest.         
   
            
1.20.2.3         Cash and Cash Equivalents           
 
Cash includes cash on hand (including petty cash) and cash with banks.  Cash equivalents are short-term highly liquid 
investments, readily convertible into known amounts of cash that are held with registered banking institutions with maturities 
of three months or less and are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.  For the purposes of the cash flow statement, 
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, highly liquid deposits and net of bank overdrafts.  The Entity categorises 
cash and cash equivalents as financial assets carried at amortised cost.        
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Bank overdrafts are recorded based on the facility utilised.  Finance charges on bank overdraft are expensed as incurred.  
Amounts owing in respect of bank overdrafts are categorised as financial liabilities carried at amortised cost.    
        
            
1.20.3  De-recognition of Financial Instruments             
  
            
1.20.3.1   Financial Assets            
            
A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised 
when:            
• the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or        

    
• the Entity has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received 

cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement, and either (a) the Entity 
has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Entity has neither transferred nor retained 
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.     
       

When the Entity has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, 
and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, 
the old asset is derecognised and a new asset is recognised to the extent of the Entity’s continuing involvement in the asset.   
          
Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original 
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Entity could be required to repay.   
         
When continuing involvement takes the form of a written and/or purchased option (including a cash settled option or similar 
provision) on the transferred asset, the extent of the Entity’s continuing involvement is the amount of the transferred asset that 
the Entity may repurchase, except that in the case of a written put option (including a cash settled option or similar provision) 
on an asset measured at fair value, the extent of the Entity’s continuing involvement is limited to the lower of the fair value of 
the transferred asset and the option exercise price.          
  
            
1.20.3.2    Financial Liabilities           
 
            
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.   
         
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of 
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a de-recognition of the original 
liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the 
Statement of Financial Performance.           
 
            
1.20.4 Offsetting of Financial Instruments              
 
            
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the Statement of Financial Position if, and 
only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net 
basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 

1.21       REVENUE            
            
1.21.1 Revenue from Non-Exchange Transactions             
  
            
The Entity receives a major part of its income in the form of grants (referred to as government grants) from the parent 
municipality, the O.R. Tambo District Municipality.          
  
Revenue from non-exchange transactions refers to transactions where the Entity received revenue from another entity without 
directly giving approximately equal value in exchange.  Revenue from non-exchange transactions is generally recognised to the 
extent that the related receipt or receivable qualifies for recognition as an asset and there is no obligation to repay the amount. 
           

Grants, transfers and donations received or receivable are recognised when the resources that have been transferred, meet the 
criteria for recognition as an asset.  A corresponding liability is recognised to the extent that the grant, transfer or donation is 
conditional.  The liability is transferred to revenue as and when the conditions attached to the grant are met.  Grants without 
any conditions attached are recognised as revenue when the asset is recognised.       
     
Revenue from public contributions and donations is recognised when all conditions associated with the contribution have been 
met or where the contribution is to finance property, plant and equipment, when such items of property, plant and equipment 
qualifies for recognition and first becomes available for use by the Entity.  Where public contributions have been received, but 
the Entity has not met the related conditions, it is recognised as an unspent public contribution (liability).    
        
Revenue from third parties i.e. insurance payments for assets impaired, are recognised when it can be measured reliably and is 
not being offset against the related expenses of repairs or renewals of the impaired assets.      
      
Contributed property, plant and equipment is recognised when such items of property, plant and equipment qualifies for 
recognition and become available for use by the Entity.         
   
Revenue from the recovery of unauthorised, irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure is based on legislated procedures, 
including those set out in the Municipal Finance Management Act (Act No. 56 of 2003) and is recognised when the recovery 
thereof from the responsible officials is virtually certain.         
   
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable.       
     
When, as a result of a non-exchange transaction, a Entity recognises an asset, it also recognises revenue equivalent to the 
amount of the asset measured at its fair value as at the date of acquisition, unless it is also required to recognise a liability. 
Where a liability is required to be recognised it will be measured as the best estimate of the amount required to settle the 
present obligation at the reporting date, and the amount of the increase in net assets, if any, recognised as revenue. When a 
liability is subsequently reduced, because the taxable event occurs or a condition is satisfied, the amount of the reduction in 
the liability will be recognised as revenue.           
 
            
1.21.2   Revenue from Exchange Transactions          
  
            
Revenue from exchange transactions refers to revenue that accrued to the Entity directly in return for services rendered or 
goods sold, the value of which approximates the consideration received or receivable.        
      
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when all the following conditions have been satisfied:     
       
            
• The Entity has transferred to the purchaser the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods.    

        
• The Entity retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective 

control over the goods sold.           
 

• The amount of revenue can be measured reliably.          
  

• It is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the    transaction will flow to the Entity.  
          

• The costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.     
       

            
At the time of initial recognition the full amount of revenue is recognised where the Entity has an enforceable legal obligation 
to collect, unless the individual collectability is considered to be improbable. If the Entity does not successfully enforce its 
obligation to collect the revenue this would be considered a subsequent event.        
     
Interest revenue is recognised using the effective interest rate method.        
    
Revenue from the rental of facilities and equipment is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease agreement. 
 
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable.       
     
The amount of revenue arising on a transaction is usually determined by agreement between the Entity and the purchaser or 
user of the asset or service. It is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable taking into account the 
amount of any trade discounts and volume rebates allowed by the Entity.       
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In most cases, the consideration is in the form of cash or cash equivalents and the amount of revenue is the amount of cash 
or cash equivalents received or receivable. However, when the inflow of cash or cash equivalents is deferred, the fair value 
of the consideration may be less than the nominal amount of cash received or receivable. When the arrangement effectively 
constitutes a financing transaction, the fair value of the consideration is determined by discounting all future receipts using an 
imputed rate of interest. The imputed rate of interest is the more clearly determinable of either:     
         
              
• The prevailing rate for a similar instrument of an issuer with a similar credit rating;   
• A rate of interest that discounts the nominal amount of the instrument to the current cash sales price of the goods or services.  

           
              
The difference between the fair value and the nominal amount of the consideration is recognised as interest revenue.    
           
When goods or services are exchanged or swapped for goods or services which are of a similar nature and value, the exchange 
is not regarded as a transaction that generates revenue. When goods are sold or services are rendered in exchange for 
dissimilar goods or services, the exchange is regarded as a transaction that generates revenue. The revenue is measured at the 
fair value of the goods or services received, adjusted by the amount of any cash or cash equivalents transferred. When the fair 
value of the goods or services received cannot be measured reliably, the revenue is measured at the fair value of the goods or 
services given up, adjusted by the amount of any cash or cash equivalents transferred.      
        
              
1.22  RELATED PARTIES             
 
              
A related party is a person or an entity:           
              
• with the ability to control or jointly control the other party,
• or exercise significant influence over the other party, or vice versa,
• or an entity that is subject to common control, or joint control.         

      
The following are regarded as related parties of the Entity:         
     
              
(a)     A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to the Entity if that person:     
         
• has control or joint control over the Entity.
• has significant influence over the Municipalities. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and 

operating policy decisions of the Entity.
• is a member of the management of the Entity or its controlling entity.        

      
              
(b)     An entity is related to the Entity if any of the following conditions apply:       
       
• the entity is a member of the same economic entity (which means that each controlling entity, controlled entity and fellow 

controlled entity is related to the others).     
• one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of an economic 

entity of which the other entity is a member).         
• both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.
• one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third entity.     

         
             

• the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the Entity or an entity related to the 
Entity. If the reporting entity is itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are related to the entity. 

• the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a).
• a person identified in (a) has significant influence over that entity or is a member of the management of that entity (or its 

controlling entity).             
 

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by 
that person in their dealings with the Entity.  A person is considered to be a close member of the family of another person if 
they:              
(a)  are married or live together in a relationship similar to a marriage; or       
(b)  are separated by no more than two degrees of natural or legal consanguinity or affinity.     
         
              
Management (formerly known as “Key Management”) includes all persons having the authority and responsibility for planning, 
directing and controlling the activities of the Entity, including:         
              
(a)  all members of the governing body of the Entity;   
(b)  a member of the governing body of an economic entity who has the authority and responsibility for planning, directing 

and controlling the activities of the Entity;
(c)  any key advisors of a member, or sub-committees, of the governing body who has the authority and responsibility for 

planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Entity; and
(d)  the senior management team of the Entity, including the chief executive officer or permanent head of the Entity, unless 

already included in (a).
  
              
Management personnel include:            
  
              
(a)  All directors or members of the governing body of the Entity, being the Chairman of the Board and all other directors. 
(b)  Other persons having the authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the reporting Entity 

being the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer an all other managers reporting directly to the Chief Executive Officer.
             
Remuneration of management includes remuneration derived for services provided to the Entity in their capacity as members 
of the management team or employees. Benefits derived directly or indirectly from the Entity for services in any capacity other 
than as an employee or a member of management do not meet the definition of remuneration.  Remuneration of management 
excludes any consideration provided solely as a reimbursement for expenditure incurred by those persons for the benefit of 
the Entity.             
 
The Entity operates in an economic environment currently dominated by entities directly or indirectly owned by the South 
African government.  As a result of the Constitutional independence of all three spheres of government in South Africa, only 
parties within the same sphere of government will be considered to be related parties.  Only transactions with such parties 
which are not at arm’s length and not on normal commercial terms are disclosed.       
       
As a municipal entity, the Entity is fully controlled by the parent municipality the O.R. Tambo District Municipality. As a 
development agency of the parent municipality, the Entity is inherently involved in a number of economic development 
operations, developmental commercial operations and community based organisations.      
        
              
1.23  UNAUTHORISED EXPENDITURE           
   
              
Unauthorised expenditure is expenditure that has not been budgeted for expenditure that is not in terms of the conditions 
of an allocation received from another sphere of government, Entity or organ of state and expenditure in a form of a grant 
that is not permitted in terms of the Municipal Finance Management Act (Act No. 56 of 2003).  Unauthorised expenditure 
is accounted for as an expense (measured at actual cost incurred) in the Statement of Financial Performance and where 
recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the Statement of Financial Performance.      
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1.24       IRREGULAR EXPENDITURE           
 
            
Irregular expenditure is expenditure that is contrary to the Municipal Finance Management Act (Act No. 56 of 2003), the 
Municipal Systems Act (Act No. 32 of 2000), the Public Office Bearers Act, and (Act. No. 20 of 1998) or is in contravention of 
the Entity’s Supply Chain Management Policy.  Irregular expenditure excludes unauthorised expenditure.  Irregular expenditure 
is accounted for as expenditure (measured at actual cost incurred) in the Statement of Financial Performance and where 
recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the Statement of Financial Performance.     
       
            
1.25   FRUITLESS AND WASTEFUL EXPENDITURE          
  
            
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is expenditure that was made in vain and could have been avoided had reasonable care 
been exercised.  Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is accounted for as expenditure (measured at actual cost incurred) in the 
Statement of Financial Performance and where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the Statement of 
Financial Performance.            
            
1.26  CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT ASSETS         
   
A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the 
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Entity.  A contingent 
liability could also be a present obligation that arises from past events, but is not recognised because it is not probable that an 
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot 
be measures with sufficient reliability.           
 
The Entity does not recognise a contingent liability or contingent asset.  A contingent liability is disclosed unless the 
probability of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential is remote.  A contingent asset is 
disclosed where the inflow of economic benefits or service potential is probable.         
     
Management judgement is required when recognising and measuring contingent liabilities.      
      
            
1.27  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES         
    
            
In the process of applying the Entity’s accounting policy, management makes the following significant accounting judgements, 
estimates and assumptions, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:  
          
            
1.27.1  Impairment of Receivables           
 
            
The calculation in respect of the impairment of debtors is based on an assessment of the extent to which debtors have 
defaulted on payments already due, and an assessment of their ability to make payments based on their creditworthiness. This 
was performed per service-identifiable categories across all classes of debtors.       
     

1.27.2 Property, Plant and Equipment              
 
            
The useful lives of property, plant and equipment are based on management’s estimation. Infrastructure’s useful lives are based 
on technical estimates of the practical useful lives for the different infrastructure types, given engineering technical knowledge 
of the infrastructure types and service requirements.  For other assets and buildings management considers the impact of 
technology, availability of capital funding, service requirements and required return on assets to determine the optimum useful 
life expectation, where appropriate. The estimation of residual values of assets is also based on management’s judgement 
whether the assets will be sold or used to the end of their useful lives, and in what condition they will be at that time.   
         
Management referred to the following when making assumptions regarding useful lives and residual values of property, plant 
and equipment. 
           
The useful life of movable assets was determined using the age of similar assets available for sale in the active market
• Discussions with people within the specific industry were also held to determine useful lives.
• Local Government Industry Guides was used to assist with the deemed cost and useful life of infrastructure assets.   

         
            

1.27.3   Intangible Assets             
 
              
The useful lives of intangible assets are based on management’s estimation. Management considers the impact of technology, 
availability of capital funding, service requirements and required return on assets to determine the optimum useful life 
expectation, where appropriate.             
  
Management referred to the following when making assumptions regarding useful lives of intangible assets:    
          
· Reference was made to intangibles used within the Entity to determine the useful life of the assets.    
          
              
1.27.4  Provisions and Contingent Liabilities            
   
              
Management judgement is required when recognising and measuring provisions and when measuring contingent liabilities. 
Provisions are discounted where the time value effect is material.         
      
              
1.27.5 Revenue Recognition              
  
              
Accounting Policy on Revenue from Non-Exchange Transactions and Accounting Policy on Revenue from Exchange 
Transactions describes the conditions under which revenue will be recognised by management of the Entity.    
          
              
In making their judgement, management considered the detailed criteria for the recognition of revenue as set out in GRAP 
9: Revenue from Exchange Transactions and GRAP 23: Revenue from Non-Exchange Transactions.). Specifically, whether the 
Entity, when goods are sold, had transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods and when 
services are rendered, whether the service has been performed. The management of the Entity is satisfied that recognition of 
the revenue in the current year is appropriate.          
    
              
1.27.6   Provision for Staff leave            
  
              
Staff leave is accrued to employees according to collective agreements. Provision is made for the full cost of accrued leave 
at reporting date. This provision will be realised as employees take leave, leave gratuity is paid or when employment is 
terminated.             
 
              
1.28  VALUE ADDED TAX             
 
              
Revenue, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amounts of value added tax. The net amount of Value Added Tax 
recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or payables in the Statement of 
Financial Position.              
 
              
1.29       INCOME TAX             
 
              
Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss.    
           
Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the period, using applicable tax rates at 
the reporting date.              
 
              
1.30       CAPITAL COMMITMENTS            
  
              
Capital commitments disclosed in the financial statements represents the contractual balance committed to capital projects on 
reporting date that will be incurred in the period subsequent to the specific reporting date.     
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1.31   EVENTS AFTER REPORTING DATE           
   
              
Events after the reporting date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur between the reporting date and 
the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue.  Two types of events can be identified:    
          
• those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the reporting date (adjusting events after the reporting date); and
• those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting date (non-adjusting events after the reporting date).  

            
If non-adjusting events after the reporting date are material, the Entity discloses the nature and an estimate of the financial 
effect.              

NTINGA O. R. TAMBO DEVELOPMENT AGENCY SOC LTD 
(A MUNICIPAL ENTITY OF THE O. R. TAMBO DISTRICT MUNICIPALITY: REGISTRATION 
NUMBER: 2016/272582/30) 

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021 

2. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Call Investments Deposits 1,243,920 11,982,914 
Bank Accounts 2,058,509 1,276,553 
Petty Cash Balances 6,896 19,065 

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 3,309,325 13,278,532 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash held and short term deposits. The carrying amount of these assets approximates 
their fair value. 

The entity has the following bank accounts: 

Current Accounts 

FNB - Account Number  62166804742 (Primary Bank Account) 1,338,883  345,627  

FNB - Account Number  62183286890 (Salaries Account) 86,535  93,298  

FNB Call Account 62766535622 405,494   642,906  

FNB Call Account 62771259671 227,597  194,722  

2,058,509  1,276,553  

FNB - Account Number  6216680472 (Primary Bank Account) 
Cash book balance at beginning of year 345,627   1,175,914  

Cash book balance at end of year 1,338,883  345,627  

Bank statement balance at beginning of year 327,701  1,175,914  

Bank statement balance at end of year 1,333,926  327,701  

FNB - Account Number  62183286890 (Salaries Account) 
Cash book balance at beginning of year 93,298  20,688  

Cash book balance at end of year 86,535  93,298  

Bank statement balance at beginning of year 93,298  20,688  

Bank statement balance at end of year 86,535  93,298  

Trading Account 62254987351 
Bank statement balance at beginning of year -  (2,326) 

Bank statement balance at end of year - -  

2020 
 R 

2021
 R 



128 129

 NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

2020 
 R 

2021
 R 

2. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued)

Kei Fresh current account 62192051698 
Cash book balance at beginning of year -  14,540  

Cash book balance at end of year -  -  

Bank statement balance at beginning of year -  14,540  

Bank statement balance at end of year -  -  

FNB Call Account 62771259671 
Cash book balance at beginning of year 194,722  196,693  

Cash book balance at end of year 227,597  194,722  

Bank statement balance at beginning of year 194,722  196,693  

Bank statement balance at end of year 227,597  194,722  

FNB Call Account 62766535622 
Cash book balance at beginning of year 642,906  275,038  

Cash book balance at end of year 405,494  642,906  

Bank statement balance at beginning of year 594,113  275,038  

Bank statement balance at end of year 395,778  594,113  

 FNB Call Account 62773058849 
Cash book balance at beginning of year 88,672  84,345  

Cash book balance at end of year 91,383  88,672  

Bank statement balance at beginning of year 88,672  84,345  

Bank statement balance at end of year 91,383  88,672  

Call Investment Deposits 
Call investment deposits consist out of the following accounts: 

FNB Account number 62181670540 (Ntinga) 95,821  10,809,546  

FNB Account number 62185096122 (Umzimkant Read Meat Abbatoir) 230,249  636,266  

FNB - Account Number: 62887833153 1,010  -  

FNB Call 62508942407 95,441  92,593  

FNB Call 62578074149 112,414  352,731  

FNB Call Account 62785410293 3,873  3,106  

FNB Call Account 62773058849 91,383  88,672  

FNB - Account Number: 62875150600 613,729  -  

1,243,920  11,982,914  

 NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

2020 
 R 

2021
 R 

3. RECEIVABLES FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

3.1 Credit sales of goods and rentals 572,075           1,178,358  

Less: Allowance for Doubtful Debts            (502,133)            (426,194) 

Total Net Receivables from Exchange Transactions 69,942              752,164  

Receivable amount includes balances that are owed to trading enterprises by 
customers and tenants. Debtors are required to settle issued invoices within 30 
days. This credit period granted is considered to be consistent with the terms 
used in the public sector, through established practices and legislation. 
Discounting of trade and other receivables on initial recognition is not deemed 
necessary.        

Ageing of Receivables from Exchange Transactions: 

Ageing 

Current (0 - 30 days) 37,914  180,712  

31 - 60 Days 32,029  53,331  

61 - 90 Days -  503,607  

+ 90 Days 502,132  440,708  

Total             572,075           1,178,358  

3.2 Reconciliation of Provision for Bad Debts 

Balance at beginning of year 426,194  339,752  

Bad debts written off -   -  

Receivables balance correction -   -  

(Reversals)/Contribution to provision 75,939  86,442  

Restated balance             502,133              426,194  

The Provision for Impairment could be allocated between the different 
classes of receivables as follows: 

Trading enterprises / Projects 502,133  426,194  

The fair value of trade receivables approximates their carrying amounts.             502,133              426,194  

Provision is made up of balances that are older than 90 days. However, amounts that are older than 90 days but paid after 
year end were excluded from the provision amount. 
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 NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

2020 
 R 

2021
 R 

4. INVENTORY

Opening balance       33,,223355,,887722        117700,,226666    

Consumable stores 288,761  83,091  

Livestock           2,699,693  -  

Merchandise (Meat) 247,418  87,175  

AAddddiittiioonnss        99,,227722,,880000      55,,999922,,330088    

Consumable stores 262,071  288,761  

Livestock - transfers from biological assets           3,665,281           5,456,129  

Crops 328,586  -  

Merchandise (Meat)           5,016,862  247,418  

Issued ( Expensed)          (8,448,630)  (2, 926, 702) 

Consumable stores            (488,465) (83,091) 

Livestock issued for slaughter (Meat)          (2,699,693)  (2,756,436) 

Merchandise (Meat)          (5,260,472) (87,175) 

Closing Balance 

Consumable stores 62,367  288,761  

Livestock           3,665,281           2,699,693  

Merchandise (Meat) 3,808  247,418  

Crops 328,586  

TToottaall  IInnvveennttoorryy            4,060,042           3,235,872  

No inventory assets were pledged as security for liabilities. 

 NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

2020 
 R 

2021
 R 

5. RECEIVABLES FROM NON-EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

Other Receivables 

Advance payments and sundry debtors 7,837,547          1,036,918  

Prepayments - Deposits           259,407  192,597  

Sub-total        8,096,954           1,229,515  

Less: Allowance for Doubtful Debts -  (41,810) 

Net - Other Receivables 8,096,954          1,187,705  

Total Net Receivables from Non-Exchange Transactions 8,096,954          1,187,705  

Reconciliation of Provision for Bad Debts 

Balance at beginning of year 41,810 27,959  

(Reversal of Provision) / Contribution to provision (41,810) 13,851  

Balance at end of year - 41,810  

6. TAXES

6.1 VAT PAYABLE          (8,470,750)         (4,751,980) 

         (8,470,750)         (4,751,980) 

6.2 VAT RECEIVABLE -  -  

NET VAT PAYABLE          (8,470,750)         (4,751,980) 

VAT is receivable/payable on the payment basis. 
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 NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

2020 
 R 

2021
 R 

7. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Current tax 

Current year -  -  

Deferred tax 

Income Tax - current year -  -  

Major components: 

- Assessed loss -  -  

- Timing differences -  -  

Tax charged or (credited) to Statement of Financial Performance -  -  

With effect from 01 July 2017 the Entity started to operate as a State Owned Company and is in compliance with the 
South African Income Tax Act 58 of 1962.   

No provision has been made for tax as the company does not anticipate making taxable income in the next 12 months . 

2020/21 Income tax can be reconciled to accounting profit / loss as follows: 

Accounting Loss before tax -11,542,392          (6,114,760) 

Tax effect on loss before tax -3,231,870            (1,712,133) 

Adjusted for tax effect of: 

- Fair Value Adjustments -694, 234          (1,781,743) 

- Donations 0 (689,859) 

- Assets write-offs -  -  

- Temporary timing differences -536,646 -  

Tax amount not recognised -4,462,750          (4,183,735) 

Tax credited to Statement of Financial Performance 0 -  

Tax losses can be reconciled as follows: 

Loss before tax (11,542,392.44)  (6,114,760) 

Income Tax calculated at 28% 28% 28% 

Adjusted for tax effect of: 

Fair value adjustments 6% 29% 

 NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

2020 
 R 

2021
 R 

7. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

Donations 0% 11% 

Assets write-offs 0% 0% 

Temporary timing differences 5% 0,0% 

Tax amount not recognised -39% -68%

Effective Tax Rate -   -   

DEFERRED TAX 

Deferred tax arising from prior period adjustments - 7,219,551

Deferred tax movement for the year -  -  

Deferred tax asset - 7,219,551 

Correction of prior year error - (7,219,551)

-  -  

Deferred Tax is comprised of: 

Opening balance - (7,219,551)

Current movement: 

- Unrealised Losses - (23,386)

- Leave Pay - 223,568

- Bonuses -  120,885  

- Assets amortisation and impairments - (321,067)

- (7,219,551)

Correction of prior year error         7,219,551  

-  -  

The Entity has derecognised the deferred tax asset. It is not probable that it will 
generate profits to utilise the deferred tax asset. A correction of a prior year error 
has been made. 
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2020 
 R 

2021
 R 

8. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Carrying amounts         54,969,817         59,420,272  

See Appendix A 

There are no assets pledged as security. 

The effective date of the assessments and revaluation was 30 June 2018. 
Valuations were performed by  independent professional valuer, Mzizi 4291 
Properties CC (Reg.no. 2010/072405/23), a registered valuer in terms of Section 
20(2) of the Property Valuers Profession Act (47 of 2000). The valuations are 
performed on a 5 year interval. 

9. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Computer Software 

Net Carrying amount at 1 July 671,228 781,248 

Cost 1, 936,574 1, 803,616 
Accumulated Amortisation (1,008,899) (765,921) 
Transfers from KFPM - Accumulated Amortisation (236,499) (236,499) 
Accumulated Impairment (19,948) (19,948) 

Additions 68,523 132,958 
Transfers from KFPM - Cost - - 
Amortisation (256,229) (242,978) 

Net Carrying amount at 30 June 483,522 671,228 

Cost           2,005,097          1,936,574 

Accumulated Amortisation          (1,265,128)         (1,008,899) 

Transfers from KFPM - Accumulated Amortisation            (236,499)            (236,499) 

Accumulated Impairment (19,948) (19,948) 

 NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

2020 
 R 

2021
 R 

9. INTANGIBLE ASSETS  (continued)

The following material intangible assets are included in the carrying value above 

Carrying Value 

 2021  2020 

Description  R  R 

Computer software             483,522             671,228 

No intangible asset was assessed having an indefinite useful 
life. 

There are no internally generated intangible assets at 
reporting date. 

There are no intangible assets pledged as security for 
liabilities 

10. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (See appendix B)

Carrying amounts      13,173,660    15,089,530 

No title or other restrictions are placed on biological assets. 

No biological assets were pledged as security for liabilities. 

There are no commitments for the  acquisition of biological assets. 

Biological assets are located at Adam Kok Farms and Ikwezi Dairy Farm. The 
primary activities revolving around biological assets are livestock breeding and 
heifer exchange.

Due to the unwillingness of insurance companies to carry the risk and potential 
losses relating to biological assets, the financial risk is managed as follows: 

- Regular inspection and maintenance of boundary fences to manage
movement of biological assets.

- Regular monitoring and reporting of quantities by Entity staff.

- A contract is entered into with a Veterinarian to attend to the medical issues
of livestock.

- Livestock is regularly vaccinated.

The effective date of the assessments and valuation was 30 June 2021. 
Valuations were performed by an  independent professional veterinarian, Dr M.J. 
Guma , a registered veterinarian in terms of Veterinary and Para-Veterinary 
Professions Act No. 19 of 1982. 
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2020 
 R 

2021
 R 

11. PAYABLES FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

Trade Payables           751,189             379,281  

Other accruals      3,880,727         4,603,755  

Annual bonus 1,106,269          1,262,745  

Sundry Creditors 2,774,458         3,341,010  

Salary deductions 639,134  851,164  

5,271,050  5,834,200  

Payables are being recognised net of any discounts. 

Payables are being paid within 30 days as prescribed by the MFMA. This credit 
period granted is considered to be consistent with the terms used in the public 
sector, through established practices and legislation. Discounting of trade and 
other payables on initial recognition is not deemed necessary    

The carrying value of trade and other payables approximates its fair value. 

All payables are unsecured. 

12. PAYABLES FROM NON-EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

Sustainable Villages SURUDEC - Baziya Sustainable Village Project 446,974  446,974  

Total Payables from non-exchange transactions             446,974              446,974  

This balance is payable to the European Commission. It originates from 
expenditure incurred by the Entity which the Commission declared as inelligible. 
The Entity was advised to wait for a directive before making the payment. 
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13. UNSPENT CONDITIONAL GOVERNMENT GRANTS AND RECEIPTS

Unspent Grants           4,307,504           5,748,198  

District Municipality           4,104,935           5,423,434  

Other Grant Providers 202,569  324,764  

Total Conditional Grants and Receipts           4,307,504           5,748,198  

Unspent grants can mainly be attributed to projects that are work in progress on 
the relevant financial year-ends. 

See appendix "C" for reconciliation of grants from other spheres of government. 
The entity complied with the conditions attached to all grants received to the 
extent of revenue recognised. No grants were withheld. 

14. CURRENT EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Provision for Staff Leave 4,788,007  4,586,855  

Total Current Employee Benefits 4,788,007  4,586,855  

The movement in current employee benefits are reconciled as follows: 

Provision for Staff Leave 

Balance at beginning of year 4,586,855  3,788,398  

Current year contribution 913,203  815,956  

Expenditure incurred (712,051) (17,499) 

Balance at end of year 4,788,007  4,586,855  

Staff leave accrued to employees according to collective agreement. Provision is 
made for the full cost of accrued leave at reporting date but limited to 35 leave 
days. This provision will be realised as employees take leave, when employment is 
terminated or any circumstance approved by the board of directors.  
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15. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

Future minimum lease payments of the operating lease 

Up to 1 year 126,000   126,000  

1 to 5 Years     325,500  451,500  

More than 5 years -  -  

Total Operating Lease Payments            451,500             577,500  

The operating lease consist of an agreement entered into with Missionary Sisters 
of the Precious Blood over a period of 12 years. The entity leases a Dairy Farm. 
The latest agreement was entered into on 1 January 2013 and expires on  29 
January 2025. The initial rental amount in the contract is R 10,500.00 (Including 
VAT) per month.  
The entity has not engage any sub-lease arrangements. 

The entity did not pay any contingent rent during the year. 

16. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Capitalised Lease Liability - At amortised cost 364,234  209,956  

364,234  209,956  
Current Portion transferred to current liabilities 

Capitalised lease liability - At amortised cost (296,953) (87,536) 

Total long term liabilities - at amortised cost using the 
effective interest rate method 67,281  122,420  

Future minimum lease payments of the finance lease 

Up to 1 year 296,953  87,536  
2 to 3 years 67,281  273,305  
More than 3 years -  -  

364,234  360,841  

The minimum lease periods are 36 months and 24 months with the final lease payments made on 01/09/2022 and 10/01/2022 
respectively. 

The capitalised lease liability consists of the following contracts: 

Supplier Description of the leased item Effective Annual Escalation 
Vodacom Thinkpad Smart PC's 10% 0% 
Vodacom Thinkpad Smart PC's 7% 0% 
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1177.. TTRRAANNSSFFEERRSS  AANNDD  SSUUBBSSIIDDIIEESS

O.R. Tambo District Municipality         44,267,179         41,015,026  

O.R. Tambo District Municipality - Conditional           1,468,828           5,409,627  

Other grants 707,132  89,932  

Total income         46,443,139         46,514,585  

Total Grants 

Opening balance           5,748,198           3,290,842  

Grants received - O.R. Tambo District Municipality         44,267,179         49,142,061  

Grants received - Other 735,266  155,116  

Less: Amount transferred to revenue -  -  

Unconditional Grants utilised        (44,267,179)       (41,015,027) 

Conditions met: O. R. Tambo District Municipality          (1,468,828)         (5,729,645) 

Conditions met: Other grants            (707,132) (95,148) 

-  

Conditions still to be met/(Grant expenditure to be recovered) 4,307,504          5,748,198  

Disclosed as follows: 

Unspent Conditional Government Grants and Receipts 4,307,504   5,748,198 

          4,307,504           5,748,198  

1188.. SSAALLEE  OOFF  GGOOOODDSS  AANNDD  RREENNDDEERRIINNGG  OOFF  SSEERRVVIICCEESS

Agency Servicess           5,343,027           9,467045  

SETA Levies and Tender Fees 215,898  994,011  

Fresh Farm  Products - Meat         10,452,083         10,514,748  

Slaughter Services 323,593  358,602  

Commission 413,103  909,075  

Office rentals, storage fees, parking fees etc 316,308  662,235  

Sales of Fresh Farm Products - Animals -  667,402  

Sales of Fresh Farm Products - Crops 476,914  667,043  

Decrease of liability -  157,277  

Discount received 22,406  1,131  

Total         17,563,332         24,398,569  
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1199..  AAddjjuussttmmeennttss  ttoo  BBiioollooggiiccaall  AAsssseettss  
 

1199..11  GGaaiinnss              
 

 
 

                
 

 
 

 Fair Value adjustments - Changes in fair 
values 

        2,861,307     6,482,767  

 Fair Value adjustments - Livestock births               95,400         121,800  
                     
                   2,956,707     6,604,567  
                   

1199..22  LLoosssseess                 

                   

 Fair Value adjustments - Price changes        -   -  
 Physical changes - Livestock deaths        477,300   241,200  
                   

                477,300   241,200  
                     

 These biological assets adjustments relate to births and deaths of 
livestock. 

   

                   

1199..33  IInntteerrccoommppaannyy  TTrraannssaaccttiioonnss  --  DDoonnaattiioonn  ooff  AAsssseettss    

                   

 Property, Plant and Equipment          -    2,463,783  
                   

 The previous year donation relates to new buildings built on behalf of the 
entity by the parent municipality at Adam Kok Farms.  
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2200..  EEMMPPLLOOYYEEEE  RREELLAATTEEDD  CCOOSSTTSS  
 

Basic salary        
     

        31,833,391      32,047,795  

Bonus - 13th Cheque      
     

          2,171,225            2,370,114  

Provident fund       
     

          4,172,635            3,752,429  

Allowances        
     

          5,013,166            5,476,871  

Staff leave        
     

            913,204               830,594  

Unemployment Insurance and Skills Development contributions 
     

            741,866               553,262  

Overtime  
           

              99,203                         -  
    

           
   

Total Employee Related Costs 
        

        44,944,690          45,031,065  
    

           
     

CONTRIBUTIONS TO PENSION AND PROVIDENT FUNDS 
     

   

    
           

   

The Entity contributes to the Defined Contribution Provident Fund. The 
benefit is subject to the Pension Fund Act 24 of 1956.  

 
   

    
           

   

Contributions for the year included in employee cost 
     

          4,172,635            3,752,429  
    

           
   

REMUNERATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL 
     

   

    
           

   

Remuneration of the Chief Executive Officer  
       

   

Basic Salary 
           

          1,183,716            1,213,206  

Acting Allowance 
           

              44,996                         -  

Travel Allowance 
           

            196,802               180,067  

Cellphone Allowance 
          

              31,172                  4,201  

Annual Bonus - 13th Cheque 
        

            124,411                33,568  

Pension  
           

            187,224               155,633  

Gratuity   
           

            631,890                         -  
    

           
   

Total  
           

          2,400,212            1,586,675  
 
Chief Executive Officer (CEO) resigned and an acting person was appointed to the position of the CEO with effect from 
December 2020. 
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2200..  EEMMPPLLOOYYEEEE  RREELLAATTEEDD  CCOOSSTTSS  ((ccoonnttiinnuueedd))  
 
Remuneration of the Chief Financial Officer          

 
 

Basic Salary            
            868,482            1,075,480  

Acting Allowance            
            221,276    

Travel Allowance            
            127,147               126,123  

Cellphone Allowance           
              33,585                47,661  

Annual Bonus - 13th Cheque         
              78,446                72,935  

Pension             
            112,903               134,001  

                

Total             
          1,441,838            1,456,199  

               
     

With effect from December 2020, the CFO position was occupied by 
an acting person. 

   
   

                  

Remuneration of the Senior Manager Water Services 
        

Basic Salary            
            856,378            1,021,092  

Travel Allowance            
              95,106               113,399  

Cellphone Allowance           
              22 345                26,642  

Annual Bonus - 13th Cheque         
            110,641                73,379  

Pension             
            111,329               132,742  

Leave gratuity            
            205,786                         -  

               
    

Total             
          1,401,584            1,367,253  

               
     

The position was filled for a period of nine (9) months from July 2020 to March 
2021. Contract of employment expired and the vacancy was not filled. 

   

                  

Remuneration of the Corporate Service Manager           

Basic Salary            
          1,244,582            1,010,150  

Travel Allowance            
            213,188               216,368  

Annual Bonus - 13th Cheque         
              91,010                84,616  

Pension             
            150,321               131,319  

                  

Total             
          1,699,101            1,442,453  

               
     

Remuneration of the Senior Manager Trading Enterprises 
        

Basic Salary 
           

1,060,921  1,010,401 

Travel Allowance 
           

162,225  154,500 

Cellphone Allowance 
          

-  - 
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2200..  EEMMPPLLOOYYEEEE  RREELLAATTEEDD  CCOOSSTTSS  ((ccoonnttiinnuueedd))  
 
Annual Bonus - 13th Cheque 

        
              74,552                35,083  

Pension 
            

            137,919               131,352  
                  

Total 
            

          1,435,616            1,331,335  
               

     

Remuneration of the Company Secretary 
          

Basic Salary 
           

            752,221               781,452  

Travel Allowance 
           

            112,731               115,565  

Cellphone Allowance 
          

                       -                12,437  

Annual Bonus - 13th Cheque 
        

              60,944                57,605  

Pension 
            

              97,789               101,589  
                  

Total 
            

          1,023,684            1,068,647  
 
21. BOARD OF DIRECTORS RELATED COSTS          
 
Sitting allowances and re-imbursive travel costs 

      
            827,482               800,069  

Accommodation and travel costs 
       

                       -               132,037  
                 

Total Board of Directors related costs 
      

            827,482               932,106  
              

     

During the year the work of the Board and Committees was conducted remotely 
and virtually hence there was no accommodation and travel expenditure. 
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21. BOARD OF DIRECTORS RELATED COSTS (CONTINUED)   
 
REMUNERATION PER BOARD MEMBER 

          
                  

30 JUNE 2020 
              

                  

Board Member 
         

Sitting Allowance 
 

Re-imbursive travel 
expenses 

  TOTAL  

                  

Mr S.E. Mase 
         

                  51,700                          -                51,700  

Mr M. Msiwa 
         

                  68,200                          -                68,200  

Mr M.M. Pupuma 
         

                102,383                          -               102,383  

Mrs N.D.A. Ngewu 
        

                100,100                          -               100,100  

Dr. L.L. Ndabeni 
         

                88,000                          -                88,000  

Ms. U.N. Mkize 
         

                  78,100                          -                78,100  

Prof. L.Y. Majova-Songca 
       

                  85,250  
 

                       -                85,250  

Ms. N.S.N. Bam 
         

                 110,000  
 

                       -               110,000  

Dr. N.T. Ndudane 
         

                   99,414  
 

                       -                99,414  

Ms. N. Makuni* 
         

                  44,335  
 

                       -                44,335  
             

                827,482                          -               827,482  
                  

Members of the Board are non-executive directors.  In order to enable them to carry out their responsibilities efficiently and 
effectively some members are provided with computer equipment and data bundles. Except for the Board Chairperson 
members are divided to serve in board committes. *Mrs. Makuni serves as an independent member of the Audit and Risk 
Committee only. 
 
2222..  DDEEBBTT  IIMMPPAAIIRRMMEENNTT  
  

Trade Receivables from exchange transactions - Note 3,2 
     

                       -     100,293  
          

     
   

Debt impairment recognised in statement of financial performance 
     

                       -   100,293  
          

     
     

 
2233..  DDEEPPRREECCIIAATTIIOONN  AANNDD  AAMMOORRTTIISSAATTIIOONN  
 
Property Plant and Equipment 

        
          5,158,812            5,223,060  

Intangible Assets 
           

            256,229               242,978  
               

   
               

          5,415,041            5,466,038  
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2244..  FFIINNAANNCCEE  CCHHAARRGGEESS  
 

Interest expenses  
          

            263,153                70,020  
     

          
   

Total finance charges 
          

            263,153                70,020  
 
2255..  CCOORRRREECCTTIIOONN  OOFF  EERRRROORR  IINN  TTEERRMMSS  OOFF  GGRRAAPP  33  
 

Accumulated surplus 
        

   
   

 
         

   

Balance previously reported 
      

         79,276,686     
 

         
   

Reversal of previously recognised deferred tax asset 
     

          (7 219 551)    
 

         
    

Restated balance 
        

         72 057 135     
 

         
   

Deferred tax Asset 
        

   
   

 
         

   

Balance previously reported 
      

           7,219,551     
 

         
   

Reversal of previously recognised deferred tax asset 
     

          (7,219,551)    
 

         
    

Restated balance 
        

                        -               
   

The Entity has derecognised the deferred tax asset. It is not probable that it will generate profits to utilise the deferred tax 
asset. A correction of a prior year error has been made. 

 

2266..  OOPPEERRAATTIIOONNAALL  CCOOSSTTSS  
 

Accommodation and travel 
         

            721,249            1,047,476  

Advertising and promotion 
         

              70,722               109,473  

Audit fees    
         

          1,916,507            2,543,995  

Bank charges   
         

            302,019               372,535  

Bar codes    
         

                1,690                         -  

Cash collection services  
         

            101,574               113,287  

Cleaning    
         

                1,728                  1 ,555  

Courier and postage  
         

                   905                     318  

Consulting and professional fees 
        

            139,327               274,117  

Consumables   
         

                1,016                49,056  

Commission paid   
         

            165,776                         -  

External project expenses 
         

                       -                  2,975  

Employee wellness  
         

                5,533               226,507  
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2266..  OOPPEERRAATTIIOONNAALL  CCOOSSTTSS  ((ccoonnttiinnuueedd))  
 

Fuel and oil    
         

            881,642               934,400  

Feed    
         

          1,378,074               924,065  

Hiring expenses   
         

                       -               255,633  

Legal fees    
         

              73,800                         -  

Licensing - software  
         

            606,617               426,397  

Livestock purchases  
         

          7,963,966            8,834,069  

Livestock - Adam Kok Farms 
        

                       -                         -  

Motor vehicle expenses  
         

              78,093               167,815  

Penalties and interest on taxes 
        

                       -                         -  

Meat inspection   
         

            182,536               179,152  

Medication - livestock  
         

            178,969               252,575  

Municipal services  
         

          2,226,003            2,478,255  

Occupational health and safety 
        

              33,142                         -  

Packaging    
         

            128,285               117,794  

Printing and stationery  
         

            178,843               242,763  

Provision for doubtful debts contribution 
       

              91,413               100,293  

Protective clothing  
         

              50,274                34645  

Rental expenses   
         

            115,500               126,000  

Refurbishment - water services 
        

          2 267,059            3,545,252  

Security services   
         

            885,446               901,922  

Staff training    
         

            128,475               361,081  

Strategic planning session 
         

                4,831                34,705  

Subscriptions   
         

            185,520               216,028  

Telephone and fax  
         

          1,488,816            1,446,670  

Write offs - Assets  
         

                       -                         -  

Cash-up losses   
         

              39,310                         -  

Agricultural development  
         

          1,470,519            5,494,345  

Personnel and labour  
         

            489,975               609,705  

Trade and investment promotion 
        

                7,950                51,027  
      

         
     

Total operational costs 
         

        24,563,104          32,475,885  
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2277..  CCOONNTTRRAACCTTEEDD  SSEERRVVIICCEESS  
 
Cleaning             

            234,493               220,158  

Insurance - assets 
          

          1,675,287            1,526,624  

Internal audit expenses 
          

              92,700                85,596  

Leasing Hire Fac            
              26,838                33,670  

Software licencing 
          

            228,917               216,499  

Website maintenance 
          

              87,800                42,000  
               

     
               

          2,346,035            2,124,547  
 
28. SEGMENT INFORMATION 
 
a) The Entity is organised into four strategic goals and under these goals there are four main segments with main activities 
and geographical location described as follows: 
 
- Umzikantu Red Meat Abattoir. It is based in Mthatha and its main activity is the provision of slaughter services as well as 

meat sales. 
- Adam Kok Farms. Farms are based in Kokstad and are operated for livestock and crop production. 
- Kei Fresh Produce Market. The market is based in Mthatha. It is plattform wherein farmers bring their produce for sale. The 

Entity generates as revenue commission on sales. Space and equipment are also rented out at a fee.    
- The Entity's mandate includes the repairs and maintenance of water schemes. The function is funded by the parent 

municipality and the Entity is paid for work done. The Entity is also acting as a paymaster for operators appointed by the 
parent municipality and generates revenue in the form of implementation fees.  

 
b) Segments are aggregated for reporting purposes. 
 
c) Information reported about these segments is used for evaluating the segments' perfomance and for making decisions 
about the allocation of resources. 
 
Segment surplus or deficit, assets and liabilities 
        

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

2021      
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
Ntinga 

Head office 
 Umzikantu 

Red  
Meat 

Abattoir 

 Adam kok  
Farms 

  Kei Fresh   
 Produce 

Market  

  Water 
Services  

  Total  

            

Revenue             

Transfers and Subsidies    46,443,139                     -                         -                         -                          -     46,443,139  
Other income       3,689,136                   -                         -                         -                          -     3,689,136  
Agency Services                      -                       -                         -                         -     5,343,027   5,343,027  
Fresh Farm  Products - Meat                    -      10,452,083                       -                         -                        -   10,452,083  
Slaughter Services                    -           323,593                       -                        -                        -   323,593  
Commission                  -                     -                       -               413,103                       -     413,103  
Office rentals, storage fees, 
parking fees etc               -                    -              -     316,308                    -   316,308  

Sales of Fresh Farm Products - 
Animals                 -                      -   0                   -                       -               -    

Sales of Fresh Farm Products - 
Crops                    -                      -   476,914                     -                       -        476,914  

Total revenue 50,132,275   10,775,676     476,914            729,411   5,343,027   67,457,303  
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28. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 
 
Employee costs 26,294,677  3,206,493  4,049,954.75   3,675,645.12   7,717,920   44,944,690  
Depreciation 4,362,796  300,466  0  751,778.28                      -   5,415,041  
Other costs 11,874,977  7,172,058  5,517,620,41  1,627,883.95   2,447,425   28,639,964  
                  

Total expenditure 42,532,450  10,679,018  9,567,575  6,055,307  10,165,345  78,999,695 
                   

Surplus/(Deficit)  
for the period 7,599,825  96,658  -9,090,661  -5,325,896  -4,822,318  -11,542,392 

                  

ASSETS            

                  

Property, plant and equipment   48,594,408   2,386,368  0  3,989,041  0  54,969,817 

Other assets          483,522   0  0  0  0  483,522 

Deferred tax                       
-    

 0  0  0  0  0 

Receivables 7,594,820  205,800  0  366,276  0  8,166,895 

Inventory 3,727,648  3,808  328,586  0  0  4,060,042 

Cash and cash equivalents 2,333,571  230,249  112,414  633,091  0  3,309,325 

Biological assets    0  13,173,660  0  0  13,173,660 
                  

Total Assets    62,733,968        2,826,225       13,614,660       4,988,408                        -       84,163,261  
                  

LIABILITIES            

                  

Trade payables 0  503,742  4,227  693,898  0  1,201,867 
Other creditors 19,560,672  569,229  606,329  659,379  1,051,044  22,446,652 
                  

Total Liabilities    19,560,672         1,072,971           610,555         1,353,277         1,051,044     23,648,519  
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29. RECONCILIATION BETWEEN DEFICIT FOR THE YEAR AND CASH GENERATED UTILISED BY OPERATIONS 
 
Deficit for the year           

       (11,542,392)          (6,114,760) 
                  

Adjustments for:               

                  

Depreciation             
          5,158,812            5,223,060  

Amortisation of Intangible Assets         
            256,229               242,978  

Impairments - Property, Plant and Equipment 
          

Donations received           
                     -             (2,463,783) 

Adjustments to Biological Assets         
         (2,479,407)          (6,363,367) 

(Gain)/loss on disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment 
     

                       -                 (4,731) 

Loss on disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment 
       

              54,863    

Gains on disposal of Biological Assets 
       

           (299,169)   

Contribution from/to employee benefits 
       

                       -                         -  

Correction of prior year error - note 28 
       

                       -                         -  

Increase in provision for doubtful debts 
       

                       -                         -  
               

     

Operating Loss before changes in working capital 
       

         (8,851,065)          (9,480,603) 

Changes in working capital          
         (1,469,837)         18,091,532  

                  

(Decrease) / Increase in Payables from Exchange Transactions 
     

           (563,150)              874,657  

Increase in Provision for Current Employee Benefits 
       

            201,152               798,459  

(Decrease) / Increase in Unspent Conditional Government Grants and Receipts 
   

         (1,440,694)           2,457,356  

Increase in Taxes            
          3,718,771            2,097,421  

Increase in Inventory           
          2,841,111            2,390,524  

(Increase) / Decrease in Accounts Receivables 
       

         (6,227,027)           9,473,115  
               

     

Cash utilised/(generated) by operations 
       

       (10,320,901)           8,610,929  
 
 
30. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
 
Cash and cash equivalents included in the cash flow statement comprise the 
following: 

 
 

 

                
 

 

Call Investments Deposits - Note 2 
        

          1,243,920          11,982,914  

Cash Floats - Note 2           
                6,896                19,065  

Bank - Note 2            
          2,058,509            1,276,553  

       
        

   

Total cash and cash equivalents 
        

          3,309,325          13,278,532  
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31. RECONCILIATION OF AVAILABLE CASH AND INVESTMENT RESOURCES 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Note 2        

          3,309,325          13,278,532  
               

     
               

          3,309,325          13,278,532  

Less:              
          4,307,504            5,748,198  

                  

 Unspent Committed Conditional Grants - Note 13        
          4,307,504            5,748,198  

               
     

Resources (required) / available for working capital requirements 
     

           (998,179)           7,530,334  
 
32. PURCHASE OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 
 
32.1 Additions to Property, Plant and Equipment 

        
 

 

                 
 

 

 Purchase of property, plant and equipment - Note 8 
       

            764,470               673,495  
                

     
 Cash movement            

            764,470               673,495  

 
33. IRREGULAR, FRUITLESS AND WASTEFUL EXPENDITURE  
 
33.1 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure        

                

 Reconciliation of fruitless and wasteful expenditure:        

                

  Opening balance        35,791   65,329  
  Fruitless and wasteful expenditure incurred                            -   23,622  
  Less: Recovered during the year      (34,239)  (53,160) 
                  
  Outstanding Balance        1,552   35,791  
                

  Fruitless and wasteful expenditure awaiting further action   1,552  1,552  

  Fruitless and wasteful expenditure recovered after financial year - 
August 2020 -   23,622  

 
Incident Disciplinary steps/proceedings 
During 2017/18 financial year eleven cows were 
transferred to Umzikantu Red Meat Abattoir from Adam 
Kok Farms for slaughter and selling. It was later 
discovered that they were vaccinated and were not 
suitable for sale and human consumption and the meat 
was disposed.  

Affected employees were found to have been negligent and 
sanction was passed that the loss would be recovered from 
them. Recovery of money was implemented in the 2019/2020 
financial year. 
  

Legal fees incurred on collection of Red Meat Levy due. 
  

Letters will be written to the affected employees as to why these 
legal fees of R1,552 can not be recovered from them. 

Suspected fraudulent fuel card transactions 
  

Unknown transactions amounting R23,622 were noted on a 
vehicle fuel card. Upon investigation it transpired that the fuel 
card may have been duplicated or hacked.  The full amount was 
recovered from the bank in August 2020. 
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33.2 Irregular expenditure 
   

Reconciliation of irregular expenditure:           
                   
  

Opening balance           
1,356,987   988,596  

  
Irregular expenditure incurred during the 
year 

      
 

215,717   368,391  
                

     
                

1,572,704   1,356,987  
                   
  

Condoned during the year         
                       -                         -  

                
     

  
Irregular expenditure awaiting further action        

 1,572,704   1,356,987  
                

     
  

This expenditure was reported to the parent municipality and is awaiting 
action by Council. 

 
   

 
 
Incident          
Sage Evolution. No declarattion of interest was attached on the payment 
voucher. Supplier insisted that their CSD is detailed to cover the information on 
their interests.  

            158,105               158,104  

Jim Palo Trading. Their tax status was non-tax copliant at the time of 
appointment. They are subsequently tax compliant. 

            111,001               111,000  

Uhlelo Engineering. Did not qualify for being selected as supplier to procure 
goods and services considering points scored. No cancellation letter could be 
produced for the winning bidder. 

              56,134                56 134  

Lindwin Trading. Their director was in employment of the state.               43,152                43,154  

Bid specifications not including the local content requirement.             288,368               288,367  

During the 2020/21 financial year procurement was made through deviation 
from a single source supplier without following the entity’s SCM policy in full.  

            215,717                         -  

Employees whose salaries include travel allowances used Entity vehicles 700,228               700,228  
           1,572,704            1,356,987  

    
 
34. ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES IN TERMS OF MUNICIPAL FINANCE MANAGEMENT ACT 
 
34.1 Audit fees - [MFMA 125 (1)(b)] 

           
                   
 

Opening balance 
           

                       -                         -  
 

Current year audit fee 
          

          1,916,507            2,543,995  
 

Amount paid - current year 
         

  (1,916,507)  (2,543,995) 
                   
 

Closing balance 
           

                       -                         -  
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34.2 VAT - [MFMA 125 (1)(b)]  

            
                   
 

Opening balance 
           

         (4,751,979)          (2,654,559) 
 

VAT payments made to SARS - previous year 
       

            228,201              (125,908) 
 

VAT due to SARS - current year 
        

         (6,628,715)          (7,019,770) 
 

VAT payments made to SARS - current year 
       

          2,681,743            5,048,257  
                   
 

Closing balance - Payable 
        

         (8,470,750)          (4,751,979) 
                

     
 

VAT is accounted for on a payment basis.  
    

 
34.3 PAYE, SDL and UIF - [MFMA 125 (1)(b)] 

          

                   

 Opening balance 
           

            661,945               621,921  
 Current year payroll deductions and contributions 

       
          9,373,955            8,973,155  

 Amount paid - current year 
         

         (9,428,862)          (8,933,131) 
                   

 Closing balance 
           

            607,038               661,945  
 
34.4 Pension and Medical Aid Deductions - [MFMA 125 (1)(b)]    

                  

 Opening balance 
          

              72,549                 (1,760) 

 Current year payroll deductions and 
contributions 

      

          5,013,009            5,214,969  

 Amount paid - current year 
        

         (4,974,799)          (5,140,660) 
                  

 Closing balance 
          

            110,760                72,549  
               

     

34.5 Supply Chain Management Deviations 
         

                  

 Procurement transactions where it was impractical to follow 
normal SCM procedures 

  

          9,748,289            8,281,776  

                  

 Total 
           

          9,748,289            8,281,776  
 
These are deviations approved by the Accounting Officer and ratified by the Board of Directors. They were also presented to 
the Council of the parent municipality. Most of them relate to procurement of livestock from farmers and auctions where it was 
impractical to follow normal procurement processes such as requesting for atleast three quotations. 
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35. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 
 
Commitments in respect of capital expenditure: 

          

                  

Approved and contracted for: 
        

              61,295                61,295  
               

     

Total commitments consist out of the following: 
          

                  

- Sanitation projects           
              61,295                61,295  

                  

               
              61,295                61,295  

               
     

This expenditure will be financed from: 
          

                  

 Government Grants           
              61,295                61,295  

                  

               
              61,295                61,295  

                  
 

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
The activities of the entity expose it to a variety of financial 
risks, including market risk (comprising fair value interest 
rate risk, cash flow interest rate risk and price risk), credit 
risk and liquidity risk. The entity’s overall risk management 
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial 
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on 
the entity’s financial performance.  

(a) Foreign Exchange Currency Risk 
 
The entity does not engage in foreign currency 
transactions. 
 
(b) Price risk 
 
The entity is not exposed to price risk. 
 

(c) Interest Rate Risk 
 
As the entity does not have significant interest-bearing 
liabilities, the entity's income and operating cash flows are 
not substantially dependent on changes in market interest 
rates. 
 
The entity analyses its potential exposure to interest rate 
changes on a continuous basis. Different scenarios are 
simulated which include refinancing, renewal of current 
positions, alternative financing and hedging. Based on 
these scenarios, the entity calculates the impact that a 
change in interest rates will have on the surplus/deficit for 
the year. These scenarios are only simulated for liabilities 
which constitute the majority of interest bearing liabilities. 
 
The entity did not hedge against any interest rate risks 
during the current year. 
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(d) Credit Risk 
 
Credit risk is the risk that a counter party to a financial or non-
financial asset will fail to discharge an obligation and cause 
the entity to incur a financial loss.  
Credit risk consist mainly of cash deposits, cash equivalents, 
trade and other receivables and unpaid conditional grants 
and subsidies.  
 
Receivables are disclosed net after provisions are made for 
impairment and bad debts. Trade debtors comprise of 
customers utilising purchasing and utilising the services of 
the abattoir, dispersed across different sectors and 
geographical areas. Credit risk pertaining to trade and other 
debtors is considered to be moderate due the diversified 
nature of debtors and immaterial nature of individual 
balances. In the case of consumer debtors the entity 
effectively has the right to terminate services to  
 
customers but in practice this is difficult to apply. In the case 
of debtors whose accounts become in arrears, Board 
endeavours to collect such accounts by "levying of penalty 
charges", "demand for payment", "restriction of services" 
and, as a last resort, "handed over for collection". 
 

The entity only deposits cash with major banks with high 
quality credit standing. No cash and cash equivalents were 
pledged as security for financial liabilities and no restrictions 
were placed on the use of any cash and cash equivalents for 
the period under review. Although the credit risk pertaining 
to cash and cash equivalents are considered to be low, the 
maximum exposure are disclosed below. 
 
The banks utilised by the entity for current and non-current 
investments are all listed on the JSE (First National Bank, 
Nedbank, Absa and Standard Bank). The credit quality of 
these institutions are evaluated based on their required SENS 
releases as well as other media reports. Based on all public 
communications, the financial sustainability is evaluated to 
be of high quality and the credit risk pertaining to these 
institutions are considered to be low.   
 
The risk pertaining to unpaid conditional grants and subsidies 
are considered to be very low. Amounts are receivable from 
national and provincial government and there are no 
expectation of counter party default. 

Long-term Receivables and Other Debtors are individually 
evaluated annually at Balance Sheet date for impairment. 

Financial assets exposed to credit risk at year end are as follows: 
        

                 

Receivables from exchange transactions 
       

              69,942               752,164  

Receivables from non-exchange transactions 
       

          8,096,954            1 187,705  

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
        

          3,309,325          13,278,532  
                 

              
        11,476,220          15,218,401  

 
(e) Liquidity Risk 

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining 
sufficient cash, the availability of funding through an 
adequate amount of committed credit facilities. Due to the 
dynamic nature of the underlying business, the treasury 
maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining availability 
under credit lines 
 
The entity's risk to liquidity is a result of the funds available 
to cover future commitments. The entity manages liquidity 

risk through an ongoing review of future commitments and 
credit facilities. 
 
The table below analyses the entity's financial liabilities into 
relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period 
at the financial year end to the contractual maturity date. The 
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual 
undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months 
equal their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is 
not significant. 
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Less than 1 year Between 1 and 
5 years 

 Between 5 and 
10 years  

 Over 10 Years  

 2021  R R  R   R  
       

Trade and Other Payables   
    5,718,024             5,718,024                         -           -  

Unspent conditional government grants and receipts 
 

4,307,504  4,307,504                         -     -  
        

10,025,528   10,025,528              -                    -  
      

  
    

        
Less than 1 year Between 1 and 

5 years 
 Between 5 and 

10 years  
 Over 10 Years  

2020 
  

R R  R   R  
            

Trade and Other Payables   
     6,281,174             6,281,174    -               -  

Unspent conditional government grants and receipts 
 

     5,748,198             5,748,198       -              -  
        

 12,029,372          12,029,372            -      -  

            
 
37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 
 
In accordance with GRAP 104 the financial instruments of the entity are classified as follows: 
 
37.1 Financial Assets   Classification           

                   

 Receivables               

                   

 Receivables from exchange 
transactions 

Financial instruments at amortised cost               69,942              752,164  

 Receivables from non-
exchange transactions 

Financial instruments at amortised cost           8,096,954            1,187,705  

                   

 Short-term Investment Deposits            

                   

 Call Deposits   Financial instruments at amortised cost           1,243,920          11,982,914  
                   

 Bank Balances and Cash             

                   

 Bank Balances   Financial instruments at amortised cost           2,058,509            1,276,553  
 Cash Floats and Advances Financial instruments at amortised cost                 6,896                19,065  
                   

                
        11,476,220          15,218,401  
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS           
   
Financial instruments at amortised cost 

       
        11,476,220          15,218,401  

                  

At amortised cost           
        11,476,220          15,218,401  

 
37.2 Financial Liability  Classification           

                   

 Payables from exchange transactions           

                   

 Trade creditors Financial instruments at amortised cost             751,189               379,281  
 Salary deductions Financial instruments at amortised cost             639,134               851,164  
                   

 Accruals             
          3,880,727            4,603,755  

                   

 Payables from non-exchange transactions        
            446,974               446,974  

                   

 Government Subsidies and Grants Financial instruments at amortised cost           4,307,504            5,748,198  
                   

                
        10,025,528          12,029,371  

 
SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL LIABILITY 

          
                  

Financial instruments at amortised cost 
       

        10,025,528          12,029,371  
 
These financial instruments are contracted to mature in one year or less after the balance sheet date.   
         
38. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE         
         
The Entity’s cashflow and liquidity position has been affected by not receiving the full monthly tranches from July 2021 and 
August 2021 grant funding from the parent municipality. The is due to the parent municipality grants being withheld by National 
Treasury. The Entity was informed that with effect from 20 August 2021, Council of the parent municipality was dissolved, and 
an Administrator appointed. 
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39. IN-KIND DONATIONS AND ASSISTANCE       
              
Internal auditor seconded from the O. R. Tambo District Municipality. Office accommodation is provided by O. R. Tambo 
District Municipality at no cost. 
 
40. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES    

Man Truck & Bus (Pty) Ltd; The Entity is a second defendant on a matter 
involving a collision between a truck and a cow at Adam Kok Farms. 

            218,254               218,254  

CE Du Plessis and 2 other vs OR Tambo District Municipality. Defendent is OR 
Tambo District Municipality and Ntinga is the second respondent. Plaintiffs 
alleges that their respective properties were damaged by fires which came from 
Adam Kok Farms owned by ORTDM and managed by Ntinga. The matter is 
being defended by the municipality. 

          1,781,524            1,781,524  

Zandisile Kanise vs OR Tambo District Municipality. Defendent is OR Tambo 
District Municipality and Ntinga is the second respondent. Mr. Z.L. Kanise is 
employed by Ntinga. As per request of ORTDM he was seconded at ORTDM, 
Executive Mayor Office  without any documentation. It is alleged that he acted 
as a Policy Analyst on secondment from Ntinga.  

          2,000,000            2,000,000  

Benzile Munala vs Kei Fresh Produce Market. The matter is between Kei Fresh 
Produce Market and its former employee. It happened before the market was 
transferred to Ntinga by the municipality. The matter relates to an alleged unfair 
labout practice. 

            500,000               500,000  

Sheriff of th Court - Kokstad vs Ntinga. The Sheriff is claiming re-imbursement of 
costs incurred after eviction of livestock at Adam Kok Farms. Ntinga is 
challenging the matter. 

            230,000               230,000  

 Ms Gwavu vs Kei Fresh Produce Market / Ntinga. Ms Gwavu was dismissed in 
2011 by Kei Fresh Produce Market for gross negligence and the lost of funds 
before the market was incorporated into Ntinga. An out of court settlement was 
reached between the parties and it was settled by the District Municipality after 
year end. 

                       -               213,086  

Sontongane Vuyani vs Ntinga. In December 2019 the entity received summons 
dated 14 October 2019 alleging that the cliamant's vehicle hit a cow belonging 
to the entity. The matter is being defended.    

            160,200               160,200  

               
          4,889,978            5,103,064  

 
41. RELATED PARTIES 

        
 

 

              
 

 

41.1 Related Party Loans 
        

 
 

 
No loans to or from related parties 

 
 

 

              
 

 

41.2 Compensation of key management personnel 
     

 
 

 
The compensation of key management personnel is set out in note 20 to 
the Annual Financial Statements. 

 
 

 

              
 

 

41.3 Other related party transactions 
      

 
 

 
Grant Amount 

         
 

 

 
O.R. Tambo District Municipality 

     
44,267,179   49,142,061  
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In-kind donations and assistance 
 
Internal support and risk management function are received from the O. R. Tambo District Municipality at no cost to the entity. 
Office accommodation and related municipal services  are provided by O.R. Tambo District Municipality at no cost to the 
Entity. 
 
Service Delivery services arrangements with the parent municipality 

 
 

 

                
 

 

- The Entity assigned a function of repairing and maintaning 
water schemes in rural and peri-urban areas. The Entity is 
the paymaster for water scheme operators appointed by 
the parent municipality. It derives revenue from these 
functions. 

 
          5,343,027            9,467,045  

                
 

 

- Ntinga is appointed as an implementing agent for certain 
local economic development initiatives. 

 
                       -            8,127,035  

                
 

 

Supply of water and sanitation services to Umzikantu Abattoir, 
Ikhwezi Dairy Farm and Kei Fresh Produce Market 

  
 

 

                
 

 

- Value of services provide 
         

            154,411               385,397  

- Interest charged on overdue accounts 
       

              42,171                45,313  
                

 
 

Donation of Assets and Transfer of liabilities 
  

 
 

                
 

 

Donation and transfer of assets. 
 

                       -            2,463,783  
 

41.4 Nature of related party relationship 
 

          

 
O.R. Tambo District Municipality is the parent municipality of the entity 

          

 
Related party transactions were undertaken at arms length. 

 
42. FINANCIAL SUSTAINABILITY 

The indicators or conditions that indicate that the Entity is financially stable are as follows:- 

Financial Indicators 

The parent municipality transferred to the Entity revenue generating assets. Due to this, the entity's revenue generation is 
improving from year to year. In addition, the extension of the mandate to include water services has expanded revenue sources 
for the Entity.  
 
43. GOING CONCERN 
 
The parent municipality, O.R. Tambo District Municipality, continues to provide financial support to the Entity. There is 
commitment by the parent to continue funding the entity. The Entity is implementing a strategy that is focused on generating 
own revenue particularly from its trading enterprises.  

  
  
  



160 161

APPENDIX A - Unaudited 
NTINGA O. R. TAMBO DEVELOPMENT AGENCY SOC LTD  
(A MUNICIPAL ENTITY OF THE O. R. TAMBO DISTRICT MUNICIPALITY : 
REGISTRATION NUMBER: 2016/272582/30) 
NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021  
                

8. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 
 
 30 JUNE 2021  

      
 

       
 

       
 

 Reconciliation of Carrying Value  
 

Cost  
       
  

 Opening Balance   Additions   Transferred from  
 Parent Municipality  

 Disposals   Closing Balance  
  

       

  
 R   R  

 
 R   R  

       
 

 Land and Buildings  
 

          45,917,122          49,080                             -                    -              45,966,202  
       
 

            

 Land              23,001,877                 -                               -                    -              23,001,877  

 Buildings              22,915,245          49,080                             -                    -              22,964,325  
 

            
       

 Lease Assets  
 

                       -                   -                               -                    -                           -    
 

            

 Computer Equipment (Lease)                           -                   -                               -                    -                           -    

 Office Equipment (Lease)                           -                   -                               -                    -                           -    
 

            
       

 Other Assets  
 

          31,862,498        715,390                             -            122,341            32,455,547  
       

 Furniture & Fittings                2,409,293          77,099                             -             28,403             2,457,990  

 Motor vehicles                 4,232,382                 -                               -                    -               4,232,382  

 Plant and equipment              23,211,315          77,100                             -             31,955            23,256,460  

 Computer Equipment                1,960,000        561,191                             -             61,983             2,459,208  

 Network Hardware                    49,507                 -                               -                    -                    49,507  
  

          77,779,620        764,470                             -            122,341            78,421,749  
 
  

 

   

    

APPENDIX "A"      

       

Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment Losses  Carrying Value  
        
  Opening Balance   Depreciation  

 Charge  
 Transferred from  

 KFPM  
 Impairment   Disposals   Closing Balance  

 

 
 

 
       

  R   R  
 

 R   R   R   R  
       

             5,137,661            1,014,162                           -                      -                  -              6,151,823         39,814,379  
        

               

                        -                         -                       -                  -                         -           23,001,877  

             5,137,661            1,014,162                           -                      -                  -              6,151,823          16,812,502  

               

        

                        -                         -                             -                      -                  -                         -                            -    
               

                        -                         -                       -                  -                         -                            -    

                        -                         -                             -                      -                  -                         -                            -    

               

        

           13,221,687            4,144,650                           -                      -           66,228          17,300,109          15,155,438  
        

             1,518,208              197,546                     -           14,155            1,701,599              756,390  

             1,909,252              627,716                           -                      -                  -             2,536,968            1,695,414  

             8,810,169            2,993,793                           -                      -           26,710          11,777,252          11,479,208  

               960,356              325,595                           -                      -           25,363           1,260,588            1,198,620  

                 23,701                      -                  -                  23,701                25,806  

           18,359,348            5,158,812                           -                      -           66,228          23,451,932         54,969,817  
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8. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 
 
 30 JUNE 2020  

 
                       -    

    
 

       
 

 Reconciliation of Carrying 
Value  

 
Cost  

  
 Opening 

Balance  
 Additions   Transferred from  

 Parent Municipality  
 Disposals   Closing Balance  

  

       
 

  
 R   R  

 
 R   R  

       

 Land and Buildings  
 

          43,371,995          81,344                  2,463,783                  -              45,917,122  
 

            

 Land              23,001,877                 -                               -                    -              23,001,877  

 Buildings              20,370,118          81,344                  2,463,783                  -              22,915,245  
 

            

 Lease Assets  
 

                       -                   -                               -                    -                           -    
       

 Office Equipment (Lease)                           -                   -                               -                    -                           -    
       

 Other Assets  
 

          31,283,746        592,151                             -             13,399            31,862,498  
 

            

 Office Equipment                           -                   -                               -                    -                           -    

 Furniture & Fittings                2,273,244        136,049                             -                    -               2,409,293  

 Tractor and other farming 
equipment  

                         -                   -                               -                    -                           -    

 Motor vehicles                 4,167,382          65,000                             -                    -               4,232,382  

 Plant and equipment              23,211,315                 -                               -                    -              23,211,315  

 Computer Equipment                1,605,469        367,930                             -             13,399             1,960,000  

 Network Hardware                    26,335          23,172                             -                    -                    49,507  

 Orchard                           -                   -                               -                    -                           -    
  

         74,655,741        673,495                  2,463,783           13,399           77,779,620  
  

 

   

       

       

Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment Losses Carrying Value 

  Opening Balance   Depreciation  
 Charge  

 Transferred from  
 KFPM  

 Impairment   Disposals   Closing Balance  
 

 
 

       

  R   R  
 

 R   R   R   R  
        

             4,061,251            1,076,410                           -                      -                  -    5,137,661             40,779,461  

               

                        -                         -                       -                  -                         -               23,001,877  

             4,061,251            1,076,410                           -                      -                  -              5,137,661             17,777,584  

               

                        -                         -                             -                   -                         -                            -    
        

                        -                         -                             -                           -                            -    

        

             9,076,055            4,146,651                           -                      -             1,018          13,221,687             18,640,811  

               

                        -                         -                             -                      -                  -                         -                            -    
             1,335,853              182,355                     -                  -              1 518,208                 891,085  

                        -                         -                       -                  -                         -                            -    

             1,216,211              693,041                           -                      -                  -              1 909,252              2,323,130  

             5,791,124            3,019,045                           -                      -                  -              8 810,169             14,401,146  

               709,165              252,209                           -                      -             1,018               960,356                 999,644  

                 23 701                      -                  -                  23,701                   25,806  

                        -                         -                        -                  -                         -                            -    

           13,137,306            5,223,061                           -                      -             1,018          18,359,348             59,420,272  
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NTINGA O. R. TAMBO DEVELOPMENT AGENCY SOC LTD      
(A MUNICIPAL ENTITY OF THE O. R. TAMBO DISTRICT MUNICIPALITY : REGISTRATION NUMBER: 
2016/272582/30) 
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1100..  BBIIOOLLOOGGIICCAALL  AASSSSEETTSS  

      
         

  3300  JJUUNNEE  22002211    
      

         
  

Reconciliation of Carrying Value - Livestock  FFaaiirr  VVaalluuee  QQuuaannttiittiieess  
     

  CCaattttllee      TToottaall      CCaattttllee      TToottaall    
     

  RR      RR              
         
  

Opening balance  
  

          15,089,530             15,089,530            1,806           1,806  
         
  

Total movements  
  

          (1,915,870)            (1,915,870)            (431)            (431) 
         
  

Acquisitions    
 

           2,096,900            2,096,900              259              259  
  

Births    
 

               95,400                    95,400              477              477  
  

Deaths    
 

            (477,300)             (477,300)              (55)              (55) 
  

Gains from change in fair value    
 

             2,861,307               2,861,307                 -                  -    
  

Transfers to inventory    
 

          (3,665,281)           (3,665,281)            (417)            (417) 
  

Disposals    
 

         (2,826,896)          (2,826,896)            (695)            (695) 
   

            
  

 Closing balance  
  

           13,173,660              13,173,660            1,375           1,375  
         

  3300  JJUUNNEE  22002200    
      

         
   

RReeccoonncciilliiaattiioonn  ooff  CCaarrrryyiinngg  VVaalluuee    
  

FFaaiirr  VVaalluuee  QQuuaannttiittiieess  
     

  CCaattttllee      TToottaall      CCaattttllee      TToottaall    
     

  RR      RR        RR             
  

Opening balance  
  

          13,234,502             13,234,502           1,833           1,833   
         
  

Total movements  
  

            1,855,028               1,855,028              (27)              (27)  
         
  

Acquisitions    
 

               947,790                  947,790              164             164   
  

Births    
 

                121,800                  121,800              609             609   
  

Deaths    
 

             (241,200)               (241,200)              (41)             (41)  
  

Gains from change in fair value    
 

            6,482,767               6,482,767                 -                  -    
  

Transfers to inventory    
 

          (5,456,129)            (5,456,129)            (759)           (759)  
   

            
   

              15,089,530              15,089,530            1,806           1,806  
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APPENDIX C          
NTINGA O.R. TAMBO DEVELOPMENT AGENCY          
(A MUNICIPAL ENTITY OF THE O. R. TAMBO DISTRICT MUNICIPALITY : REGISTRATION NUMBER: 2016/272582/30  
DISCLOSURE OF GRANTS AND SUBSIDIES IN TERMS OF SECTION 123 OF MFMA, 56 OF 2003  

GGrraanntt  DDeessccrriippttiioonn  BBaallaannccee  
0011  JJuullyy  22002200  

AAllllooccaattiioonn    
ffoorr  tthhee  yyeeaarr  

RReecceeiippttss  
ffoorr  tthhee  yyeeaarr    

  
   

    RR      RR      RR    
     

Unconditional Grants    

     

District Municipality Grants       

O.R. Tambo District Municipality - Operations funding                  -                     -    44,267,179  

  Total District Municipality Grants                  -                     -    44,267,179  

Conditional Grants    
        

     

O.R. Tambo District Municipality Project Funds       

Wool Improvement 2,173,913                   -                  -    

Zandukwana Project 315,071                  -    

ORTDM Cooperatives Development Centre 126,084                   -                  -    

RAFI Implementation 2,685,073                   -                   -    

Trade and Investment Promotion 123,291                           -    
       

Total District Municipality Grants 5,423,432                   -                  -    

        

Other Grant and Subsidy Providers       

Lefa Le Rona Trust               141          -                    -    

Ingquza Hill Local Municipality 324,641                      -    

SETA     127,681  

Maize Project     607,570  

        

Total Other Grant Providers 324,782  -    735,251  

    
Total  5,748,213  -    45,002,430  

    

 

      

IInntteerreesstt  
RReecceeiivveedd  

BBaannkk  
cchhaarrggeess  

TTrraannssffeerrss  ((ttoo))  //  ffrroomm  
OOtthheerr  pprroojjeeccttss  oorr  

RReevveennuuee  

GGrraannttss  
rreeppaaiidd  

CCoonnddiittiioonnss  
mmeett  

BBaallaannccee    
3300  JJuunnee  22002211  

     
  

  RR      RR      RR      RR      RR      RR    
       
       
       

            

               -             -                     -          -    (44,267,179)                    -    

                 -             -                     -            -    4,267,179)                    -    

       

            

       

            

           -                     -                    -    2,173,913  

                     -                  -      315,071  

               -             -                     -                         -     (72,063)   54,020  

           -             -                     -                         -    (1,396,765)  1,288,308  

                     -                   -     123,291  

            

           -          -                     -              -    (1,468,828)  3,954,603  

            

            

               -                       -           -                    -                141  

               -             -                     -               -    (122,195) 202,446  

        (127,681)  -    

        (457,256)  150,314  

            

               -     -    -    -    (707,132)  352,901  

      
               -             -                     -    -    (46,443,139) 4,307,504  
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